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Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is one of the leading independent property
management companies in China. In 2013, the Group was ranked
third in terms of overall strength among independent property
management companies in China by China Index Academy, and
ninth in 2014 in the “China Top 100 Property Management
Companies” rankings compiled by China Real Estate Top 10
Research and China Index Academy. The Group has three main
business lines:

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT BUSINESS LINE
The Group provides property management services primarily to
residential properties and occasionally engages in the provision of
property management services to non-residential properties. In
managing this business line, the Group provides property developers
and property owners with a broad range of property management
services, such as cleaning, gardening, security, repair and
maintenance and butler services. Through its butler services, the
Group provides personalized and premium property management
services to residents with its trained butlers onsite. While its primary
and long-term business focus is on the residential property market,
the Group also provides services to non-residential properties
(including both stand-alone non-residential properties and properties
associated with residential properties), such as schools and
commercial buildings.

The Group believes that quality of services is one of its strengths to
establish a solid foundation for the Group’s business. The Group
holds various qualifications and licenses in respect of the Group’s
property management services, in order to provide high quality
services to residents. The Group holds ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
OHSAS 18001 and level one property management qualification
certificate.
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As part of the Group’s strategy to differentiate the Group from
property management companies and establish the market
standard for premium property management service in China, the
Group began providing butler services to selected properties
since 2007. The Group’s butler services are highly recognized in
the market and helped it obtains recognition as one of the
“Leading Specialty Property Management Enterprises” (/8 Bl 45 &
YIZE RS LA B ZE) in 2012 and 2014 in a list which was compiled
by China Index Academy.

SALES ASSISTANCE BUSINESS LINE

The Group provides property developers with sales assistance
services by deploying on-site staff at the sales center to maintain the
conditions of the center and provide timely assistance with various
aspects of the sales process. The Group generally continues to
service the property developer clients after the expiration of the sales
assistance contracts by entering into preliminary property
management contracts with them at the same time as the Group
secures sales assistance contracts, which serves as an important
source of business for its property management business line.

COMMUNITY 020 PLATFORM

With the community O20 market growing at a rapid pace, the Group
launched its current model of community O20 platform in June 2015
through its Aidaojia mobile application (“Aidaojia”) at selected
properties. Capitalizing on the Group’s existing offline infrastructure,
the Group believes that its O20 model benefits from several key
advantages to further its development, such as the Group’s unique
butler service model, experienced team, resident demographics and
strategic partners. In contrast to pure O20 players, the Group has
on-the ground property management staff to conduct sales and
marketing activities and provide offline support to facilitate services
and products from merchants and national brands, serving
residents who have gained trust in the Group over its years of
services to them.

Through the Group’s community O20 platform, the Group offers a
broad range of services and products to its residents, as well as
enhancement to the existing property management services. For
example, residents would be able to purchase certain daily
necessities from the community O20 platform and the products
would be delivered directly to the residents’ homes by butlers. In the
future, residents may also be able to access their management fee
bills and pay the bills online through a third-party payment provider.
The Group’s community O20 platform would be closely integrated
with its butler service model to provide these offerings.
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Besides covering the properties managed by the Group, Aidaojia
also provides services to users living in properties managed by third-
party property management companies.

Key Features of the Group’s Community 020
Platform

The Group selects functions in its community O20 platform based
on its knowledge on the daily habits and needs of relevant residents
that understand through years of experience in delivering property
management services. In particular, capitalizing on the Group’s
unique butler services model which entails frequent interactions with
residents, the Group is well-positioned to meet the needs of
residents for those products and services with the highest demand
level in designing its community O20 platform, which could in turn,
improve user engagement by residents. Over time, The Group plans
to expand its services and eventually cover the wide range of
services that are possible on the O20 platform.

The Group believes its 020 platform offers comprehensive value
proposition to residents, merchants and butlers, which could
successfully distinguish the Group from other market competitors.

The Group believes residents benefit from its community 020
platform through:

° convenience and flexibility: for example, residents may have
daily groceries including heavy items such as rice delivered to
the door by butlers with greater flexibility in delivery schedule;

° better value in the products and services through bulk
purchase discounts negotiated by the community 020
platform;

° safe and secured services through the last-mile delivery by
butlers with whom residents are familiar and the information
security and anonymity in dealing with third party merchants;

° merchant screening, selection and recommendation by the on-
the-ground 020 team; and

° targeted and tailored product and service offerings based on
insight derived from customer data mining and analysis to
better match residents’ needs and preferences.
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The Group expects its community O20 platform to offer several
value propositions to the merchants, including:

° solutions for the merchants’ last-mile delivery issues to
resident;

° an increase in merchants’ sales with an expanded sales
channel focused on their local neighbourhoods; and

° consumer data insight derived from the platform.

The Group believes butlers would be an active participant in its
community O20 platform given the financial incentives and higher
level of job satisfaction. The butlers’ 020 bonus would be linked to
the amount of sales they can make from the resident portfolio they
manage, directly linked to the ability of butlers to identify the services
and products that are desired and demanded by residents and make
recommendations successfully. Moreover, the model provides richer
content to their role as butlers through increased responsibilities,
including a sales and marketing function and delivery function. This
will help them engage more with the residents they serve, develop
closer relationships with these residents, and gain a better
understanding of their habits and needs. As a result, the butlers will
be able to serve the residents better, which is critical to maintaining a
high level of job satisfaction.

Similarly, the Group’s community O20 platform enhances the service
quality of third-party property management companies and allows
them to command a higher level of customer satisfaction. This is
especially important when many property management companies
have not developed their own O20 platforms. Therefore, the
Group’s community O20 platform could help these third-party
property management companies to improve the revenue and
control service quality.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

DEAR SHAREHOLDER:

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries, (the “Group”) was successfully listed (the “Listing”) on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 25 November 2015, thus the Company is
welcoming its first fiscal year after the listing. In 2015, the Guiding
Opinions of the State Council on the Action of Actively Promoting the
“Internet+” (B FS5PzK AR BB E [ BB A+ THNREER))
proposed the promotion of transfer of technology outcome and
collaborative innovation in a trans-regional and interdisciplinary
manner, as well as the establishment of a new operational model
which is convenience-oriented and boosts community economy by
creating a new online-to-offline model for community services in such
aspects as dinning, entertainment, housekeeping, etc. The combined
effect of the policy rendered strong basis and room for development
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for the implementation of “Internet+” in the property management
sector. As the property management industry entered the new era of
“Internet+”, the Group launched “Internet+ Property” in 2015 to
capture new business opportunities and respond to challenges. The
introduction of “Internet+” into the property management sector led
to diversified development of property management. In view of the
current development of the property management industry and the
benefit brought by the policy, it is expected that the results of the
Group will sustain steady growth.

In the joint efforts of management and all employees of the Group,
the Group continued its strong growth trend. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the Group achieved an operating revenue of
RMB420.2 million, representing an increase of 16.3% over last year.
Due to expenses of non-recurring, non-cash spending and incurred
from new business line (including listing expenses, change in fair
value of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, share-based payment expenses and the net loss incurred for
the community O20 platform), net profit for the year was RMB10.6
million, representing a decrease of 81.0% over last year. If the
expenses of non-recurring, non-cash spending and incurred from
new business line were excluded for the year of 2015 and 2014, the
adjusted net profit will be RMB80.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, representing an increase of 34.8% over last year.
The Group rewards the shareholders for their trust and support with
great results.

RAPID MARKET EXPANSION WITH UNIQUE
BUTLER SERVICE

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s had expanded to 28 cities in
China where the Group was contracted to manage 167 residential
properties or non-residential properties with an aggregate contracted
GFA of 33.8 million sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of
7.7%, of which the revenue-bearing GFA was 15.5 million sg.m.,
representing a year-on-year increase of 23.4%. The Group achieved
rapid market expansion.
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The Group’s expertise in selecting and managing its properties and
its high level of standardization, centralization and automation
contribute to its profitability. The Group is able to increase its profit
margin through a disciplined approach to property selection and
management. The Group has a stringent set of criteria for property
selection process to ensure profitability. For quality assurance, the
Group successfully adopted standardized property management
services at properties the Group manages through implementing
effective methods to deliver relevant services. Furthermore, the
Group hires external third parties to conduct interviews of the clients
to understand the gaps in the quality of our service offerings.

The Group’s service quality is enhanced by its distinctive butler
service model which targets mid to high-end residential segment.
Capitalizing on the Group’s expertise and experience in property
management services, the Group has achieved rapid market
expansion and successfully positioned “Zhong Ao Property
Management” as a brand for the mid to high-end segment of
the market.

The community-based property butler service is an innovative model
of property butler service which capitalizes on the service experience
of high-star hotels. As butler service innovates and evolves, property
butlers emerge and commence to serve precious households in
high-end communities. The Group’s unique butler service model acts
as a crucial connecting bridge between the Group’s community 020
platform (“Aidacjia”), properties and property owners, through which
Aidaojia can carry out the last 100 meter service. Adopting the
service approach of prioritizing services, mobile management,
movable services, the Group establishes a butler service centre in its
own style to manage and serve residents in different clusters, offering
friendly, harmonious, prompt and personalized services to residents
including repair requests, housekeeping service, postal service,
agency service, merchandises procurement, etc.
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ACCELERATE BUSINESS GROWTH THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
COMPANIES

Currently, the property management market is quite fragmented,
where a trend of industry consolidation is expected. Through
acquisitions, the Group will be able to strengthen its market position,
expand geographical coverage and get access to new capacity.
After the listing of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in November 2015, in February 2016, it successfully
acquired 70% of equity interest in Eastern Harbor Engineering
Management Limited (“Eastern Harbour”) which manages 11
properties in Shanghai with GFA of approximately 1.0 million sg.m.
under management. In addition, the Group entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding with the shareholders of a
property management company based in Zhejiang province in China
(the “Target Company”) on 23 March 2016 in relation to the
proposed acquisition of 100% equity interests of the Target
Company. The Target Company manages 257 projects and
properties with GFA of 19.5 million sg.m.

The Group plans to spend 60% of the net proceeds from the Global
Offering for acquisition. It is expected that the acquisition targets will
be located in areas with high population density and advanced
economic development in the future, such as Ningbo, Shanghai,
Guangzhou and so on.

RAPID DEVELOPMENT OF 020 PLATFORM

As an interactive platform between butlers and internet mobile
applications, Aidaojia enhanced the connection efficiency with
residents while improving the interaction frequency between
properties and residents to offer integrated and platform-based
services of high efficiency and high quality.

The community 020 market demonstrated huge potential for
growth with the coverage of Aidaojia in Hangzhou alone increased
to more than 2,000 residential properties, most of which are the
residential properties managed by third-party property
management companies.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREME
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F]100% R AR AR DR BET - B1IZ
NAEE257TRIAE RMENMA1958EF K
RABFESEMAE -

AEEE A BB EMETBFEN60%
EITWE - RRFEH WBBBEERADEE
R k@EEREENBRESHK  MER - £
ERNEVIE

020 ¥ &R EME
PIREAERREBBEDEANEHTE -
JRFHERE P B ME - RF IR MR RES K
ERER ERBEAL REL REEA
£ Faf

EMMNHEIRBEBENEEYFEILEH1B2000
f REDRFE=ZTHEEERAREENEEY
¥ RRHEO20MHHRENERX -

FRIAREEERAT
2015 & 3 1 3



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREmE

As the community O20 platform is growing rapidly, the Group plans
to increase the number of users and enhance the frequency of
utilization by allocating approximately 25% of the net proceeds from
the global offering, so as to further develop the community 020
platform of the Group. Through 020 platform, the Group can
achieve a shared economy centered by community, and form larger
market space. Aidaogjia, is in rapid development, continuously
expanding the scope of services and providing better and faster
service experience for householders. Additionally, Aidaojia has
included community e-commerce services including high-frequency
commodities consuming and delivering, daily living services, as well
as offline merchant services, providing diversified and convenient
services for residents. Meanwhile, through the mobile application,
residents can book butler service to deliver packages for free; and
property management company can push community management
information to residents.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to work hard in the future, maintaining its
own advantage as an independent property management company,
competing with counterparts in the market by its high quality service
and operational efficiency, actively establishing stable partnership
with leading property developers in all regions, and exploring
potential new development projects. The Group will accelerate its
expansion of business scope and coverage in China through
acquisition of property management companies in the capital market.

The Group will continue to expand the coverage of Aidaojia, making
the best of the advantages of unique butler service model and
continuing to expand new features of Aidaojia. The Group expands
the service of Aidaojia by March 2016 to Guangzhou, Foshan,
Suzhou, Ningbo and Shaoxing.
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OWLEDGEMENTS
On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to
every shareholder and business partner for their constant support
and trust of the Group, and also to every employee for their hard
work and contribution to the Group over last year. In the coming
year, the Group will continue its active expansion of business and
enhance its property management service quality, so as to bring a
better, more enjoyable and more satisfying experience for home life
to residents. Moreover, the Group will further develop new functions
of the community 020 platform to offer more convenient and
intelligent life services to residents. With the continuous efforts of the
Group, | believe that the Group will bring good returns to its
shareholders in the long term.

Liu Jian
Chairman
23 March 2016
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

M E

Results performance for the year ended

BE12A31BLEEZ

31 December £ERR 2015 2014
Revenue (RMB’000) Wz (AREFT) 420,155 361,202
Gross profit (RMB’000) ENAEEFT) 140,088 120,711
Profit for the year attributable to owners of KARHEEANEBEEE

the Company (RMB’000) FEAREFT) 10,911 56,031
Adjusted net profit for the year&@ (RMB’000) LR FRLGLT O (AREFIT) 80,744 59,878
Gross profit margin (%) EFR (%) 33.3% 33.4%
Net profit margin (%) HEFZE (%) 2.5% 15.5%
Adjusted net profit margin (%) KRR AR (%) 19.2% 16.6%
Basic earnings per share (RMB) SRERERN(AR%T) 0.019 0.123
Final dividend per share (HK$) FRRREARE (CFT) 0.025 -
Special dividend per share (HK$) FIEERIRE GEor) 0.020 -

Note:

Wi

16

Adjusted net profit for the year is derived by adding listing expenses of
RMB35.9 million (2014: RMB4.0 million), change in fair value of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss of RMB6.3 million
(2014: Nil), share-based payment expenses of RMB19.9 million (2014: Nil)
and excluding the net loss of RMB8.0 million (2014: Nil) incurred for the
community O20 platform for the year.

This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that is
not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs and is therefore
referred to as a “non-GAAP” financial measure. It is not a measurement of
the Group’s financial performance under HKFRSs and should not be
considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any other
performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the
Group’s liquidity.
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venue

Log

(RMB million)
(AR¥EET)

gl\'}

420
361
290 &
52
197
352
35 293
238
162

2012 2013 2014 2015

B Property management services B Sale assistance services
YEEBEE ISR

W 020 business income
020 FEBWA

Adjusted net profit for the year and
Adjusted net profit margin
R FE AR AR =R

(RMB million/%)
(ARBBEEBT %) 19.2%

12.8

2012 2013 2014 2015

o' ] B -
Gross profit and gross profit margin
EFREFE

(RMB million/%)
(ARBEET %)
33.4% 33.3%

140
121
78
38 I

2012 2013 2014 2015

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

A RER ABGFE
(RMB million)
(AR®EEBT)
56.0
33.1
128

10.9

2012 2013 2014 2015

FREREEERAT
2015 F 7} 1 7



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M52

Total assets

EERE

(RMB million)
(ARBEERT)

710.8

279.0
1976
1139

2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Contracted GFA
BENEIREEEE

(million sg. m.)
(B8BEHK)

%6 Il Il I|

2012 2013 2014 2015

B Revenue-bearing GFA Undelivered GFA
AHEREREEE RRATEREEE

B Common area GFA

Total equity
R EE

(RMB m||||on)
(AR¥EBT)

501.7

95.6

159 53.0 I
— [ |

2012 2013 2014 2015

Average price of property management service

YEERREFIIER
(RMB/sq. m./month)
(AR EHK/A)

213
1.81

1.98 201
i1 70 Iw 79 Iw 77

2012 2013 2014 2015

W Average price per contracted GFA!
BENERREEMBEN T IER

Average price per revenue-bearing GFA?

AHEEEERE G E NS R EEEN T I9ER?
Notes: ek
1. It only includes residential properties and is calculated as a weighted 1. ERSEEYE  EERSHBFERBITENE
average of all the prices and fees specified on the contracts in effect as of NIRRT EERREBAMNINEFSEE BT
the end of each relevant year, excludes management fees for parking lots. BEEHEERE -

2. It is calculated as a weighted average of all the prices and fees specified on 2. ERERAFERDEEREOENTANMBE
the contracts that are generating revenue as of the end of each relevant

year, excludes management fees for parking lots.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B I B A wm B AT

THE GROUP IS A LEADING INDEPENDENT PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
COMPANY IN CHINA. IN 2013, THE GROUP WAS RANKED THIRD IN TERMS
OF OVERALL STRENGTH AMONG INDEPENDENT PROPERTY

MANAGEMENT COMPANIES IN CHINA BY CHINA INDEX ACADEMY.
AEERTENELBINEEE QT - RIBFEIEHF L - AEER2013F
USRS ENUIFEB MREE AR E =L

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property management company
in China. In 2013, the Group was ranked third in terms of overall
strength among independent property management companies in
China by China Index Academy, and ninth in 2014 in the China Top
100 Property Management Companies (FF B ¥ % IR % & 58 1 %)
rankings compiled by China Real Estate Top 10 Research and China
Index Academy. In addition, the Group recently developed
community O20 platform is also one of its strategic focus areas and
the Group expects it to become a key driver of its future growth. The
Group has three main business lines:

° Property management services
° Sale assistance services

° Community 020 platform

E 3301

AREBEFHBEBIMESIERR - RIEFH
EHM T - AREER 2013 F LG A B L5 P
BBUWEETRATRE=( YEIPEEHE
Top 105548 & BRE S FTbn R &1 2014 F [
BIYERS BoR b | MM - N &RILH
BB OO0 FE M AAEENRENHE Y
— FEHEBRARKEENEZERE N - £%
BAENT ZREZELLE

o  MXEERS
o IREHARSS

o (MEO020¥&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R T

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had expanded its presence to
28 cities in China where the Group was contracted to manage 167
residential properties or non-residential properties with an aggregate
contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) of 33.8 million square meters
(“sg.m.”), representing a year-on-year increase of 7.7%, including
revenue-bearing GFA of 15.5 million sg.m., representing a year-on-
year increase of 23.4%.

Currently, the property management market is quite fragmented,
where a trend of industry consolidation is expected. Through
acquisitions, the Group will be able to strengthen its market position,
expand its geographical coverage and gain access to new capacity.
After the listing of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in November 2015, the Company successfully acquired
70% equity interest in Eastern Harbour Engineering Management
Limited (“Eastern Harbour”) in February 2016. Eastern Harbour is
principally engaged in property management services in Shanghai
where it has 11 properties with a GFA of about 1 million sg.m. under
management. The successful acquisition of Eastern Harbour will
enable the Group to expand its service market in Shanghai in
the future.

In March 2016, the Group has entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding with the shareholders of a China-
based property management company (the “Target Company”) on
the potential acquisition of 100% of the equity interest in the target
company. The Target Company is a property management company
located in Zhejiang province, with 257 projects and properties with a
GFA of approximately 19.5 million sg. m. under management.

V) 35 1% IR 1%

MR2015F 12 A31H - AEBNEBEREFTEH
281{EE T - FTAEIR 167 BIEEY R IEEEY
¥ BAENEEEEEE([EERE]) A33.88
BEFKTERK]D  ZLELRT7%  BFEFTE
W ELEMBIS5EEFE AR BREEE
23.4% o

BAl MEBTEMHBEADE  BR1ITEELS
2o NEBE B BB MR ETIBHAL - BR
i BEE RIS HER - AR AIR2015F 11 A
REFZFTER ETE - IR 2016 F 2 AUKEEER
HEEIREEERAT(EAES ) 70%MK
B -RABBIBE BN EDETEREE
% EEREMBENA1EE T KRNI1EDE -
RIWKER T EEENEAEERERE SN
R T -

R2016F3 A ALEEH—RABEYEEE QA
(TEHZERR ) REFLEE WS B 122 7] 100% %
BTN EARORNNRHRETE - BIZRARA
WHTIENYEESERR BRAREMED
105 BBF H K257 BB R -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

Since the commencement of the Group’s business in 2005, the
Group has expanded its presence from Guangzhou to 28 cities in 11
provinces in China. The Group strategically selects markets with
more developed economies and comparatively higher per capita
GDP. Once the Group has established presence in a new city, it
seeks to expand its business within the same city or neighboring
cities with a view to maximize the economies of scale. The Group
primarily provides a variety of property management services to
residential properties and occasionally to non-residential properties.

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown of different
geographic areas where the Group has established presence for the
year ended 31 December.

FREHHEH N

Total Contracted GFA

33.8Million sq. m.

BMENEEEEERE

33.8F & sx

1 38 75 6

B AN B 7 2005 FRFAEB AR - AEEHEMN
HREFEES 528 @M T - A% EH KK
MR EEEREEA ABENEEZERSH
M5 - REBEHUTLER  HERRR—
WA T AR T - ABIER AR RE
B o AEB T EREEMEREZ TN
XEERY  BRTERIFETMERHDE
EIEIRTE o

TREVNNEE12A BIEFEAEE IR
FEEY I Rl [ B W s AR AR o

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARET T

Eastern and Central China B gS e 221,371 178,291
Southern China R 179,447 158,981
Northern China B35l 19,337 23,930
Total A5 420,155 361,202
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B DT

The map below illustrates the cities in which properties
the Group was contracted to manage were located
and number of projects in each city as of 31
December 2015.

TEZHAR 201512 A31 BAEB IO BRI
MFTIER T R ST TEE & E

28

Cities and District
& 35 T K2 ith &

e

Eastern and Central China

Q Northern China
it

@ ERNER

01. Foshan {311(18) 12. Chongaing EE(1) 26. Baotou B 4(3)

02. Guangzhou & (4) 13. Hangzhou #/1(28) 27. Dalian A3E(1)

03. Guilin E=#(2) 14. Huzhou #1(3) 28. Eérduosisp i % Hi(2)

. Haikou /& F1(3)

15.

05. Jiangmen ;TFI(1) 16.
06. Nanning FI%£(17) 17.
07. Qingyuan J&&(2) 18.
08. Sanya =15z(7) 19.
09. Zhaoqing 22 (2) 20.
10. Zhongshan # [LI(2) 21.

Note: Numbers in parentheses represent the number of contracted projects.

22

. Zhuhai Tk/&(1)
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22.
23.
24,
25.

Jiaxing 5= #1(4)
Nanchang & & (1)
Nantong Fe38(4)
Ningbo Z(12)
Quzhou M (2)
Shanghai +/%&(1)
Shaoxing #A#(21)
Suzhou &R (7)
Wuxi 55 (14)
Xuancheng & #(3)
Zhenjiang 8T (1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets forth the total contracted GFA and the number
of residential properties and non-residential properties in different
regions in the PRC, as well as revenue-bearing GFA, undelivered
GFA and common area GFA, as of the date indicated.

KIEEEMED
BIRSEE TS

As of 31 December 2015
7A2015F12 A 31 H

EIRE S DT

TRFIINARBRETETRLRNEEDE
BmeaneEREmBENREE - R
FEtEWERERE  RRXMNEEEBERAKE

As of 31 December 2014
R2014% 12 31 H

Sqg. m. in Sqg. m. in
thousands No. thousands No.
FE75K =] TR B
Total Contracted GFA™ BENEEEEMBEY
Residential properties TEY%E
Eastern and Central China FER L FEAR 17,628 97 15,997 88
Southern China HEg 13,737 55 13,028 49
Northern China B3l 1,354 6 1,870 6
Subtotal /INEt 32,719 158 30,895 143
Non-residential properties EEEME 1,096 9 494 6
Total @Bt 33,815 167 31,389 149
As of As of
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
M"2015512A31H 2014412 A31H
Sqg. m. in thousands Sg. m. in thousands
T 75K FEFHK
Revenue-bearing GFA® FTEWEREERE®
Residential properties TEY %
Eastern and Central China ER RES 8,657 6,646
Southern China Ecdea) 6,056 5,249
Northern China Sl 718 568
Subtotal /INEF 15,431 12,463
Non-residential properties FEEEYE 116 138
Total st 15,547 12,601
Undelivered GFA® RENBREEEFO
Residential properties TEY %
Eastern and Central China FEHNEF 4,720 5,651
Southern China Ecdea) 3,412 3,849
Northern China Sl 158 333
Subtotal /INEF 8,290 9,833
Non-residential properties IEEEYE 863 218
Total st 9,153 10,051
Common area GFA AHZEEREEE 9,115 8,737

FRIAREEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B T

Notes:

(1) Total contracted GFA equals the sum of revenue-bearing GFA, undelivered
GFA and common area GFA (which includes pathways, gardens, parking
lots, swimming pools, advertisement bulletin boards and club houses).

) Revenue-bearing GFA means contracted GFA in relation to which the
collection of property management fees has started when a property has
been delivered or is ready to be delivered (this happens when the delivery
notice is given to the first group of property owners). In properties that have
been delivered or are ready to be delivered after delivery notices have been
given to the first group of property owners in such properties, property
developers would pay property management fees on unsold units until such
units are sold.

) Undelivered GFA means contracted GFA in relation to which the collection
of property management fees has not started because the relevant property
is not ready to be delivered.

The Group will continue to expand its business through obtaining
new service engagements and acquisitions of other property
management companies. The table below indicates the movement
of the total contracted GFA and the number of properties the Group
was contracted to manage during the year.

@

HAENEEEEAEERAERERSEEETE
RAEREEE R AT REEE (KBE/ME -
CEES O BREEEREE) ZAM

° of M

AAERGEEEEEEDEERENDERI N R AERE
AR AR UCER Y & KB IR IR SR A (UL IR R A3
MR TERETREL) - MEBRBERVEIN
FEFERIMNR (W IRZMBARXTFERETR
BEVAFEEUINNEERE BEEREE
EHRBLE -

ARMBREABIELRARPDDEXERENA D
EEREERE  DEAREEYEHNREERN

AEEBEEFIHIRGREMEBEECYEE
BARE - ARRER - TR AFAREEE]
HWERNMERANEEEZEMBEREENES) -

As of 31 December 2015 As of 31 December 2014

M20156F12 431 H 2014412 531 H
Sq. m. in Sg. m.in
thousands No. thousands No.

FTFE 5K B FHEH K #H
As of beginning of period B4 31,389 149 29,171 143
New engagements( RO 3,967 26 5,005 18
Terminations® ®ike (1,541) (8) (2,787) (12)
As of end of period HiZR 33,815 167 31,389 149
Notes: MHEE -
(1) In relation to properties the Group manage, new engagements primarily 1) BEAEEREBNYERS FEEIEAEDYE

include service engagements for new property developments constructed
by property developers and to a much lesser extent, service engagements
for residential properties replacing their previous property management
companies.

) Including the contracted GFA and the number of properties the Group
ceased to manage, which were primarily due to non-renewal of certain
property management contract and mutual termination prior to expiration
for commercial reasons.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SALES ASSISTANCE SERVICES

The Group provides property developers with cleaning, security and
maintenance of their model homes and sales centers and provide
general assistance to facilitate the sales process of the properties.
The sales assistance services contracts generally have a duration of
6 to 18 months and could be terminated prior to the expiration date
if all display units have been sold out. In 2014 and 2015, the Group
provided sales assistance services to 85 and 81 properties,
respectively. If high quality services and expertise during the terms of
the sales assistance services contracts enable the Group to retain
most of the property developer clients through entering into new
property management contracts, the Group intends to obtain further
businesses from its sales assistance business line.

COMMUNITY 020 PLATFORM

Since the launch of the Aidaojia mobile application platform by the
Group in June 2015, the application has experienced rapid
development. As of 31 December 2015, the Aidaojia mobile
application platform of the Group covered 1,111 residential
properties in Hangzhou (as compared to 99 as of 30 September
2015, representing an increase of approximately 1,022%), 1,103 of
which were properties managed by third-party property management
companies. The number of registered users as of 31 December
2015 was approximately 179,500 (as compared to approximately
36,200 as of 30 September 2015, representing an increase of
approximately 396%), of which approximately 64% had logged into
the Aidaojia application during the month of December 2015
(Monthly Active User). During the month of December 2015, the
Group had, on average, approximately 7% of its registered users
logging into the Group’s application per day (Daily Active User).

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had 1,273 merchants as
partners (as compared to 715 as of 30 September 2015,
representing an increase of approximately 78%). The Group had
received and processed approximately 172,000 orders (including
orders with promotional offers) for the month of December 2015 (as
compared to approximately 36,000 for the month of September
2015, representing an increase of approximately 378%), on average
approximately 5,545 orders per day. Since June 2015, approximately
80% of the Group’s registered users have placed orders. Among
them, 36% were repeat customers, who have at least made
purchases twice on the Group’s 020 platform (excluding orders with
promotional offers).

EIRE S DT

15 8H AR %%

AEERMERRBREARBEMLHEET L
BER - REMRE - NREH-REARED
EMHEBRE - BHERBAN KRB E18(E
A BEZIRINECELOBERT - AIERER
BHEIRTAR IE » 2014 F )2 20156 - AR B 5 Rl
[7) 85 1 & 81 @ ¥ % fe 1% 3K AR 75 - A RER
ERB S NWAENEERBE R R FE MR
EPOARKEEBIILHMEEERNBRBE AR D
MMEEREEP  AEEHB A HEEFRN
BEZE -

#H+EO020¥% &

BAEEMR2015F 6 AENEIRFHERER
AR ZEARAEERE - B2015F12
A3 A AEENEIRFHREARAFTAERZ
MMA,111 B EED S (82015F 9 B 30 H /Y99
TEY) S IN491,022%) + ER 1,103 1B E B SE
—AWMEEERREE - R2015F12 431 A
EMAEF 4 A179,5004 (820159 A 30 H %Y
36,200 4 & 1N 49396%) + H A #164% & 722015
F1I2AEANEBIREARERN(BAERARL) - ¥
2015 12 A8 - A& BTG R T BN 7%+
BEEAAEERNEREN (BERERER) -

MR2015F 12 A31H » AEEMNAEERHF1,273
P (E20156%9A30H M715% # i 4
78%) c REEMK20156F 12 AR WEI REEL
172,000 5 5] B (B IEHEEERT ) (88201549
A #736,00017 7] EIZMAI378%) + FHEBHLE
5545105718 - B2015F 6 A8+ ANEE480%
AMAP B TERTE - EH36% AR AEENE
F BEELEREEERNO20F & BEYMIX (T
BIEHEEERE) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

As stated above, the property management market in China is
currently quite fragmented, with industry consolidation expected in
the future. Through acquisitions, the Group will be able to strengthen
its market position, expand its geographical coverage and gain
access to new capacity. The Group plans to spend 60% of the net
proceeds from the Global Offering on acquisition. It is expected that
the acquisition targets will be located in areas with high population
density and advanced economic development, such as Ningbo,
Shanghai, Guangzhou, and so on.

The Group plans to continue to grow organically by acquiring new
clients and developing stable relationships with them. The Group
mainly targets its marketing efforts for new clients at small and
medium-sized property developers without their own property
management business. In targeting new clients, the Group also
selectively evaluates opportunities in cities with high population in
economically developed regions, such as provincial capitals, second-
tier and third-tier cities and other areas around the existing locations
where it has a presence with a view to maximize its economies of
scale. The Group’s sales assistance services also provide an entry
point to procuring new property management service contracts.

In addition to the traditional sales efforts, the Group further plans to
expand its new customer referral channel through partnerships with
E-House (China) Holdings Limited (“E-House”) and Shenzhen Fangdd
Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fangdd”), with whom the Group has
entered into strategic collaboration agreements. Under such
agreements, E-House and Fangdd would introduce various property
developers to the Group through their expansive networks of
contacts and customers in order to support its growth.

The Group will continue to work hard in the future, maintaining its
own advantage as an independent property management company,
competing with counterparts in the market by its high service quality
and operational efficiency, actively establishing stable partnership
with leading property developers in all regions, and exploring
potential new development projects. The Group will accelerate its
expansion of business scope and coverage in China through
acquisition of property management companies in the capital market.
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M LA - MEPENYREETSERD
B EERKKHRITEES - AREEMNER
UeRB tnog Mgl - BRI IEE & RIS E
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AEEEBMEH TP LERFERIBEN
EBRE  BRFARAER - AREXERLE
BEMEEEERBH/ A RTRYRERENE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Through the O20 platform, the Group can achieve a shared
economy centered on “community”, and form larger market space,
And “Aidaojia”, the 020 platform of the Group, is in rapid
development, continuously expanding the scope of services and
providing better and faster service experience for householders.
Additionally, “Aidaojia” has included community e-commerce
services including high-frequency commodities consuming and
delivering, daily living services, as well as offline merchant services,
providing diversified and convenient services for residents.
Meanwhile, “Aidaojia” also has a reminder function of living service,
such as automatic reminder of packages which can book butler
service to deliver packages through the mobile application for free;
and community bulletin reminder service, pushing community
management information to residents and so on. As the 020
platform is growing rapidly, the Group plans to increase the number
of users and enhance the frequency of utilization by allocating
approximately 25% of the net proceeds from the global offering, so
as to further develop the community O20 platform of the Group.

The Group will continue to expand the coverage of the mobile
application platform “Aidaojia”, making the best of the advantages of
housekeeping service mode and continuing to expand new features
of 020 platform of the residential community. The Group also
expands the service of “Aidaojia” in March 2016 to Guangzhou,
Foshan, Suzhou, Shaoxing and Ningbo.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded revenue
of RMB420.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.3%
over the previous year. During the year, the gross profit of the Group
was RMB140.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
16.1% over the previous year.

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue by business lines for
the year ended 31 December

B %% = 3R [0
Iy z8

HE2015F 12 A1 HILFE - AEBHBKE
ARBA20288 L REFILFIENN16.3% °
FRN - AEEENABARE1401TE L BE
FIRFIEN16.1% °

TRENEE12A B IEFEAEEIZEBR
20 R AR AR

2015 2014 Change
20155 2014 5 L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT %

Property management services ¥13 & 18 R 7% 352,036 292,860 59,176 20.2
Sale assistance services 195 84 AR 1% 66,137 68,342 (2,205) (3.2
020 business income 020 WA 1,982 - 1,982 N/A 73 FR

420,155 361,202 58,953 16.3

The increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to an increase
in revenue from the property management services. Revenue from
the property management services for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB352.0 million, as compared to RMB292.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase of
RMB59.1 million, or 20.2%. The increase in the Group’s revenue
from the property management business line was due primarily to (i)
an increase in the total revenue-bearing GFA by 2.9 million sq.m., or
23.4%, to 15.5 million sg.m. from 12.6 million sq.m. as at the same
date in 2014 as a result of its business expansion; and (i) an increase
in ancillary services primarily driven by an increase in the area and
the number of properties managed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue from the sales assistance business line for the year ended
31 December 2015 was RMB66.1 million, as compared to RMB68.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing a
decrease of RMB2.2 million, or 3.2%. The decrease in revenue from
the sales assistance business line was due to the decrease in the
number of projects, where the Group provided sales assistance
services on 81 projects in 2015 compared to 85 in 2014, the effect
of which was partially offset by an increase of average revenue of
projects from approximately RMB804,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014 to approximately RMB817,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Cost of Sales and Services

The Group’s cost of sales and services primarily comprises (i) sub-
contracting costs, representing the expenses paid to sub-
contractors for various services under the property management
business line; (i) staff costs; (iii) depreciation expenses associated
with equipment and property used in providing services; and (iv)
others, primarily representing raw material costs, travelling expenses
and communication expenses. For the year ended 31 December
2015, cost of sales and services increased by 16.5% from
RMB240.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB280.1 million. The increase was primarily due to the growth of
the Group’s business and the corresponding increase in labor costs
and sub-contracting costs. The increase in labor costs was
attributable to (i) an increase in the number of employees that the
Group employed directly; and (i) an increase in the average salary of
its employees. The increase in sub-contracting costs was attributable
to (i) expansion of the Group’s business; and (ii) termination of
dispatch arrangements with dispatch agency and adoption of sub-
contracting arrangement in 2015. However, the cost of sales and
services as a percentage of revenue remains stable. See gross profit
margin discussion below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit margins by
business line for the year ended 31 December:

ENRERNZ

TREVEEZ12A3MBIEEEAREFERESE
ZIDEEHE

2015 2014
% %
RMB’000 of revenue RMB’000 of revenue
AR¥T T E U2 Y% ARET T IR ES %
Property management services 4% & 1% iR % 112,299 31.9 89,978 30.7
Sale assistance services 1% $8 AR 755 30,050 45.4 30,733 45.0
Community O20 Platform HEO020F & (2,261) (114.1) - -
Total ya=t 140,088 33.3 120,711 33.4

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
RMB140.1 million, as compared to RMB120.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase of RMB19.4
million, or 16.1%. Its gross profit margin slightly decreased from
33.4% for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 33.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The decrease in its gross profit margin
was primarily due to the gross loss incurred in community 020
platform, the effect of which was partially offset by an increase in
gross profit margin form property management business line and
sales assistance business line.

Property management business line. Gross profit of the property
management business line for the year ended 31 December 2015
was RMB112.3 million, as compared to RMB90.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase of RMB22.3
million, or 24.8%. The Group’s gross profit margin also increased
from 30.7% for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 31.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The increase in the Group’s gross
profit margin was primarily due to (i) increased average price per
residential revenue-bearing GFA from RMB1.77/sg.m./month as of
31 December 2014 to RMB1.81/sg.m./month as of 31 December
2015, (i) increased economies of scale as multiple phases of the
same properties were delivered and became revenue-bearing; (iii)
termination of property management services to certain residential
properties as the profitability of these properties did not meet
the Group’s expectations; (iv) more efficient utilization of staff
through standardization and centralization efforts; and (v) the
Group’s selection of and engagement with newer projects with
higher margins.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sales assistance business line. Gross profit for the sales assistance
business line for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMBG0.1
million, as compared to RMB30.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, representing a decrease of RMBO0.6 million, or
2.2%. However, the Group’s gross profit margin increased slightly
from 45.0% for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 45.4% for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The slight increase in its gross
profit margin was primarily due to a slight increase in average
revenue of projects.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB1.5
million, as compared to RMB3.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, representing a decrease of RMB1.7 million, or
53.5%. Such decrease in other income was primarily attributable to
the decrease in unconditional government grants and investment
income on financial assets designated as at FVTPL, driven by the
Group’s decreased investment amount in 2015.

Other Gains and Losses

The Group’s other gains and losses for the year ended 31 December
2015 was a net loss of RMB4.0 million as compared to a net loss of
RMB16.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing
a decrease of RMB12.3 million, or 75.4%. The decrease in net
losses was primarily due to (i) the decrease in impairment loss
recognised on other receivables from RMB2.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to nil for the year ended 31 December
2015; and (ii) net exchange gain of RMB9.7 million recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2015 due to the Renminbi exchange
fluctuations in foreign currency bank deposits and bank balances.

Change of the Fair Value of Financial Liabilities
Designated as at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(“FVTPL”)

For the valuation of Pre-IPO investments with put option classified as
financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, the valuation is by
reference to the discounted cashflow to capture the present value of
the expected future economic benefits that will flow out of the Group
and share price of the Company and expected volatility of the
Company’s shares represent the key unobservant input in the
valuation of put option.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B DT

On 29 June 2015, Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing, Mr.
Long Weimin, the Company and the Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company, Qichang have, among others, entered
into an Amendment to Shareholders’ Agreement (the “Amendment”)
with the two Pre-IPO investors. Pursuant to the Amendment, the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company and the joint
ventures of the Company were no longer jointly or severally liable for
the obligations of Qichang for the put option. As a result, the Pre-IPO
investments which were initially classified as financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL of the Group were then reclassified to the
equity of the Company at fair value on 29 June 2015 amounting to
RMB199.0 million. The change of the fair value of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL between initial recognition date and 29 June
2015 amounting to RMB6.3 million was recognised in profit or loss
during the year. There will be no more change in the fair value of
financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2015 was RMB51.0 million, as compared to RMB21.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing an
increase of RMB29.5 million, or 137.5%. The increase in its
administrative expenses was primarily due to (i) share-based
payment expenses relating to the grant of the Pre-IPO Share Options
by the Company on 20 April 2015, together with the batch granted
on 10 July 2015, resulting in a charge of an amount of RMB14.6
million as administrative costs for the year ended 31 December
2015; (i) share-based payment expenses relating to the share-based
payment arrangement under equity incentive to the Group’s 020
team of an amount of RMB5.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2015; (jii) an increase in the administrative expenses of
RMB2.1 million associated with the operation of O20 platform; (iv)
an increase in audit and other professional fee from RMBO0.1 million
to RMB2.4 million; and (v) an increase in the administrative expenses
as a result of the listing in November 2015 and the expansion of
the Group’s business scale which is in line with the Group’s
growing GFA.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31
December 2015 were RMB7.6 million, as compared to RMB3.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 representing, an
increase of RMB3.8 million, or 102.3%. The increase in selling and
distribution expense was primarily due to an increase in its business
development and marketing expenses and other expenses as a
result of its marketing effort to expand its business in new cities and
the promotion fee of RMB3.6 million incurred for the O20 platform.

Listing Expenses

The Group’s listing expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to RMB35.9 million, which primarily consisted of the
service fees the Group paid to auditors and other professional parties
in connection with its preparation for the Global Offering.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately RMB5,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB1.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015, which was primarily due to interests
incurred on the bank borrowing amounted to RMB1.5 million.

Share Options

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company on 20 April 2015.

On 20 April 2015 and 10 July 2015, the Company granted 54.7
million and 25.3 million Pre-IPO share options to its employees and
Directors of the Company respectively, for which the exercise price is
HK$1.72 each. The Pre-IPO share option expense charged to the
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015
was RMB14.6 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B T

Income Tax Expenses

The Group’s income tax expense for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB24.8 million, as compared to RMB21.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase of RMB3.1
million, or 14.3%. The Group’s effective tax rate increased from
27.9% for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 70.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2015, which was primarily due to an increase in
the tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes as a
percentage of the profit before tax.

Net Profit for The Year and Adjusted Net Profit for
The Year

For the year ended 31 December 2015, as a result of the cumulative
effect of the above factors, the Group’s net profit was RMB10.6
million and its net profit margin was 2.5%.

The Group’s adjusted net profit was derived from its net profit for the
year excluding share-based payment expenses, change of the fair
value of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, listing expenses
and operating loss incurred for the O20 platform. As these cost
items are either non-recurring, non-cash spending and incurred from
new business line, the Group believes that separate analysis on the
impacts of these cost items adds clarity to the constituent part of the
Group’s results of operations and provides additional useful
information for investors to assess the operating performance of the
Group’s business. The adjusted net profit is an unaudited figure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table reconciles the Group’s adjusted net profit for the
years presented to the audited profit under HKFRS for the year
ended 31 December:
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Bk -

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Profit for the year under HKFRS IRIEE A WS R F N F)E 10,613 55,898

Add: piligE

Share-based payment expenses BRI 19,928 -
Change of the fair value of financial BEERBRATEFABGRNSRAEN

liabilities designated as at FVTPL NEEZE 6,343 -

Listing expenses X 35,881 3,980

Net loss incurred for the 020 platform 020 F B EERFEE 7,979 -

Adjusted net profit for the year KRAREFRNLF 80,744 59,878

Adjusted net profit for the year increased from RMB59.9 million in the
corresponding period of 2014 to RMB80.7 million, representing an
increase of 34.8%

Deferred Taxation

As of 31 December 2015, the deferred tax assets that resulted from
the allowance on doubtful debt amounted to RMB9.9 million.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group maintains a strong and healthy financial position. The
Group’s principal sources of funds to finance the working capital,
capital expenditure and other capital requirements were internally
generated by cash flows and bank loans. As of 31 December 2015,
net working capital (calculated as current assets less current
liabilities) was RMB421.7 million, representing an increase of
RMB389.8 million as compared with RMB31.9 million as of 31
December 2014. The current ratios (calculated as current assets/
current liabilities) are 3.1 times and 1.2 times as of 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T

The following table summarises the consolidated statements of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December:

TRANE12A31 AL FEEARSRERN
BE -

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARETT

Net cash (used in) from operating activities £ E &) (FTA) FT5IR & /F58 (921) 75,037
Net cash used in investing activities REESRAE S FE (79,723) (52,390)
Net cash from (used in) financing activites EE& EEIFTS (FTA) IR & F5E 454,958 (1,775)

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s total cash including pledged
bank deposits increased by 680.2% to RMB511.9 million from
RMB65.6 million as of 31 December 2014. Among the total cash,
RMB62.8 million (31 December 2014: Nil) of restricted bank deposits
was pledged to guarantee the drawdown of loans by the Group in
order to transfer the Group’s cash from offshore to onshore entities.
As of 31 December 2015, the Group had total bank borrowings of
RMB29.6 million which were variable rate borrowings and
denominated in RMB, among which, RMB20.0 million (31 December
2014: Nil) of it was secured by the Group’s bank deposit.

The Group principally focused on the operation in the PRC. Except
for the bank deposits denominated in foreign currencies, the Group
was not subject to any other material risk directly relating to the
foreign exchange fluctuation. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
despite the depreciation of RMB against USD and HKD, the
Directors expected any fluctuation of the RMB exchange rate would
not materially and adversely affect the operations of the Group. The
management will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take prudent measures to minimize the currency
translation risk.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is defined as total borrowings net of pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash divided by total equity. As of
31 December 2015, the Group was in a strong financial position with
a net cash position amounting to RMB482.3 million (2014: RMB53.6
million). Accordingly, no gearing ratio is presented.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As of 31 December 2015, amount of RMB62.8 million (31 December
2014: Nil) of restricted bank deposits was pledged to guarantee the
drawdown of loans by the Group in order to transfer the Group’s
cash from offshore to onshore entities.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2015.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 1,488 (2014
821) employees. In order to enhance the morale and productivity of
employees, employees are remunerated based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practices. Compensation policies
and packages of management staff and functional heads are being
reviewed on a yearly basis. In addition to basic salary, performance
related salary may also be awarded to employees based on internal
performance evaluation. Moreover, the Company adopted a share
option scheme in April 2015 which allows the Directors to grant
share options to, among other persons, Directors and employees of
the Group in order to retain elite personnel to stay with the Group
and to provide incentives for their contribution to the Group. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group granted an
aggregate of 80,000,000 share options to certain Directors and
employees of the Group.

The Group also invests in continuing education and training
programmes for management staff and other employees with a view
to upgrading their skills and knowledge. These training courses
comprise internal courses run by the management of the Group and
external courses provided by professional trainers and range from
technical training for butlers to financial and administrative trainings
for management staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B T

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2015. In
addition, the Group had no significant investments held during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections headed
“Our Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 13 November 2015 (the
“Prospectus”) and announcement of memorandum of understanding
in relation to a proposed acquisition of a China-based property
management company dated 23 March 2016, the Group has no
specific plan for major investment or acquisition for major capital
assets or other businesses. However, the Group will continue to
identify new opportunities for business development.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND
LISTING OF SHARES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 5 January 2015 and
became the holding company of the Group on 15 April 2015. Details
of the corporate reorganisation are set out in the section headed
“History, Reorganization and Corporate Structure” in the Prospectus.
The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were successfully listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 25 November 2015 (the
“Listing Date”).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

On 25 November 2015, the Company issued 200,000,000 new
shares of nominal value of HK$0.01 each in connection with the
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange (the “IPO”). The net
proceeds after deducting the underwriting commission and issuing
expenses arising from the IPO amounted to HK$289.1 million
(equivalent to RMB238.2 million).

Up to 31 December 2015, RMB8.0 million has been utilised for the
development of the 020 platform. The remaining net proceeds of
RMB230.2 million were deposited with certain licensed financial
institutions as of 31 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results and business operations
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties, some of
which are inherent to the Group’s business and some from
external sources.

Industry Risk

The China residential property management industry is highly
competitive and fragmented. Competition may intensify as the
Group’s competitors expand their product or service offerings into or
as new competitors enter the Group’s existing or new markets. If the
Group does not compete successfully against existing and new
competitors, the Group may not be able to renew its existing
contracts upon expiration or fail to win the bid for new projects.

In the Group’s 020 business, the Group faces intense competition
in the market for customers, merchants and suppliers, and the
Group expects competition to continue to intensify in the future. In
particular, the Group may encounter more intense competition from
developers with full-fledged property management services capacity
when the Group seeks to extend the Group’s O20 business into
properties managed by them or explore opportunities in markets
where they have strong influence since they may already have their
own Q20 platform.

Increased competition in the property management industry and the
020 industry may result in reduced pricing for the Group’s services
and a decrease in the Group’s market share.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of responding promptly to
market changes within the industry sectors it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such
changes accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s financial condition, results, and business operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B T

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to
various financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks.

The Group’s earnings and financial position may be adversely
affected by movements in foreign exchange rates and interest rate.
In particular, any depreciation in the Group’s bank balances
denominated in foreign currency may affect its net profit. The Group
will closely monitor the relative foreign exchange positions of its
assets and liabilities and allocate its holdings of different currencies
accordingly in order to minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In the management of
liquidity risk, the Group’s management monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its
customers. However, the Group had no concentration of credit risk
in respect of trade receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of customers, who are residents and property developers in the
communities managed by the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. LIU JIAN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 48, is the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer of the Company and was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 5 January 2015. Being one of the first
members of the Group, Mr. Liu founded Guangdong Zhong Ao
Property Management Company Limited (“Zhong Ao Property”) with
Ms. Chen Zhuo in September 2005. Mr. Liu was appointed as the
sole director of Zhong Ao Property in September 2005 and has been
primarily responsible for overall operation and management, strategic
planning and business development. Mr. Liu plays a key role in the
Group’s business development and has led its business expansion
from Guangdong province to other parts of China. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Liu worked at Guilin Park Hotel Co., Ltd. (FEMEE#ER &
BRAR]) from May 1990 to August 1994 and his last position held
was manager. From September 1994 to March 1999, he worked at
Guilin Royal Gardens Hotel Co., Ltd. (FE## 388 /5 B R 2 &) and
his last position held was manager. From 1999 to December 2003,
Mr. Liu served as general manager of Guangzhou Olympic Garden
Property Co. Ltd. (/MBI BIEE YA F]) and from February
2004 to June 2005, as general manager of Nanguo Aoyuan Property
Company (g Bl B & ¥ % A 7)), both companies being subsidiaries
of Guangdong Yabo Property Service Company Limited (& 5 # 18
) 2 R % A R A &) (“Guangdong Yabo”). Mr. Liu graduated from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (2 1 32 T K £)
with a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1988. In 2008, Mr. Liu
attained a master’s degree in business administration from Asia
International Open University (Macau).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EELSREEEMN

MS. CHEN ZHUO
Executive director and vice president

Ms. Chen Zhuo, aged 38, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
5 January 2015. Ms. Chen joined the Group as vice president when
Zhong Ao Property was established in September 2005. As a
founder and a member of the core management team of the Group,
she has been primarily responsible for overall operation and
management, strategic planning and business development. Ms.
Chen served as deputy general manager of Guangdong Yabo from
August 2002 to March 2005. Ms. Chen received a college degree
from Sun Yat-sen University (7 LA £2) in 1999, majoring in business
management. Ms. Chen obtained the qualification of a property
management manager in 2000 from the Ministry of Construction of
the PRC.

MR. LIANG BING
Executive director and vice president

Mr. Liang Bing, aged 43, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
5 January 2015. Mr. Liang joined the Group as vice president in
September 2005. As a member of the Group’s core management
team, he has been primarily responsible for overall operation and
management, strategic planning and business development. Mr.
Liang served as deputy general manager of Guangdong Yabo from
May 2002 to June 2005. Mr. Liang graduated and attained a
bachelor’s degree in environmental engineering from Hunan
University ($1E3AE2) located in Hunan, the PRC in July 1996. He
obtained the qualification as a general agent in June 1997 from
Administration of Industry and Commerce of Guangzhou Municipality
(BMHIETHE®RERB). He later obtained a master’s degree in
business administration for senior management from Sun Yat-sen
University (FF 1L KZ2) in 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. LONG WEIMIN
Executive director and vice president

Mr. Long Weimin, aged 52, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 5
January 2015. Mr. Long joined the Group as vice president in June
2008. As a member of the Group’s core management team, he has
been primarily responsible for overall operation and management,
strategic planning and business development. Mr. Long has 14 years
of experience in the hospitality industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Long served as a deputy general manager at Guangxi Nanning
Fenghuang Lodge (& 7 7 % Bl &l & £8) from November 2001 to
January 2004, as a deputy general manager at Purui Hotspring Hotel
(B8 R B JE) from 2003 to 2007 and as a general manager at
Luoyang Mudou International Hotel Co. Ltd. (& F5 58 &8 Bl B &R JE B
R 2~ 7A]) from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Long graduated and attained a
diploma from Guangxi Radio and TV University (7 & TR AE)
in 1982.

MR. WEI ZHE
Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Zhe, aged 45, joined the Company and was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on 17 April 2015. Mr. Wei
has over 20 years of experience in both investment and operational
management in China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wei served as
corporate finance manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now part of
PricewaterhouseCoopers) from 1995 to 1998 and as the head of
investment banking at Orient Securities Company Limited from 1998
to 2000. Mr. Wei was a vice chairman, from 2002 to 2006, and a
consultant, from 2007 to 2011, of China Chain Store & Franchise
Association. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Wei was also the chief
representative for Kingfisher’'s China sourcing office, Kingfisher Asia
Limited. Mr. Wei joined Alibaba Group and served as senior vice
president of the B2B Division, from November 2006 to January
2007, and president of the B2B Division and executive vice-president
of Alibaba Group, from February 2007 to February 2011. He was an
executive director and chief executive officer of Alibaba.com Limited,
a leading worldwide B2B e-commerce company listed on the Stock
Exchange in 2007, from October 2007 to February 2011. He was
voted as one of “China’s Best CEOs” by FinanceAsia magazine in
2010. He has served as a director of Vision Knight Capital, a private
equity investment fund since June 2011. Mr. Wei graduated from
Shanghai International Studies University with a bachelor’s degree
in international business management in July 1993. He also
completed the corporate finance program at London Business
School in June 1998.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EELSREEEMN

Mr. Wei was a non-executive director of HSBC Bank (China)
Company Limited from April 2007 to February 2011 and The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from January
2008 to February 2011. He was an independent non-executive
director of PCCW Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00008), from November 2011 to
May 2012 and was re-designated as a non-executive director in May
2012. He is currently a non-executive director of PCCW Limited.

MS. WU QIMIN
Non-executive Director

Ms. Wu Qimin, aged 45, joined the Company and was appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company on 17 April 2015. Ms. Wu
joined E-house Capital (% /& &7 in 2008 and currently serves as
co-president of Jupai Holdings Limited (NYSE: JP) and president of
E-house Capital. Ms. Wu graduated from Shanghai Institute of Urban
Construction (_E /& 3 1 i 5% £ B7) with a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering in 1992. She later obtained a master’s degree in
construction economics and management from Tongji University ([A]
JEAER) in 1999. She is currently a director of Shanghai Trendzone
Construction Decoration Group Co., Ltd. ( F/8 & SREEEMEE R
7 B R A 7)) (stock code: 603030), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

MR. LAM YIU POR
Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Yiu Por, aged 39, joined the Company and was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company on 17 April 2015. Mr.
Lam has more than 16 years of experience in finance and
accounting. On 18 November 2013, Mr. Lam joined L’sea Resources
International Holdings Limited (F]/8 & J& BIpX 1% A& B BR A 7)) (stock
code: 00195), and is currently serving as the vice president and chief
financial officer of L’sea Resources International Holdings Limited.
Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in November 1997. He is also a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a chartered financial analyst of the Chartered
Financial Analyst Institute and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of Denox
Environment & Technology Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange) (stock code: 1452), he was an independent non-
executive director of Yat Sing Holdings Limited ( B A 12 AR A A])
(stock code: 03708) during the period of December 2014 to March
2016 and was an independent non-executive director of GR
Properties Limited (El#iihZ= B R A7) (stock code: 00108), during
the period of June 2012 to February 2014, both companies which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

MR. LEE KWOK TUNG LOUIS
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, aged 48, joined the Company and was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 5 November 2015. Mr. Lee has gained over 23 years of
experience with unlisted groups, listed groups and professional firms
in finance, accounting and auditing since 1993. Mr. Lee graduated
from Macquarie University, Australia with a bachelor’s degree in
Economics in April 1993. Mr. Lee has been a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since October 1999 and a certified practicing
accountant of the CPA Australia since June 1996.

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of CGN
Mining Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 01164) and an independent non-
executive director of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited, a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 08238).

MR. ZHANG WEILUN
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Zhang Weilun, aged 43, joined the Company and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 5
November 2015. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as an
assistant project manager and project manager at Shimizu
Corporation (J&7KZERAR N2 4L) from June 1996 to November 1997
and from December 1997 to May 1998 respectively. During 1999 to
2004, he successively served as a general manager of Nanguo
Olympic Garden (7 MR UC 55 fE &), a president, vice-chairman
and director of Wuhan Chengcheng Cultural Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. (BVZ s Ak X1 & B & B R 9 B R 2 7l) (later changed to
Wuhan Aoyuan City Development Co., Ltd. (&% 52 &, i 3 & i 15
AR A F]) and then Wuhan Wanhong Group Co., Ltd. (FZ&EBE
% 15 A BR /A &) (stock code: 600681), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, an executive vice president and a
director of Aoyuan Group Limited (£ [E % B B R 2 ). Mr. Zhang
has been the chairman and general manager of Guangzhou Willsun
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (& )l # % & % & R 2 7)) since 2005. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical
Engineering (& & 7K F & 71 KX £) with a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering in 1993.
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MR. YUAN BOYIN
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Yuan Boyin, aged 50, joined the Company and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 5
November 2015. Prior to joining the Group, from July 1997 to
October 2000, Mr. Yuan served as the managing director of China
Resources Supermarket (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (ZEEBAA TS (FFIN) A
R A &]). From November 2000 to May 2007, he was employed by
B&Q (China) Investment Co., Ltd. (B % /& () HE AR A7) and
held management positions of vice president of operations, vice
president of buying, executive vice president of commercial and
executive vice president of B2B business. From June 2007 to August
2011, he was employed by China Vanke Co., Ltd. (BRI ¥ HE
R & 7)) and his last position held was group executive vice
president. From August 2011 to December 2012, he served as the
president of Red Star Macalline Group Corporation Ltd. (4L £ 38/ 5E
REEB K% AR AR From January 2013 to August 2013, he
served as the chief executive officer of Shanghai Red Star Macalline
Investment Co., Ltd. (E/8 4 £ Z L EE K & B R A F]). Mr. Yuan
graduated from Fudan University (1€ B K 2) with a bachelor’s degree
in Science in 1985. He later obtained a master’s degree in
engineering from Tsinghua University (% A22) in 1987. Mr. Yuan
was a director and an executive chairman of Scintronix Corporation
Ltd., a company which was listed on the Singapore Exchange, from
November 2013 to February 2014.
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MR. WU HAIBING
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Wu Haibing, aged 43, joined the Company and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 5
November 2015. Mr. Wu has over 15 years of experience in finance.
Mr. Wu worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers in the United States
from May 2000 to February 2006. He later worked as a senior
manager in the assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company from February 2006 to
November 2007. Since October 2007, he has been serving as the
chief financial officer of Plateno Hotels Group (formerly known as 7
Days Group Holdings Limited). Mr. Wu graduated from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University (_E /& 22 i@ X £) with a bachelor’s degree in
economics in July 1994 and received a master’s degree in business
administration from Michigan State University in May 2000. Mr. Wu is
currently a director of Country Style Cooking Restaurant Chain Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange and an
independent non-executive director of Dongpeng Holdings Co., Ltd.
(BRMBE R AR 7 AR A7) (stock code: 03386), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

MR. CHAN KONG
Vice president

Mr. Chan Kong, aged 67, joined the Group as a vice president in
April 2008. Prior to joining the Group, he served as an executive
housekeeper at Guilin Riverside Resort, China (& %5 & £E) from
February 1987 to February 1988. From February 1988 to January
2002, Mr. Chan worked with Macau CTS Hotel Management
(International) Limited (2 F9 A ik (B B2 ) B JE B I AR A A). He
joined as a project coordinator in 1988 and was later assigned by a
secondment to Hotel Universal Guilin in the capacity of an executive
housekeeper. He was subsequently promoted and served as general
manager of Hotel Universal Guilin and general manager of Hotel
Metropole, Macau (29 5 #0)EJE) and Xi'an Eastern Haojing Hotel
(FAZHE A 5BE)E). From 2003 to 2004, he served as a manager
at Man Wah Dongguan Hotel (522 X AH JE).
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MR. LEUNG YIK MAN LAWRENCE
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Leung Yik Man Lawrence, aged 42, joined the Group in 2015
and has been appointed as chief financial officer of the Group. He is
primarily responsible for corporate finance, finance reporting and
investor relations management affairs of the Group. Mr. Leung has
over 19 years of experience with unlisted groups, listed groups and
professional firms in corporate finance, auditing and accounting. Mr.
Leung also worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1997 to 2005,
where the last position he served was manager. Mr. Leung
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 1996. He is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

MR. LUO TAO
Chief Executive Officer of Hangzhou Yidao

Mr. Luo Tao, aged 29, joined the Group in April 2015 and was
appointed as a chief executive officer of Hangzhou Yidao Information
Technology Company Limited (“Hangzhou Yidao”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1 April 2015 and is
responsible for overseeing the development and operation of our
020 platform. Prior to joining the Group, he served as a senior
business development manager at Hangzhou Research Center of
NetEase Corporation (48 5 #11 J1 #f 7t Bt ) from June 2009 to May
2011. He joined Zhejiang Tmall Technology Co. Ltd. (/T X5 k1ir
BBR A 7)), subsidiary of Alibaba Group Holding Limited, in May 2011
and served as an operational expert until May 2015. Mr. Luo
graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (2
FR R A Z) with a bachelor’s degree in internet communications in
July 2009.
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MS. XIANG YAN
Sale Director

Ms. Xiang Yan, aged 30, joined the Group in October 2005. She is
Sales Director of the Group. Ms. Xiang graduated from Jinan University
(BRI K2) and obtained a diploma in property management.

MR. YU HO MING
Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Yu Ho Ming, aged 38, has been appointed as the financial
controller and company secretary of the Company on 10 April 2015.
He is primarily responsible for accounting, financial management and
company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Yu has over 14 years
of experience in auditing, advisory accounting and financial
management. Mr. Yu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He obtained his honours diploma in
accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (currently known as
Hong Kong Shue Yan University) and his bachelor’s degree in
Accounting from Upper lowa University, and he was awarded a
Master of Finance from Curtin University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company is
pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards
of corporate governance of the Company to ensure that formal and
transparent procedures are in place to protect and maximise the
interests of the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
as its code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company applied and complied
with all the code provisions of the CG Code since the listing of
shares of the Company on 25 November 2015 to 31 December
2015, except for certain deviations as specified and explained with
considered reasons for such deviation.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in their dealings in Company’s securities. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code since the listing of shares of the Company on 25
November 2015 to 31 December 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and oversees the Group’s businesses.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable
to Directors and employees; and

o To review the Company’s compliance with the GC Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board currently comprises a combination of four executive
directors, three non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. There is a strong independent element
on the Board, to ensure the independence and objectivity of
the Board’s decision making process as well as the
thoroughness and impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the
management.

The Board possesses, both as individual Directors and
collectively, appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to
discharge its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In
addition, the Board collectively has adequate knowledge and
expertise relevant to each of the material business activities
that the Company pursues and the associated risks in order to
ensure effective governance and oversight.

Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business, professional
expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this
Annual Report.
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The Board members have no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) with
each other.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
consisted of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 5 January 2015)

Ms. Chen Zhuo (appointed on 5 January 2015)

Mr. Liang Bing (appointed on 5 January 2015)

Mr. Long Weimin (appointed on 5 January 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wei Zhe (appointed on 17 April 2015)
Ms. Wu Qimin (appointed on 17 April 2015)
Mr. Lam Yiu Por (appointed on 17 April 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (appointed on 5 November 2015)
Mr. Zhang Weilun (appointed on 5 November 2015)

Mr. Yuan Boyin (appointed on 5 November 2015)

Mr. Wu Haibing (appointed on 5 November 2015)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, six board meetings
were held. Prior notices convening the board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters to be
discussed. At the meetings, the Directors were provided with
the relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes for the
board meetings.

The executive directors, with the assistance from the senior
management, form the core management team of the
Company. The executive directors have the overall
responsibility for formulating the business strategies and
development plan of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) and the senior management
personnel are responsible for supervising and executing the
plans of the Group.
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In compliance with Rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive directors have appropriate and
sufficient diversity, industry or finance experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of the Shareholders. One of the independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis has over 22
years of experience with unlisted groups, listed groups and
professional firms in finance, accounting and auditing since
1993. Mr. Lee is a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a certified
practicing accountant of the CPA Australia.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent
non-executive directors has submitted a written statement to
the Stock Exchange confirming their independence and has
undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange as soon as
practicable if there is any subsequent change of circumstances
which may affect their independence. In addition, the Company
has also received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors in respect of their
independence. Based on such confirmations, the Board
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
arranged a training session on ongoing obligations, general
corporate governance requirements, the duties and
responsibilities of directors of a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange under applicable laws, rules and
regulations, including but not limited to Listing Rules to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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The Company has received from each of the Directors their
record of training for the year ended 31 December 2015.
According to the records maintained by the Company, the
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training that the Directors received for the year is summarized

as follows:

Attending training

sessions
Name of Directors EEHA HEEIRE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BlsE sk (EEFITHABER) 4
Ms. Chen Zhuo PRE 2+ v
Mr. Liang Bing RESAE v
Mr. Long Weimin BERREA v
Non-executive directors FHHITESE
Mr. Wei Zhe wHEEE 4
Ms. Wu Qimin Riaga L v
Mr. Lam Yiu Por REER Jo A& v
Independent non-executive directors BUINTESE
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis TR LA v/
Mr. Zhang Weilun SR 4 fm S A v
Mr. Yuan Boyin RI{ARE A v
Mr. Wu Haibing RGEREE v

In addition, all Directors have been given guideline materials
regarding duties and responsibility of being a director, relevant
laws, regulations and rules applicable to directors of listed
companies.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman and chief executive officer are two key aspects of the
management of a company. Chairman is responsible for providing
leadership for the board and management of the board while chief
executive officer is responsible for day-to-day management of
business. Clear division of these responsibilities should be in place to
ensure a balance power and authority. The code provision A.2.1 of
CG Code which provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

During the year, Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation from the code
provision A.2.1 of CG Code.
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The Company consider that having Mr. Liu acting as both the
chairman and chief executive officer will provide a strong and
consistent leadership to the Group and allow for more effective
strategic planning and management of the Group. Further in view of
Mr. Liu’s experience in the industry, personal profile and role in the
Group and historical development of the Group, the Group considers
it is to the benefit of the Group in the business prospects that Mr. Liu
continues to act as both the chairman and chief executive officer
after the Listing. Therefore, the Company currently has no intention
to separate the functions of chairman and chief executive officer.

The code provision A.2.7 of CG Code requires the chairman of the
Board to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) without the
executive directors present. As the Company was listed on the Stock
Exchange in November 2015, the chairman did not hold a meeting
with the non-executive directors without the executive directors
present during the year. This constitutes a deviation from the code
provision A.2.7 of CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors have been appointed for a term of three
years commencing from 17 April 2015 and the independent non-
executive directors have been appointed for a term of three years
commencing from 5 November 2015. All Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Company or
the respective Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established an audit committee on 5 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rule and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The audit committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Lee,
Kwok Tung Louis, Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr. Yuan Boyin and Mr. Wu
Haibing, all being independent non-executive directors. Mr. Lee,
Kwok Tung Louis is the chairman of the audit committee and is the
independent non-executive director with the appropriate professional
qualifications. The primary duties of the audit committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group, oversee the audit process and perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The audit committee has been satisfied with the review of the audit
scope, process and effectiveness, independence of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and thus recommended the Board for the approval of the
2015 financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no meeting was held
by the audit committee after the Listing Date. One meeting with
100% attendance by all audit committee’s members was held in
March 2016.

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee has five members,
namely Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr. Lee, Kwok Tung Louis, Mr. Yuan
Boyin, Mr. Wu Haibing and Ms. Chen Zhuo. Mr. Zhang Weilun is the
chairman of the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee are to establish and review the policy and
structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and approve recommendations on management
remuneration.
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The remuneration committee meets to determine the policy for the
remuneration of Directors and assess the performance of executive
directors and approving the terms of executive directors’ service
contracts. In determining the remuneration for Directors, the
remuneration committee takes into consideration factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the desirability of performance-
based remuneration. During the year ended 31 December 2015, no
meeting was held by the remuneration committee after the Listing
Date. One meeting with 100% attendance by all remuneration
committee’s members was held in March 2016.

The Company has established a nomination committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The nomination
committee has five members, namely Mr. Liu Jian, Mr. Lee, Kwok
Tung Louis, Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr. Yuan Boyin and Mr. Wu Haibing.
Mr. Liu is the chairman of the nomination committee. The primary
duties of the nomination committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors of the Company.

The nomination committee meets to discuss the procedures and
criteria which should be adopted by them in nominating candidates
for directorship and agreed that such criteria should include the
candidates’ professional background, their experiences and their
past track record with other listed companies (if any).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no meeting was held by
the nomination committee after the Listing Date.
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EEERME

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT

MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at various meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the table

EENEBNHELTR

TREVNSESHNEZE2015F12 A3 BILEE
NERITSESHAN HERLEE

below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board committee Committee committee
Exg BEREES SMEES REZEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Rk (EEE
Chief Executive Officer)! TTEAB)" 4/6 N/AAE N/AAE N/ATE
Ms. Chen Zhuo' PReE 1 6/6 N/ATEH N/ATEH N/ATEF
Mr. Liang Bing' RESAE! 6/6 N/ATTE A N/ATE A N/ATE A
Mr. Long Weimin' EARLE 4/6 N/ATEF N/ATEFA N/ATEFA
Non-executive directors HFNITEE
Mr. Wei Zhe? Bk 4/5 N/ATRiE A N/ATEF N/ATEF
Ms. Wu Qimin® REgg L 4/5 N/A 3 A N/A 3 A N/A 38 A
Mr. Lam Yiu Por? MR S A2 4/5 N/ATEH N/ATEFA N/ATEFA
Independent non-executive directors BUHNTEE
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis® TR ES 1/2 N/AZiE N/ATiE A N/A T
Mr. Zhang Weilun® RiEmEES 1/2 N/A i N/A T A N/A T~ A
Mr. Yuan Boyin® RIAREAES 1/2 N/A i N/A i N/A i F
Mr. Wu Haibing?® RBRgEAES 1/2 N/A 3 A N/A 3 A N/A N5 A
Notes: MIEE -

ets MErgt RELEREBREEA
2015F 1 A5 ARREZEANTES -

1 Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin were 1
appointed as executive director with effect from 5 January 2015.

BEEE  REBLERMHEREEB 20156548
17 ARERERFRITES -

2 Mr. Wei Zhe, Ms. Wu Qimin and Mr. Lam Yiu Por were appointed as non- 2
executive director with effect from 17 April 2015.

3 Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr. Yuan Boyin and Mr. Wu 3
Haibing were appointed as independent non-executive director with effect
from 5 November 2015.

TEMELE  REMELE  REREERREEE
H£BH2015F 11 AsHBREZTABYIENTES -
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION G
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total fees paid/payable & ZE 2015412 A31 HILEE - ghE%) - =R

in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by MR AEEREZENIFEZERGED
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are set out below: AR EBARERSET

RMB’000
ARETIT
Audit service ZER
Audit of the annual consolidated financial statements ERFESESVIERE 2,430
Accountants’ Report RN RS 7,750
Non-audit services X R
Internal control review A BB 1 22 54 431

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
the accounts of the Group and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and the management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other Board decisions.

A statement by the Company’s independent external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities is included in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the chairman, Board and Board
committees by developing good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The Company Secretary of the Company was an
employee of the Company and the Company did not engage an
external service provider as its company secretary. The Company
Secretary took no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board should ensure that the Group maintains sound and
effective internal controls, including adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the asset of the Group.
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During the year, the Company has engaged an external internal
control advisory firm to carry out a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system and make recommendations for improvement
of the internal control system. The Board considered that the
Group’s internal control system is adequate and effective.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Article of Association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of the requisition the Board fail to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The annual report and the Company’s website provide the contact
details of the Company. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing. Shareholders may
also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Cayman Islands
Company Laws or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph to convene an EGM for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continue to maintaining a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and investors through diversified
communication channels, including (i) printed copies of corporate
communications (including but not limited to annual reports, interim
reports, notice of meetings, circulars and proxy forms) required
under the Listing Rules, and shareholders can choose to receive
such documents using electronic means through the Company’s
website (www.gdzawy.com); (i) the annual general meeting provides
a forum for shareholders to raise questions with the Board: (jii) the
Company’s website contains the announcements, latest data and
information of the Group, so that the shareholders and investors can
access and inspect the information of the Company in a timely
manner; (iv) analyse briefings are arranged from time to time to
update shareholders and investors on the Group’s performance.

The Company has not made any changes to the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Associations on or after the Listing
Date. A latest version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association is also available on the website of the Company and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting its annual report together
with audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the provision of property
management services and property management consulting
services. Further discussion and analysis of these activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the business and a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the financial year 2015, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this Annual Report.
The above sections form part of this report.

During the year, the Company has complied with all the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of
the Group. The Group has maintained a good relationship with its
employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Environment protection is a key focus for the Group. The Group is
committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation that
pays close attention to conserving resources for its operation and
raise environmental awareness within the Group. During the year, the
key environmental impacts from the Group’s operations relate to
office energy and paper consumption. The Group strives to minimize
any possible impacts or harms to the environment by, among others,
reducing unnecessary usage of paper, saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. When
providing services, the Group would also consider the possible
environmental impacts of such plans. Furthermore, the Group is
certified under ISO14001 environment management system.

The Group obtain the certification from OHAS18001 occupational
health and safety management system. The Group prides itself on
providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment and it
values the health and well-being of its staff. Adequate arrangements,
training and guidelines have been implemented to ensure its working
environment is healthy and safe.
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The Group is committed to the professional and personal
development and growth of all employees and considers training and
development a critical continuous process. Many on the-job and
other training courses and programmes are provided to help
employees maintain and develop their skills and professionalism.
Structured training programmes including seminars are offered to
staff with the objective of grooming and unleashing their full potential,
supporting organisational development and facilitating team
synergies. Employees are encouraged to take advantage of these
programmes in order to equip themselves with the skills and
knowledge for expanded career opportunities within the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 75 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil)
and a special dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). (“Proposed Final and Special
Dividends”) to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 22 June 2016.

The Proposed Final and Special Dividends will be subject to
shareholders’ approval at the Company’s forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Proposed Final and Special Dividends will be
distributed on or about 8 July 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past four financial years is set out on page 176.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group’s property,
plant and equipment are set out in notes 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws of Cayman Islands, distributable
reserves of the Company as of 31 December 2015 amounted to
RMB426.0 million (2014 Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were as follows:

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 5 January 2015)

Ms. Chen Zhuo (appointed on 5 January 2015)

Mr. Liang Bing (appointed on 5 January 2015)

Mr. Long Weiman (appointed on 5 January 2015)

Mr. Wei Zhe (appointed on 17 April 2015)
Ms. Wu Qimin (appointed on 17 April 2015)
Mr. Lam Yiu Por (appointed on 17 April 2015)

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (appointed on 5 November 2015)
Mr. Zhang Weilun (appointed on 5 November 2015)

Mr. Yuan Boyin (appointed on 5 November 2015)

Mr. Wu Haibing (appointed on 5 November 2015)

Pursuant to Article 83.(3) of the Article of Association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr.
Long Weimin who have been appointed by the Board shall hold
office until the annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Articles 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Wei Zhe, Ms. Wu Qimin and Mr. Lam Yiu Por shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date, which is 25 November 2015, renewable
automatically until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of
the initial term or any time thereafter.

Each of the Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term
of three years commencing from 17 April 2015 until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
Company or the respective Director.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from 5 November
2015, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company and until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either the Company or
the respective Director.

Save as aforesaid, no director has an unexpired service contract with
the Group which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance) in force for
the benefit of the Directors throughout the year 2015 and as at the
date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant to which the
Company shall indemnify any Director against any liability, loss
suffered and expenses incurred by the Director in connection with
any legal proceedings in which he/she is involved by reason of being
a Director, except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the fraud or dishonesty of
the Directors. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis. During the year 2015, no
claims were made against the Director.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Based on such confirmations, the
Company still considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As of 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or which otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERESTHRAERRG REER
7 Ry 5

R2015F 12 A31H EFRHBBARKRF
SEMEEEE(EERBEBENESNERS
M AREAERE) ([ 5 R AREEF] 1) B XVED) Bk
RGP HEIRIEES LA E GG 352 1578
GERNELMATLE: - KiRE ERAIATE L™
BTAESETBHFRINRETRI AN AR
A MBS R FTEIRER N T ¢

RAR QB IR R AR IR 7 R R 2

Total of
Interest in Interest in shares and  Approximate
ordinary underlying underlying percentage

Name of Director Nature of interest shares shares shares of interest

AZERN  REBREH 13 K A8 BAER
EEnE EEME R R B4 % Bl
Mr. Liu Jian Founder of discretionary trust, 432,000,000 1,809,000@ 433,809,000 54.23%
Elf=pite Interest in controlled corporation

PREFTEIA - I EEER

Ms. Chen Zhuo Beneficial owner - 1,809,000? 1,809,000 0.23%
BReE L0t BE=EBA
Mr. Liang Bing Beneficial owner - 1,809,000@ 1,809,000 0.23%
RESEE EnEAA
Mr. Long Weimin Beneficial owner - 1,809,000? 1,809,000 0.23%
BRERRE EnEAA
Mr. Wei Zhe Interest in controlled corporation 93,272,000© 16,000,000 109,272,000 13.66%
LS ZEEEER
Mr. Lam Yiu Por Beneficial owner - 2,063,511@ 2,063,511 0.26%

MEER ST
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Notes:

(1) Dawngate Limited (“Dawngate”) holds 40% of the issued share capital of
Qichang International Limited (“Qichang”) and is taken to be interested in all
the shares of Qichang and all the Shares of the Company held by Qichang
for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO. The issued share capital of
Dawngate is held as to as to 15% by Mr. Liu and 85% by Hilton Assets
(PTC) Limited as trustee of the Liu Family Trust. Being the settlor of the Liu
Family Trust, Mr. Liu is taken to be interested in all the Shares of the
Company that the Liu Family Trust is interested under Part XV of the SFO

2) These interests in underlying shares represent interests in Pre-IPO share
option granted on 20 April 2015 under the Company’s Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. Please refer to note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements for further details of the share option granted.

) Central Oscar Holdings Limited (“Central Oscar”) is held as to approximately
95.5% and 4.5% by Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund Il, L.P. and Vision
Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund Il, L.P. respectively, both of which
are managed by Vision Knight Capital (China) GP IlI, L.P. (“VKC”), an
exempted limited partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the general partner of which is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. VKC (China)
GP Il Ltd. is wholly-owned by VKC Cayman Il Ltd. Both of VKC (China) GP
Il Ltd and VKC Cayman Il Ltd are limited companies incorporated under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. VKC Cayman Il Ltd is owned as 50% by Mr.
Wei Zhe and 50% by Mr. Zhu Daming. Under the SFO, each of VKC, VKC
(China) GP Il Ltd, VKC Cayman Il Ltd, Mr. Wei Zhe and Mr. Zhu Daming is
deemed to be interested in the 93,272,000 Shares of the Company held by
Central Oscar.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debenture of the Company or any
associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the written resolution of the Shareholders passed on 20
April 2015, the Company granted the Pre-IPO Share Option to 380
eligible participants to subscribe for 80,000,000 shares as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Further details of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the share options granted are
disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into with any individual, firm or body corporate during
the year.
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1) BEERAB(EE]D)FEMEREERAF (R
1) BETRAN40% @ RIEFEFRPAEEFIEXV
5 BERRARREMBRDEBEMFEA
DRI P AR - BENSEITRABSILE
5  15% & f Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited JA 2 X 5
BEEENITABNIEESSY% - RIFZHFLBEE
BIEEXVES - 2L H ARRREETHNEIA -
RAERBRRRETHEEREOBAQBRN
B

@ EHERHEBROAOESEREAARERAAMAEE
AIREARAEET B 201544 A20 BRI BN A%
EAERERES FHECEREBRENFS  $F2
B4R A M H R M sE 40 ©

(3)  Central Oscar Holdings Limited ([ Central Oscar|) %
Al £ Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. &
Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund I,
LP.#8495.5% % 4.5% * MRI& ¥ Vision Knight
Capital (China) GP Il. LP. ([VKC]) (RIRERSH S
FREAMNERCERETERLE)EE  H—K
& % A BVKC (China) GP Il Ltd ° VKC (China) GP I
Ltd. 758 VKC Cayman Il Ltd. 2 & #H ° VKC (China)
GP Il Ltd &2 VKC Cayman Il Ltd BIRIER S B &%=
MK HABR AR > VKC Cayman Il Ld A&THE
A 5 50% % #E & B Zhu Daming 5t 4 ¥ 5 50% %
o RIBEEF REEEG - VKC » VKC (China) GP I
Ltd ~ VKC Cayman Il Ltd * 7 # % 4 & Zhu Daming
% 4 & W5 AR & A Central Oscar B #593,272,000 & 72
RAIRMD P AR

B Fit i EEIN  N2015F 128318 - ifmE
FEHBE AR KRB ST AR EERRGD
RN REEPHEA TR SAR -

RRANBRES S

RIERREMR2015F 4 520 HBBHNEEREER -
KRAFRSBOBEERBHERTE X ARES
AT BE I RE - LARRBE 80,000,000 f% i 17 1E A S
HASEIEH BB EESNEE - BlE XM
BEABRET N E R ERENE — PSS
RERE IS REMIE 40 A HEEE ©

EEEHN
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Liang Bing is a minority shareholder of Guangzhou Koalac
Network Technology Company Limited (“Koalac”) and owns 9.6%
equity interest in Koalac. From 7 May 2014 to 7 September 2015,
Mr. Liang was appointed as a director of Koalac. Koalac is an
information technology startup that was established under the laws
of the PRC on 7 May 2014 and is principally engaged in the
operation of community O20 platform. However, the Group consider
that such potential competition is not and is unlikely to be significant
(details are set out in the section headed “Directors, Senior
Management and Employees” of the prospectus issued by the
Company dated 13 November 2015).

Save as disclosed above, during the year, no Directors had an
interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. Liu Jian, Dawngate Limited and Qichang
International Limited (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in
favor of the Company on 5 November 2015, pursuant to which each
of the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure any of its/his
associates and any company directly or indirectly controlled by he/it
(not include any member of the Group) not to either on his/its own or
in conjunction with any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or
other contractual agreement, whether directly or indirectly, whether
for profit or not, carry on, participate in, hold, engage in, acquire or
operate, or provide any form of assistance to any person, firm or
company (except members of the Group) to conduct any business
which, directly or indirectly, competes or may compete with the
business presently carried on by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any other business that may be carried on by any of
them from time to time during the term of the Deed of Non-
competition, in Hong Kong or China and such other places as the
Company or any of its subsidiaries may conduct or carry on business
from time to time, including but not limited to provision of property
management services, residential community O20 business and
other related services.

The independent non-executive directors had reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have
complied with all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As of 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders M20156F 12 A31 B » XA RIREFEH KB K
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO recorded FlE 3B IEFENTERELMEE:  UTEE
that the following entities, other than the Directors of the Company, (ARRBIEEZRIN) RAR BB () sk A8 B A% (0
had an interest in the shares or underlying shares of the Company A T

as follows:
Total of
Interest in Interest in shares and  Approximate
ordinary underlying underlying percentage

Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares shares shares of interest

AEBRE  RERRGH 43 12 AH B8 WA

RREE LB EEtE E& EH & 3 48 21 B

Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited Trustee 432,000,000 S 432,000,000 54.00%

XA

Dawngate Limited Interest in controlled corporation  432,000,000?) - 432,000,000 54.00%

JEERRAR X EERER

Qichang International Limited Beneficial owner 432,000,000 = 432,000,000 54.00%

REERARLA BEREAA

Central Oscar Holdings Limited  Beneficial owner 98,272,000 - 983,272,000 11.66%

EnBEEA
Vision Knight Capital (China) Interest in controlled corporation 93,272,0009 - 93,272,000 11.66%
GPII, LP. RiErE#ER
Decision Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 54,000,000 = 54,000,000 6.75%
ERBEAA
Shanghai Hengji Assets Interest in controlled corporation 54,000,000% - 54,000,000 6.75%
Management Center (L.P.) X AEEE
FEEREEERFRL
(BR&%%)

Notes: B5E -

(1) The issued share capital of Dawngate is held as to 15% by Mr. Liu and 85% (1) BENSHE ﬁ i ENEE] ﬁff‘fﬁ1 5% & F Hilton
by Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited as trustee of the Liu Family Trust, a trust with Assets (PTC) Limited Li %\JEE ENAEE = EAF @ #
Mr. Liu as founder and established in accordance with the laws of the ﬁ?5/% - % EE—EE‘]%U%}:Z’%%HEE»/ ﬂ\Uﬁ}gﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Cayman Islands. The discretionary beneficiaries of the Liu Family Trust %\féﬁﬂl; BIRRGERNZEZEABREEIL
include Mr. Liu and immediate family members of Mr. Liu. EREERTE -

(2 Dawngate holds 40% of the issued share capital of Qichang and is taken to @ ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ%& BB ETAM40% jyt?é%‘f KNS (5
be interested in all shares of the Company held by Qichang for the PISEXVESTS - %&}E‘ﬁgﬁé)ﬁy%ﬁmﬁ/}ﬁjﬁz&ﬁaﬂﬂ&{ﬁ
purposes of Part XV of the SFO. Each of Suiya Investment Limited, Signgain f%ﬁ@ﬁ ° %%&'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ Al ° FJEEBE;& ET K
Limited and Onsure Limited, being the wholly-own investment holding F”Eﬁ@@ﬁfﬁgjﬁﬁﬁﬁi X %;’I\%EE/BE@EZ%E
company of Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin RENZEARAEBRAF  BEMECEITRAN
respectively, holds 20% of the issued share capital of Qichang 20% °
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) Central Oscar is held as to approximately 95.5% and 4.5% by Vision Knight
Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. and Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur
Fund Il, L.P. respectively, both of which are managed by VKC, an exempted
limited partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
general partner of which is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. VKC (China) GP II Ltd. is
wholly-owned by VKC Cayman Il Ltd. Both of VKC (China) GP Il Ltd and
VKC Cayman Il Ltd are limited companies incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman lIslands. VKC Cayman Il Ltd is owned as 50% by Mr. Wei Zhe
and 50% by Mr. Zhu Daming. Under the SFO, each of VKC, VKC (China)
GP Il Ltd, VKC Cayman Il Ltd, Mr. Wei Zhe and Mr. Zhu Daming is
deemed to be interested in the 93,272,000 Shares of the Company held
by Central Oscar.

(4) Decision Holdings is wholly-owned by Shanghai Hengji Assets Management
Center (L.P.), a limited partnership registered under PRC laws, the general
partner of which is Shanghai Yidejin Investment Management Center (L.P.)
(“Yidejin”), which is also a limited partnership registered under PRC laws.
Yidejin is managed by Shanghai Yubo Investment Management Company
Limited (“Yubo”), a limited company established in the PRC which is an
indirect subsidiary of E-House (China) Holdings Limited. Under the SFO,
each of Hengji, Yidejin and Yubo is deemed to be interested in the
54,000,000 Shares of the Company held by Decision Holdings Limited.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not enter
into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which need to be disclosed in this annual report under
Rule 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, and detail for other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group’s major suppliers are sub-contractors providing relevant
services for the Group’s property management and sales assistance
business lines. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 565.7% (2014:
66.4%) of the Group’s total purchases, and the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 71.9% (2014: 79.5%) of
the Group’s total purchases.

The major customers of our property management business line
include property developers, property owners and property owners’
associations, while the major customers of the sales assistance
business line include property developers. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 1.7% (2014: 1.9%) of the Group’s revenue, and the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 5.1%
(2014: 6.1%) of the Group’s revenue.

At all time during the year, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholders of the Company which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers
or customers.
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) Central Oscar%> 5l £ Vision Knight Capital (China)
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing market rate.

The remuneration committee of the Company reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to
existing shareholder.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2015, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float during the year ended 31 December
2015 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A
resolution will be proposed for approval by Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
FRIARKERRAF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong Ao
Home Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 175,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
23 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BmMEMEE RS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETT ARBT T
Revenue W25 8 420,155 361,202
Cost of sales and services $HE RARTE AL A (280,067) (240,491)
Gross profit E A 140,088 120,711
Other income HAtn g A 9 1,467 3,155
Other gains and losses Eﬁtﬂﬁl 5 K g E 10 (4,019) (16,328)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities & 7F Bz AFER T AETZH
designated as at fair value CRABENATEES
through profit or loss 31 (6,343) -
Administrative expenses TTERS (51,002) (21,472
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (7,615) (3,765)
Listing expenses X (35,881) (3,980)
Share of results of associates FEMRERE R R HE - (670)
Share of results of joint ventures EIEEEhEER 243 (98)
Finance costs B 75 A AN 11 (1,572) (5)
Profit before tax MR A A E 35,366 77,548
Income tax expense i8R 12 (24,753) (21,650)
10,613 55,898
Profit and total comprehensive income LA~ A+ FEEERFE &2 E
for the year attributable to: Wes 4858 -
— Owners of the Company SlViN/NETE 7 =N 14 10,911 56,031
— Non-controlling interests — JEER i (298) (133)
10,613 55,898
Earnings per share (RMB) AN (ARET)
— Basic — HK 16 0.019 0.123
_ Diluted _ 16 0.019  NATERA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

IN=NE I

At 31 December 2015 72015412 431 H

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®ETT ARETIT
Non-current Assets IRBEE

Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB KRB 17 22,007 21,121
Payments for acquisition of properties  UZ B4 % B~ 7k 18 59,504 44,000
Interests in joint ventures REEDENER 20 1,045 802
Goodwill GES 21 41 41
Intangible assets mEEE 22 89 145
Deferred tax asset BEEFRIBE B 23 9,894 7,282
92,580 73,391

Current Assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E At pE Y 38 24 106,134 79,197
Amounts due from directors JEUE FFE 25 - 59,838
Amount due from a related party JEUY — & REHs: 5 3R 26 178 1,000
Pledged bank deposits B IRITER 27 62,834 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNRIRS 27 449,107 65,618
618,253 205,653

Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMERFIE 28 154,695 149,193
Amounts due to a related party FEA— %2 B 5 3R IE 29 - 72
Tax liabilities HIEAE 19,485 22,140
Borrowings due within one year R—FREIERER 30 22,361 2,361
196,541 173,766
Net Current Assets REBEEZFE 421,712 31,887
Total Assets less Current Liabilities #Z&EERREERE 514,292 105,278

76 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=
#reR

PIEAR R

At 31 December 2015 720154 12 A 31 H

2015 2014
20154 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR® T ARETFIT
Non-current Liabilities ERBAE
Borrowings due after one year R—F I EER 30 7,279 9,639
Liabilities for cash-settled share-based IR & & E RGO NN & E
payments 40 5,276 -
12,555 9,639
Net Assets EEFE 501,737 95,639
Capital and Reserves EARREE
Share capital/Paid-in capital RN = Wi 32 6,594 10,000
Reserves G 494,894 85,522
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE AR
the Company 501,488 95,522
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RERS 249 117
Total Equity HEmAATa 501,737 95,639

FTI5BEFIT5 B ZERAVBRERE N 2016 F 3
AoSHREESBARBERR WA TIES
REEZ

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 175 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Jian
2z

Director

EF

Chen Zhuo
PRE

Director

EF

FREREEERAF

2015 F 7R

’r’



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

RATREAEL FERER
Share
Share option
capital/ Share reserve Non-
Paid-in Share  Statutory Other ~ Special  options Retained Sub- ofa controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits total subsidiary interests Sub-total Total
—ERER
A/ ER ANERE
BA RAEE EERE HtRER BHURE BRERE REAR Nt fife FERER Nt @
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(notea)  (noteb)  (notec)  (noted)
(FzFa)  (Wztp)  (MsEe)  (Bieta)
At 1 January 2014 Wo014%1A18 10,000 - 5201 14,000 - - 2790 51,991 - 1,000 1,000 52,991
Profit and total comprehensive FRFBERZEANGEE

income for the year - - - - - - 56,081 56,031 - (133) (133) 55898
Transfer 2] - - 304 - - - (304) - - - - -
Distrioution (note 15) AR (3 15) = = - - - - (125000 (12,500) - = - (12.500)
Deemed acquisiton of anon-wholly  B{EWE—FIE2BHE

owned subsidiary (note 33) GEIGESD)] - - - - - - - - - 250 250 250
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE-HHEAR

(fi534) - - - - - - - - - (10000 (1,000 (1,000
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31 B 10,000 - 5505 14,000 - - 66017 9552 - 17 17 95639
Profit and total comprehensive income  ERFIE R 2 M ELE

for the year - - - - - - 10,911 10,911 - (298) (298) 10,613

Capitalisation issue of shares (note 32) Bk &7
(RzE32) 4945 (4,945) - - - - - - - - - -
Issue of new shares pursuant tothe  REZHREEHTHRN

global offering (note 32) (t32) 1649 308,251 - - - - - 300,900 - - - 309,900
Expenses incurred in connection with  SETIRHEAREX

issue of shares - (31,807) - - - - - (31,807) - - - (31,807)
Reclassification of financial liabiltties TERTARATE

designated as at fair value through 7% .,w,ammmﬁt\

profit or loss (note 31) (GEZ - 198,980 - - - - - 198,980 - - - 198,980
Deemed distrioution to shareholders B {EmARER 2k - - - - (10,000) - - (10,000) - - - (10,000)
Elimination upon Reorganisation REAREHH (W)

(note ¢ (10,000) - - - 10,000 - - - - - - -
Distribution (note 15) AR 15) - - - - - - (875%) (8759 - - - (8759
Recognition of equity-setiled AAEREENRA

share-based payments i3 - - - - - 14630 - 14630 144 - 1 14774
Capital contribution from shareholders 8 {E KB 47K & — et B

of a subsidiary upon deemed ARARRMEE

acqisition (note 33) (Mi3%33) - - - - 194 - - 194 - 64 64 258
Further capital contribution from —FEHEAAREETE

shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - 750 - - 750 - 250 250 1,000
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary REHE—HHBLR

(note 34) (Mi334) - - - - - - - - - (28) (28) (28)
At 31 Decamber 2015 Ro015E12 531 A 6504 470479 5505 14,000 944 14630  (10,664) 501,488 144 105 249 501,737
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), those subsidiaries are
required to transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory
reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer to
reserve must be made before the distribution of dividends to equity holders.
The statutory reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ losses,
expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the
subsidiaries, but is non-distributable.

On 29 November 2011, Mr. Liu Jian, the controlling shareholder and
director of the Company transferred his 40% equity interest in Guangdong
Zhong Ao Property Management Company Limited (“Guangdong Zhong
A0”), a subsidiary of the Company, to Mr. Long Weimin and Mr. Liang Bing
at an aggregate consideration of RMB4,000,000. Both Mr. Long Weimin
and Mr. Liang Bing, directors of the Company, are the employees of
Guangdong Zhong Ao at that time, the fair value of services received from
them is determined at the date of equity transferred amounting to
RMB18,000,000, and the difference between the fair value of services
received and the consideration paid by them was charged to profit or loss
amounting to RMB14,000,000, with a corresponding increase in equity
(other reserve).

Special reserve represents (i) a deemed distribution amounting to
RMB10,000,000, being the registered capital of Guangdong Zhong Ao, to
its shareholders upon the acquisition of Guangdong Zhong Ao by
Guangzhou Suiya Information Technology Company Limited (“Guangzhou
Suiya”) at a consideration of RMB10,000,000 during a group reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”) of the companies now comprising the Group for the
purpose of the initial listing of the shares of the Company on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK?); (i) upon
completion of the Reorganisation, the fully paid registered capital of
Guangdong Zhong Ao amounting to RMB10,000,000 was transferred to
special reserve; (i) capital contribution amounting to RMB258,000 by Mr.
Liu Jian and non-controlling shareholders for the transfer of 75% and 25%
equity interest in Guangzhou Maiyue Information Technology Company
Limited (“Guangzhou Maiyue”) to the Group in April 2015 through structured
contracts at nil considerations, detail sets out in note 33; (iv) Mr. Liu Jian
and non-controlling shareholders had made further capital contribution to
Guangzhou Maiyu amounting to RMB750,000 and RMB250,000,
respectively.

Share options reserve represents the share-based payment under the
Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as defined in Note 40(a).

IR E A RSB ([ B ) BRZE B2
AEEEAa Ei%ﬁﬁ%@7//\H¢Ff7rﬁ{éf‘lﬂﬁ’]5%
F10% E & =X TE 1 Eiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ &R
50% A1k - BEEFEBEBENDIKKRE TRRRFE
ABIER < AR ERARAE Eﬁ%ﬁ%&i?ﬂ’]ﬁéﬂé‘
BARALEXERRHBRRNBINER - HET
BFURIK °

R2011F 11 A298 * AR RIIERBRFEEEZZE
EE MEARTERZREEEUBREARK
4,000,000 LB @ E R AR R B A R ER AP BRYE
ERARAR(ERFE])A0%BKE - RARES
EAREAERREEE - AERHAERTRNE
B BREEEIRBEMAFEARS18,000,0007T
RIREEE R BET - IEZREQFERE S
HRENZEE AR 14,000,000 TRIEF NG &
BUAR M AR E I N (HL bR R) o

%%Jﬁﬁﬁh ()TE R B 4B AN R B A A Rl BL A A A
PDREBBRERSBRA T(Wﬁ?“ﬁﬂ)lﬂi%u\
TR EESERA(TEAR]) P REMNEHRE
ERFEERAATEMNBEDUREBARE
10,000,000 7t W i BB AR BB B - [ KR E R 1E DR
AR %10,000,000 7T (B ER R REFEMEAR) ; (i)
REATKE  BERTENZEEMERARE
10,000,000 70 B S & = 15 Bl 7% 4 : (i) 201554 A -
B ERIEERBRBBEBIES ﬁfﬂﬂ*ié/\
R¥258,0007C ' AMAEEEEEMNBHE
BARAR (TEMEBM]) 75% Kk 25% B4 - afr\ a
RMFESS ¢ (v) Bt 4 IR AR AR R E 5 Bl E M
BHETEARE 750,000 Kk AR 250,000 7T °

B R IE R 40(0) TR EM AR B &R AR %
SRR AR #IR T BRI R

FREAREEERAT
2015 & 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meEREenER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETER
Profit before tax B 25t A1 ) P8 35,366 77,548
Adjustments for: AT EIERAE :
Depreciation of property, VI~ BB REREITE
plant and equipment 5,149 4,563
Amortisation of intangible assets A A 56 56
Impairment losses recognised FLEBGRIB R R EEE
on receivables 13,785 16,459
Share of results of joint ventures JEMRE &L (243) 98
Share of results of associates FE(LEE S DR R - 670
Net exchange gain M 5 Ik 25 558 (9,732) -
Share-based payment expenses EN/NGT RN BN
of the Company 14,630 -
Share-based payment expenses —EM B A RRMD NS
of a subsidiary 5,298 -
Change in fair value of financial liabilities BT BB ATET AER
designated as at fair value through NEmBEN A TEZS
profit or loss 6,343 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERLBEEE
plant and equipment 25 40
Loss (gain) on deemed disposal/disposal BIELE HEWEQRE
of subsidiaries 8 (=) 85 (1,166)
Loss on partial disposal of interest in TER—HAELETHE
ajoint venture =R ET1E - 31
Investment income on financial assets BT AR AT ET AEBED
designated as at FVTPL TREERERA - (1,086)
Bank interest income TR EWA (1,198) (116)
Finance costs B TSR AR 1,572 5
Operating cash flows before movements ~ ZiEE 4B FANKLIR S
in working capital mE 71,136 97,102
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 I H At FE W RIBIE N (47,386) (24,956)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E b FEA ZIEE AN 5,421 19,866
Decrease in amount due to a related party [~ — 44 Ba 5 5 2k 8 5 > (72) (166)
Cash generated from operations KERISIRS 29,099 91,846
Income taxes paid BETFTEH (30,020) (16,809)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING  #&# %8 (Fi ) FiBR& 38
ACTIVITIES (921) 75,037
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERLRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETT ARETFIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETER
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI T RIG N (62,834) -
Advance to directors MEF{EH AR (33,066) (27,512)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE 3 - BE KRG (6,763) (9,944)
Purchase of financial assets designated BEERTEAEATEFABR
as at fair value through profit or loss M RE E - (159,190)
Repayment from a related party —Z A TR 822 115
Repayment from directors EHEN 28,831 22,000
Payment for acquisition of properties i ESL0l BB (8,839) (44,000)
Redemption of financial assets designated B B #5E A1E A FEFT ABZE
as at fair value through profit or loss MEMEE - 159,190
Investment income from financial assets EEBRAFEFABENS
designated as at fair value through BB ERIRERA
profit or loss - 1,086
Capital contributions to associates mEtENEEE - (2,800)
Proceeds received upon deregistration B A B 2 N B RE S A U
of interests in associates EXH) TS 3RIE - 9,106
Capital contribution to joint ventures AEERETE - (1,500)
Purchase of additional interest BEER—HEEEDEMNTEIN
in a joint venture FEER - (300)
Proceeds from partial disposal HER—BEEtENIERS
of interest in a joint venture K FT1S 3K 0E - 19
Interest received B AR 1,198 116
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEMIENE
plant and equipment RIB 705 289
Acquisition/deemed acquisition Weig, R AVEUR BB T A R
of subsidiaries 33 341 1,000
Disposal/deemed disposal of subsidiaries & 18 {EH €K B A 7 34 (118) (65)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEFARSFHE
ACTIVITIES (79,723) (52,390)

FREAREEERAT
2015 & 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AESEE
Net proceed from redeemable shares DR REERIKRATE
initially classified as financial liabilities STABGRHN SR A ENA
designated as at FVTPL FE& [O1 i {7 BT 15 5K I8 558 193,194 -
Issue of new shares upon initial BHRAREEREITHRG
public offering 309,900 -
Listing expense paid B EmAX (31,807) -
Repayment to a related party BiE— 2@ e - (1,275)
Capital contribution from non-controlling JEFERR R ) E
interests 250 =
Capital contribution from a shareholder —FMNBERARIRRELAFE
of a subsidiary 750 -
Distribution paid B DK (33,519) (12,500)
New bank borrowings raised MEIRITIERK 40,000 12,000
Interest paid [EENEES) (1,450) -
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (22,360) -
NET CASH USE FROM (USED IN) RMEERRE (AR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 454,958 (1,775)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRASEEYEINFH
EQUIVALENTS 374,314 20,872
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERFEHHE 9,175 =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RETHNRESRRESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 65,618 44,746
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE  RERNRERELZEY -
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash  Bl$R{T4 82 RIRE 449,107 65,618
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Cayman Islands Companies Law on 5 January 2015.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of the SEHK since 25 November 2015. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Qichang International Limited (“Qichang”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).
The Company’s ultimate controlling parties are Mr. Liu Jian,
Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin who are
directors of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the provision of property
management services and property management consulting
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and the subsidiaries established in
the PRC.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Prior to the Reorganisation, Guangdong Zhong Ao and its
subsidiaries are held by Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang
Bing and Mr. Long Weimin. As part of the Reorganisation,
investment holding companies of Zhong Ao Holdings Limited,
Zhong Ao Property Services (Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhong Ao
HK?”), Guangzhou Xuji Property Management Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Xuji”) and Guangzhou Suiya, and the Company
were incorporated/established and being inserted between the
ultimate individual equity owners and Guangdong Zhong Ao.
Since then, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 15 April 2015. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting
from the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity. All
the entities comprising the Group were under the ownership of
Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long
Weimin, prior to and after the Reorganisation.

—RER

KARR2015F1 BsHBERSZEE RN
REEHSHEFMAIREL A —HE
NEBRAR - A2FKMDE2015F 11 A
5HBERBHRIAMER LT - KARFE
R M B8 E i B Ay st S A
RIARER] —&F -

ARARHNBEERRERARRRERRA
BRAR(TME]D Zodls—RREBR
B ((RBREZES ] EMAINER
DA ARBNREBERT BEARRES
FEEE RMELL REEELRERR
S/t e

ARANTERSARELZER - ENB LR
AXENEREMEEERBLEDEER
A ER AR

AN
LEARRA RN BRI HER R
BEEHER -

GAMBRESHIEE

REHER  BERPRRKEWB AR HEE
Sk -RELL REREEREARLE
BE-EAEHEMN—ID  PRIERAR
NAE - ARYERSE(EE)BRAF(H
BEE]) EMNBEMERFEBERAR(E
MNBE ) REMBHERIREZER A T
AR D BVEFEMAS, B W AR
BRI A ABERPRE [ b1
KABR2015F 4 A 15 B & B Ri4E KA
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ERBEBREEFES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

34

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes
in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 which
include the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the
companies comprising the Group have been prepared as if the
current group structure had been in existence throughout the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, or since their
respective dates of incorporation/establishment, where is a
shorter period, except for the subsidiaries acquired by the
Group and disposed of by the Group during the years as
disclosed in notes 33 and 34 respectively, which are included
in the consolidated financial statements since the date of
acquisition or up to the date of disposal by the Group.

The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as of 31 December 2014 has been prepared to present the
assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising the
Group which had been in existence as at 31 December 2014.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSs”)

The Group has consistently applied all the HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on 1 January 2015 for both current and prior years.

HKICPA has issued the following new standards and
amendments, which are not yet effective. The Group has not
early applied these new standards and amendments.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers'
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations®

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the
new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.
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86

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group
are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The management of the Group anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a detailed
review.

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective. The core
principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods
and services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The management of the Group anticipates that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may affect the amounts reported
and related disclosures. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

Except for the above impact, the management of the Group do
not anticipate that the application of above new standards and
amendments will have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to the
new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purpose in these consolidated
financial statements are determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurement are categorised into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (including structured entities). Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains controls until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributable to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income and
expenses, and cash flows relating to the transactions among
the members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interests and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including any goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequent whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment on tangible and
intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint venture used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investments in a joint venture are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or
when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a partial interest in
the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in a joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BERETTHE©)

ER G ERERNREEERIANEE
EEFENARBENSGELENIRERER
EREBE NEFTEE  RENEH
RHE(BREE) EREBEFEETERSE
36 EERMEBEERE—BEETRENR -
TA R AR E S5 (A E A EEERFE
M ERANKSE) BEREEETH
B I ERBESRBEXRERTE
B — B840 o B RRIRE B 18 A () 8 B R %
EREMBESEERENSRIEETES
FTHERISE 36 SR HERR

AEERRN - HAEEERELERER
HEZRE(HERED) DBAFKIELE
FRILRAER L EXAKERAMEED
XREED  MaREESIBERMEE -
AEEENERZAFEAEZREES
Kz A FHERE RS G5 2RI % 39 5% Al
BRERNFERE 2 AFE - R LK
REDZAER  ZAELEZREERE
MREERZAFERZER MEES
LEEHOBBEZEAMERESRER
EETHEZRELEZKENEBES - It
S AN SR G 55 BT R0 Eo A 2 T U aR P L R
BECEERZMESEAR  EEEN
ZEECEXERNENREEXABRPT
MEHEMR - Bt A EbFRBER
HiembmmRkasEmia  maks
XEEREF O BEEHEEHEEXRE
ZHBa - AERDARILER  AREEH
ZBEIERREEN O BRERR(ER
EXNDEAE)

M—HEEEREARENG L EET
Rp(WHESTABE)  AIEHAZRE
REMELBRENGELENRRER
SEERE - TREAMIBRRTHER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of
sales related taxes.

Property management services under lump sum basis
and property management services under commission
basis

The Group charged property management fees in respect of
the property management services on a lump sum basis and
on a commission basis. Revenue is recognised when services
are provided.

On a lump sum basis, the Group are entitled to retain the full
amount of received property management fees. By receiving
such the property management fees, the Group shall bear
expenses associated with, among others, staff, cleaning,
garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping, security and
general overheads covering the common areas. During the
term of the contract, if the amount of property management
fees the Group collected is not sufficient to cover all the
expenses incurred, the Group is not entitled to request the
property owners to pay the shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises as
revenue the full amount of property management fees the
Group charged to the property owners and property
developers when services are provided, and recognises the
expenses as costs of services the Group incurred in connection
with performing our services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property management services under lump sum basis
and property management services under commission
basis (Continued)

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled to only a pre-
determined percentage of the property management fees the
property owners and property developers are obligated to pay.
The remainder of the management fee is used as property
management working capital to cover the property
management expenses associated with the property
management work. In the event of a surplus of working capital
after deducting the relevant property management expenses,
the surplus is generally rolled over to the next annual period,
and the balance is added to receipts on behalf of residents on
the statement of financial position. In the event of a shortfall of
working capital to pay for the relevant property management
expenses, the Group may need to make up for the shortfall
and pay on behalf of the community management offices first,
with a right to recovering from the residents subsequently.

On a commission basis, the Group essentially acts as an agent
of the property owners and property developers and
accordingly, the Group only recognises as its revenue the pre-
determined percentage of property management fees when
services are provided.

Ancillary services income, consulting services income,
sale assistance services income and online to offline
business income

Related services income are recognised when related services
are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In preparing financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily taken a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit during the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in joint arrangements except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, other than those classified as fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are generally classified as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
directors, amount due from a related party, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the periods. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Impairment loss of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables are impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future
cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liabilities are either held for trading or those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as a FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is
included in the other gains and losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
borrowings and amounts due to related parties and directors
are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire and
when it substantially transfers all the risks and rewards of the
asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions with cash
alternative

For a share-based payment transactions in which the terms of
the arrangement provide the grantee with the choice of
whether settling in equity instruments of the Group or in cash is
in effect a compound financial instrument, that included a debt
component and an equity component. The Group shall
determine the fair values of the debt and equity components
separately on grant date, and accounted for in accordance
with the requirements applying to cash-settled and equity-
settled share-based payment transactions respectively.

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised
for the goods or services acquired, measured initially at the fair
value of the liability. Where the share-based payments will be
settled in a fixed amount, the true up and unwinding effect will
be recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and eligible employees
The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the management of the Group is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key source of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is an objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s trade receivables are RMB71,213,000
(2014:RMB57,933,000), net of allowance of RMB39,576,000
(2014: RMB29,127,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its items of property, plant and equipment. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and function and also by reference to the relevant
industrial norm. These estimates may change in the future that
may increase depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimates. The carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2015 were
RMB22,007,000 (2014: RMB21,121,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. EXEBER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AEBEBEEARNUBRRAEBET T
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while THELE  FEREBEIEBREIRRNZ
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation B FEEAIRREREZEALSR KEB 2
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy B SR ERF FEFER -
remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, REB 2BERREBIEER  BNEH A
amounts due to related parties, (net of pledged bank deposits DB (MG ERHRITERRBITESRIR
and bank balances and cash) and equity attributable to owners E)ARARRREB AE(LEZR (BERE
of the Company comprising share capital/paid-in capital and BTG RBE Y BHERNEERE) -
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure REBEEETHBTENERE -  NEH
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks SEEREAKNARAZFERNEBAORE
associated with each class of capital, will balance its overall Te&EBEETHERRINMND KA K3
capital structure through raising new capital and distributions THEXBELOREEENFEHAERES
paid as well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of IREERE o
existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €I A
2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREEFIT
Financial assets ETRMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash B3k RFEWKIE (BIER S R
and cash equivalents) REHED) 598,394 198,242
Financial liabilities cRaE
Amortised cost BESHRCR 146,712 122,200

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related party, amounts
due from directors, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables,
borrowings and amounts due to related parties. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The management of the Group monitors and manages
the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group
through internal risk assessment which analyses
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. The risks
included market risk (including interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below
and remained unchanged during the year.
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on pledged bank deposits, bank
palances and on variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its bank borrowings to interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this notes. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is concentrated on the
fluctuation of the Benchmark Borrowing Rate of the
People’s Bank of China (“Benchmark Rate”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
bank balances and restricted bank deposits at the
end of the reporting period. A 50 basis points
increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change of
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 would increase/decrease by
RMB1,920,000 (2014: RMB246,000).

Variable-rate bank borrowings

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
variable-rate bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change of interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB111,000 (2014: RMB45,000).

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency risk mainly
attributable to other receivables, bank balances
and other payables which are denominated in the
foreign currencies of the relevant entities of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

B

=

)
M)

5 Rk ()

SME R (&)
AEENIINEFENEEEE
REBABERSREHRNE
EESELT

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETTT

Assets BE
United States Dollars (“USD”) Ex([%ET)) 59,517 -
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”) B (M%) 287,127 =
Liabilities afs
usD = 3,434 -
HK$ BT 4,118 -

The Group currently does not enter into any
derivative contracts to minimise the currency risk
exposure. However, the management of the Group
will consider hedging significant currency risk
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on a 10% increase/decrease in functional
currency of RMB of respective entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of each reporting period for a 10% change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes other receivables, bank balances and
other payables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
If currency rate of USD had been 10%
strengthened/weakened to the RMB for respective
USD denominated monetary assets and liabilities,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would be increase/decrease by
RMB4,206,000 (2014 nil).

If currency rate of HK$ had been 10% strengthened/
weakened to the RMB for respective HK$
denominated monetary assets, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2015 would be
increase/decrease by RMB21,226,000 (2014: nil).

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

114

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group had no concentration of credit risk in respect
of trade receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of customers, who are residents in the residential
communities managed by the Group under lump sum
basis.

However, the Group had concentration of credit risk in
respective of amounts due from directors. The
management of the Group considered that the credit risk
of amounts due from directors is insignificant after
considering the credit quality and financial resources of
these counterparties. Amounts due from directors have
been settled during year ended 31 December 2015 with
detail sets out in note 25.

The Group’s credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings and
good reputation established in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group do not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group’s
management monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from the interest rate at the end of each reporting period.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

7.

@I E®)

EEEE (&)

RESEUIANS - HEERRD
BRETEFS L REEFPRAR
EeRRreEENEERRER  MAKE
YEEPEERR -

AN AEEREREEZIEERS
FEERR KERZZERZHHFH
MEEEZMITBERE  AEEE
BERABEWESRIENEERRIL
PEK - ERESFIBEREE2015
FI2A3MBILEFERNES  F1HH
KT FE25 °

HRRZHUFHTRTEAARSEE
AR BAEEREMIRTT  WAKER
PETHEERRER -

BRERRZRARREEFRART
MRBEERERFEERRIN K
SEVETAEMEAETEERR -

REBE T
REERPESERTH  AEEE
BEERAMGFASLAESEDIRN
EEERAFTEHKE  AAKREE
EBEERMES YRS RERE
EIEEZ -

REE D RFIFEE R

TSR DI AN SR 8 5 50 175 7€ 18 5E 5RR A
TRMEBENBKANY - TRORES
BMEBEENARTRRSRERS - Mz
FEMBENREAREAT RO
REAMOE RREBENERAE
RERE - WHNERERFHHN X
AIRBRR SRR B SIS PROME



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of each reporting period.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follow:

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of
its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost approximate to their fair
value.

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. @I E#®)
Credit risk (Continued) FEERRE (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) TENE & X Fl| KB i 7% (42 )
Weighted
average Total
effective Repayable Less than 3 months 1year undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 3 months to 1 years to 5 years cash flows amount
MEFH BARERE 3EAZE KBRS
BRAZ &E  JH3EA 1% 125% REEH REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETRT AR®TR ARETR ARETr AR%TR
As at 31 December 2015 420155128318
Trade and other payables 25 RE M ENFIE - 10,490 106,582 - - 117,072 117,072
Borrowings £ 5.51% - 10,822 12,066 8,472 31,360 29,640
10,490 117,404 12,066 8,472 148,432 146,712
As at 31 December 2014 R2014512831 8
Trade and other payables & 5 R EHER 508 - 10,795 99,333 - - 110,128 110,128
Amount due to JER— BB 3R
arelated party - - 72 - - 72 72
Borrowings EE 6.9% - 800 2,952 10,391 14,143 12,000
10,795 100,205 2,952 10,391 124,343 122,200
The amounts included above for variable interest rate W2 EFENEHERNSHEHAR
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116

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The segment information reported internally was analysed on
the basis of geographical zones of services rendered in the
PRC, representing Southern Region, Eastern and Central
Region and Northern Region which is consistent with the
internal information that are regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group, the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise the
Group by geography. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

o Southern Region includes the cities of Guangzhou,
Nanning, Shunde, Sanya, Foshan, Chengmai,
Zhongshan, Jiangmen, Dongguan, Qingyuan, Zhaoging,
Guilin and Zhuhai.

o Eastern and Central Region includes the cities of
Hangzhou, Shangyu, Suzhou, Chongging, Ningbo,
Jiangyin, Jiaxing, Nantong, Yuhang, Shaoxing, Kunshan,
Haiyan, Haining, Quzhou, Zhuji, Nanchang,
Zhangjiagang, Changshu, Shanghai, Wuxi, Taicang,
Yixing, Nanjing, Jiande, Guangde, Xuancheng,

Changxing, Zhenjiang, Fuzhou and Huzhou.

o Northern Region includes the cities of Baotou, Eerduosi,
Dalian, Tangshan, Qingdao, Shenyang and Beijing.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 4. Segment result represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, bank interest income, investment income
on financial assets designated as at FVTPL, change in fair
value of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, (loss) gain
on deemed disposal/disposal of subsidiaries, share of results
of associates and joint ventures, net exchange gain, share-
based payment expenses, listing expenses and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is
presented as these information are not regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker for review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. WERDIHER &)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results DI R K FEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UTNABE&EERA TFTERDHBEIDHARE
by operating and reportable segment. Ol ERYSES RN
Eastern
Southern and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
ERER
HEEHEE HE #iE Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TR AR¥®Tn AR%Tx
Year ended BZE2015F12H31H
31 December 2015 LLFE
Segment revenue 7 B E 179,447 221,371 19,337 420,155
Segment results DEEE 49,611 54,575 4,275 108,461
Bank interest income RITH B A 1,198
Net exchange gain fE 5 W a5l 9,732
Change in fair value of financial EEREATETA
liabilities designated as at BENEHAED
FVTPL NTHEES (6,343)
Central administrative costs HRATE AR (20,459)
Listing expenses il i53 (35,881)
Share-based payment RATMBRMETRASZ
expenses of the Company (14,630)
Share-based payment nl=INGIE
expenses of a subsidiary NRFAX (5,298)
Share results of joint ventures DMEEERERE 243
Finance costs IR ID N (1,572)
Loss on deemed disposal of BIELEHRB AR
subsidiaries g (85)
Profit before tax B 250 B 1) 35,366
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. W&EkDIER #)
(Continued)
Eastern
Southern  and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
FERER
ErRE S Eipih @ BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT
Year ended HZE2014512A31H
31 December 2014 LEE
Segment revenue 7 B E 158,981 178,291 23,930 361,202
Segment results DEPEE 45,443 47,473 5,713 98,629
Bank interest income RITH WA 116
Investment income on financial EERAFEA
assets designated as at BRENEREED
FVTPL BEKRA 1,086
Central administrative costs HRITERA AR (18,696)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEHE D AU 1,166
Share of results of associates DMEME N REE (670)
Share of results of joint DEEERERE
ventures (98)
Listing expenses il (3,980)
Finance costs BI TSR AR )
Profit before tax BREEAIFE 77,548
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NOTES TO

VENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. L&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ,@

(Continued)
Other segment information HibpZER
Eastern
Southern and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
EREH
EEiE ith & EitHE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR¥ETR AR%¥TR AR%T:R
Year ended BZ2015F12831H
31 December 2015 LHEE
Segment information included FTADEEET B
in the measure of segment DEER
results:

Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERREITE

and equipment 3,554 1,410 185 5,149
Amortisation of intangible EREESH

assets - 56 - 56
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREE

plant and equipment 518 25 - - 25
Impairment loss recognised on BB F BRI RER R

trade receivables HEEE 3,961 7,730 2,094 13,785
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

120

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. Bm N oRER ()
(Continued)
Eastern
Southern  and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
FERER
ErRE R Eipih @ BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT
Year ended HZE2014512A31H
31 December 2014 IEEE
Segment information included AN BEBITEN
in the measure of segment DEER
results:
Depreciation of property, plant ME  BERREBITE
and equipment 3,697 742 124 4,563
Amortisation of intangible B A ERH
assets - 56 - 56
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKEE
plant and equipment B8 - 40 - 40
Impairment loss recognised on B SR GIARERN
trade receivables BEEE 5,061 7,013 1,778 13,852
Impairment loss recognised on hE fth PR IR R R A
other receivables HERER 1,247 814 546 2,607
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. WHEKkDIHER (#)

(Continued)
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFTT
Property management services income BEHIMEERRBBA
under lump sum basis 320,837 268,421
Property management services income M < 611 W 5 B 32 AR A AR A
under commission basis - 362
Ancillary services income ERE ARSI A 30,856 23,410
Consulting services income R RAARTE YA 343 667
Sale assistance services income under B384 1 175 58 AR S A (B aE)
lump sum basis (note) 66,137 68,342
Online to offline business income B ERETEBBA 1,982 =
420,155 361,202
Note: Such amounts represent property management service income from Mzt : SERRKEVEZERREBEPLZY
property developers for their sales centers. HFEERBEA o
The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely AEEIBEFEEMKZERGENS
from its operations and services rendered in the PRC, and MEBKRARHENRS  MEEEM
non-current assets of the Group are principally located in the EHEl D AEBENERBDEETEN
PRC by location of assets. RHE]
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there HE2015F K2014F12 A1 A ILFE -
was no revenue from transactions with a single external BEmEE IR I IEEN KRG
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total NEEBWER10% A E o
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HA

2015 2014
20154 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Bank interest income IRITF BUA 1,198 116
Unconditional government grants I B A B 179 1,795
Penalty income (note) B ONCES) 90 158

Investment income on financial assets BT AR ATET AEBRD
designated as at FVTPL TRIEERRERA - 1,086
1,467 8,160

Note: The amount mainly represents penalty income received/receivable
from property developers to compensate the loss arising from

termination of contract.

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. Hftlm K E#E

B ZeREBRER TERMEREEAER
WA - AR IR OEENER -

2015 2014
2015 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT

Impairment loss recognised on trade LB S W FIERERM

receivables RIEEE (13,785) (13,852)
Impairment loss recognised on other L b B UL FR B RE R Y

receivables REEE - (2,607)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWE - BERREERE

equipment (25) (40)
Loss on partial disposal of interest in ajoint HER—E&EELSH

venture R EE - (31)
(Loss) gain on deemed disposal/disposal of &{EHE HEH B A A

subsidiaries (note 34) (B518) Wk (FisE34) (85) 1,166
Net exchange gain PE 5 s 58 E 9,732 -
Others Hfth 144 (964)

(4,019) (16,328)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

11. BIEER AR

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable BRAFABHEED
within five years BEZFE 1,450 5
Imputed interest expense on non-current IR & 45 E AR ()~ 3R M EEHEY
liabilities for cash-settled share-based BB ENEMAY
payments 122 =
1,572 B
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. BB
2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Current tax: BNHAR IR -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PR EMEHR ([hEMER]) 27,365 25,113
Deferred tax (note 23) EEFIA (BT FE23)
Current year REE (2,612) (3,463)
24,753 21,650

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the income of the Group
neither arises in nor is derived from Hong Kong during the year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC companies is 25%.

Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the tax effect of temporary
differences attributable to the accumulated undistributed
earnings of the subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC amounting to RMB23,488,000 (2014: nil) as the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

HRFEARASERERAEENIIRE
TR MARNEAUBRRTIUBENE
e B -

BEB(hEARKMBEERETE) (1
EREBE]D R(EERMBBOREMIRA) -
1 B2 AR 25% BV B R B

RE BB RAR NI R AN QA AR P BIAK 3L
WMEBRARMEBFRDEKBFNARK
23,488,000 T (20144 : &) FIEA T =
BMREFETIRECHIEERE  FRA
AAREHEFIERERZNBORM 8
R AR KRR AT B R E o

FREAREEERAT
2015 &R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FREHAE X %)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FERNEEE X o BRI ESENT ¢

profit before tax as follows:

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Profit before tax B AT AR 35,366 77,548
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% BRPBIGESEHTE25%
HE IR 8,842 19,387
Tax effect of share of results of FE(LEEE N R AR
an associate HEgE - 168
Tax effect of share of results of L& EREEEDN
joint ventures WA & (61) 25
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RIS AT B AR A 7 2 /Y
for tax purpose (note) RIER & (HI5E) 16,984 1,464
Tax effect of income not taxable BRI AR T 7% 5 2
for tax purpose (2,619) -
Tax effect of deductible temporary REER R R E5EN
difference not recognised WA & - 652
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERATH BB B E 1,607 137
Utilisation of tax loss previously not A BARERNRIEEGE
recognised - (183)
Income tax expense Frig®if 24,753 21,650
Note: During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, expenses not Mzt : BE2015F R2014F 12 A31 HIEFE  ©
deductible mainly included welfare and entertainment expenses AR EEREBECEMREHIAE
exceeding the tax deduction limits mainly under the EIT Law, change THBHRR G R EF RS - XA
in fair value of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, share- BRATHESABRRZNSREEN QT EZE
based payment expenses and listing expenses. RO NRAT AR EmAX -

‘] 24 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M RaR I RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. 5  ReTHRABREESFMH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments paid/payable to the directors and Bt/ BNARREERESTHRAE (B
the chief executive of the Company (including emoluments for HEKAAARESIMETEREEN
the services as employees of the group entities prior to 12 8 iR RIS X RO BN ) B9 BN ZE 15 40
becoming the directors of the Company) are as follow: T
2015 2014
2015 & 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Directors’ fee BEEwE 1,075 =
Other emoluments B b 3y B

— salaries and other benefits — e LEMET 1,355 897

— discretionary bonus = E’JF++ - 212
— contributions to retirement RINEAETEIH K

benefit scheme 105 28

— share-based payments — RMHER 4,794 -

7,329 1,137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. EE  ESTTHABRESHM

126

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Discretionary benefit  Share-based
Fee benefits bonus scheme payments Total
Hek BAHRER
we B ER RRa HE [ CIE ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended HZ2015%12831R

31 December 2015 ILEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Liu Jian (note 2) Bkt (Bt a) 51 31 - 2 343 797
Ms. Chen Zhuo (note a) Bzt (Fta) 25 326 - 27 343 721
Mr. Liang Bing (note a) REAA (HiEa) 25 326 - 26 343 720
Mr.Long Weimin (noted)  BAREAE (fitita) 25 326 - 2 343 720
Non-executive directors ~ ##{7EE
Mr. Wei Zhe (note b) 54 (BizEb) 69 - - - 3,031 3,100
Ms. Wu Qimin note b) ReégaL (D) 69 - - - - 69
Mr. Lam Yiu Por (note ) #E&iR L4 (FitsEb) 751 - - - 391 1,142
Independent BIFHTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis 2B 4 (fitiE ¢ )

(note ¢ 15 - - - - 15
Mr.YuanBoyn(otec)  RfadA (ikc) 15 - - - : 15
Mr. Wu Haibing (note c) REREE (M) 15 - - - - 15
Mr. Zhang Weiln (ote o) i t8s5 (s c) 15 - - - : 15

1,075 1,355 - 105 4,794 7,329
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

13. EE R THAERESHM

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Discretionary beneft  Share-based
Fee bengfits bonus scheme payments Total
S BIRET
ik el BT HE5 ARG At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTL ARETT ARBTTL ARETT ARBTT
Year ended HZ2014F12A31H
31 December 2014 ILFE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Liu Jian (note a) Btk (Hita) = 243 53 7 = 303
Ms. Chen Zhuo (note ) BEgt (Hia) - 218 53 7 - 278
Mr. Liang Bing (note a) RS (Hita) - 218 53 7 = 218
Mr. Long Weimin (otea) AR KL (Hiza) = 218 53 7 - 278
- 897 212 28 - 1,137
Notes: BisE -
(@  Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin @ BlEiE BREzt REEEREARE
were appointed as executive directors of the Company on 5 January £R2015F1 A5 B EZ T AR AR
2015. Mr. Liu Jian is the chief executive of the Group, and his EERRARERANKETHEBE - EXFT
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by BRREE 2N BERERITHRAIRBHRE
him as chief executive. i< -
(o)  Mr. Wei Zhe, Ms. Wu Qimin and Mr. Lam Yiu Por were appointed as (o) wHEE REHZT RMEREER2015
non-executive directors of the Company on 17 April 2015. F4R17TBBZEARATNIERITES -
(©)  Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, Mr. Yuan Boyin, Mr. Wu Haibing and Mr. ) ZBEREE  RARELE REEEERE

Zhang Weilun were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 5 November 2015.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

HiREEN20155 11 A5 BRZEAARRAF
B IEMITES -

FROHTEEHS T ERREREES
WAATRAEEEFHHLN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share option scheme
are set out in note 40 (a) of the consolidated financial
statements.

The discretionary bonus is determined by the Board of
Directors based on the performance of the Group for each
financial year.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 3 (2014:
3) directors for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
remunerations of the remaining 2 (2014: 2) individuals for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out below:

13. E%  BETHRABRESHMH

(42)
(=5 /

PR EEN ST EA RS EAA
ARRENBATEETLN -

ERMBYFATEETHE T ERAREE
ERRAREEMAT -

FBREMEFRERTRABRFARE
H R BHEE A 25t -

FAR - BETEFREANRAERET S5
MEHAREREHRNRBEXBRE - 1B
B BINFIRE NG E M mKR T
40 (a) °

EEeNEVREFERBASENKRAE
; L

HE2015F12A31BILEE AEEH
AREHFATBE=ZZEZ(2014F : =
£) e HE2015F12A3HILFE 8T
MA (20144 : lA) R EBNES 0T -

2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 879 555
Discretionary bonus BYIBTEAT - 110
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R4k & F 5H 2 2 41 14
Share-based payments AR 6,228 =

7,148 679

1 28 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. EE R THAERESHM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEZNEETHIAERASIOT ¢
2015 2014
20154 20144
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH EE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 % 7T
(equivalent to RMB838,000 to (FHER AR 838,000 TE
RMB1,257,000) AR¥1,257,0007T) 1 2
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 77T 2 7,500,000 7 7T
(equivalent to RMB5,865,000 to (SN AR 5,865,000 T2
RMB6,284,000) AR ¥ 6,284,0007T) 1 -
2 2
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no B E2015F K2014F 12 A1 HILFE -
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or AEFBYEAERNESIAEERTFTAT
the five highest paid individuals (including directors and (BRESFIEE) XM EREMAR
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group SEE AR E B & ) 52 E) ol B B E o
or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no directors AN - B EE E R A E2015F 2014 F
waived any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 12 431 BIEFERBREEAMME ©
2015 and 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

14. FEFE

2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Profit has been arrived at after charging: FEE&MNRA T SEmMESE ¢
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) BEMS (FIsE13) 7,329 1,137
Other staff cost: Hith 8 TR :
— salaries and other benefits — e RHEMETR 165,985 156,536
— contributions to retirement benefit — RIREFEEIHER
scheme 12,744 9,244
— share-based payments expenses of — RRRIMBRMD AR
the Company 9,836 -
— share-based payments expenses — B R a5
of a subsidiary 5,298 -
Total staff costs 488 TR 201,192 166,917
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR 37 B 2,430 93
Depreciation for property, VI~ BB REEITE
plant and equipment 5,149 4,563
Amortisation of intangible assets A 56 56

15. DISTRIBUTIONS

15. 7K

Dividends of RMB87,592,000 (2014: RMB12,500,000) has
been distributed by Guangdong Zhong Ao to its then equity
interest holders during the year ended 31 December 2015, in
which RMB54,073,000 have been offset with amounts due
from directors set out in note 25 and RMB33,519,000 was
distributed in cash.

Subsequent to 31 December 2015, a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 of HK2.5 cents, equivalent to
RMB2.10 cents (2014: nil) per share amounting to
HK$20,000,000, and a special dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015 of HK2.00 cents, equivalent to RMB1.68
cents (2014: nil) per share amounting to HK$13,440,000, in
aggregate has been proposed by directors for approval by the
shareholders in the annual general meeting. The final dividend
and special dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period have not been recognised as a liability at the end of
reporting period.

~| 30 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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FTEMERESSBEE ARKE
33,519,000 TR & DK °

MR2015F 12 A31HE  EEERIEE
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2015F 12 A1 B IEFEERERKRES
B22.008 L (HHERARK1.685) (2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

. BIRBF

SAEARRBEEAREERERNREER
NIRRT HIRE -

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Earnings: &R :
Earnings for the purposes of basic and SESREANEERTZ
diluted earnings per share, as appropriate  Z#| (40:@E A ) (N A B HEE A
(profit for the year attributable to owners EIEFEEFIE)
of the Company) 10,911 56,031
Number of shares: BROEHE :
Weighted average number of ordinary AT E FRREARR R FTA
shares for the purpose of basic 3B AT N 98
earnings per share 578,454,795 456,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary M ETREERT A
shares for the purpose of diluted LR IR
earnings per share 578,454,795 N/A NiiE

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 is based on the assumption that the Reorganisation and
the capitalisation issue as set out in note 32 (f) had been
completed on 1 January 2014.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015 does not assume the exercise of
the share options of the Company since the exercise price of
the share options is higher than the average market price of
the Company’s shares during the year ended 31 December
2015 and does not take into account of the effect of the
Central Oscar and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares as
defined in note 31 as its impact is anti-dilutive. The
computation also does not take into account of the effect of
the shares of #1 /M = 2| Bt £ 15 & & IR 2 5] Hangzhou Yidao
Information Technology Company Limited’s (“Hangzhou
Yidao”) that will be transferred to the employees of Hangzhou
Yidao as set out in note 40 (b) as its impact is anti-dilutive.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year ended
31 December 2014, as there is no potential ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

SHEEZE2015F K 201412 A31 B It F
EREBITEBBRMEFLIE - HERR
RS2 NATE 2 EAREAREITER
2014F1 A1 HZE/K

ATEHE2015F12 A1 B IEFENETR
BERF W ERKARANBRED ET
F - DARBRENTEESNARRR
MREZ2015F 12 A31 B L FEHF
MBER  FTEXEFTRWF1 M2
Central Oscar } Decision Holdings 5288 %15
2B TTHREFEAREEER - &
HIVER RN EZRIRRERBRA RN
MER ) BEmMNEEEEEZNRGL 2
T2 (FFRMFE40 (0) F THEREFEAR
BEER o

HE2014F12A3MBEFEIEEBED
BITERAR MUERIZEE 2SS
SBAF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - BERRE

132

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings  improvement equipment vehicles Total
HELH REME HE BE
RETF #5 EUSE Y] RE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTL AREFTL AREFT AREFT AREFT
COST B
At 1 January 2014 12014%1 A 18 5,418 997 10,019 4,794 21,228
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33)  WEEME AR (iFE33) - - 76 - 76
Additions NE 2,549 200 4,020 3,175 9,944
Disposal S - - (11) (651) (662)
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31 8 7,967 1,197 14,104 7,318 30,586
Additions NE 76 449 5,622 616 6,763
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) WK B A R (Kt 33) = = 16 = 16
Disposals HE - - (527) (788) (1,315)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HENBAR (HF34) - - (16) - (16)
At 31 December 2015 12015412 A31H 8,043 1,646 19,199 7,146 36,034
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2014 12014%1A1H 252 454 3,404 1,125 5,235
Provided for the year FERE 514 732 2,249 1,068 4,563
Eliminated on disposal RNEEREHH = = 9 (330) (333)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 766 1,186 5,650 1,863 9,465
Provided for the year FREE 429 66 3,358 1,206 5,149
Eliminated on disposals A BB 4 = = (238) (347) (689)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEHBAR (FizE34) = = 2 = 2
At 31 December 2015 12015412 A31H 1,195 1,252 8,768 2,812 14,027
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 12015412 A31H 6,348 394 10,431 4,334 22,007
At 31 December 2014 R2014E12 A318 7.201 11 8,454 5,455 21121
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17.

18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of lease

of 20 years
Leasehold improvement 3-5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

PAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has made deposit of
RMB59,504,000 (2014: RMB44,000,000) in relation to the
acquisition of properties situated in PRC to independent
property developers.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
entered into agreements with independent property developers
who are customers of the Group. These customers agreed to
dispose of their properties to the Group for the settlement of
trade receivables due to the Group. The aggregate contract
prices of the properties was RMB9,135,000. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying amounts of trade receivables
amounting to RMB6,665,000 have been transferred to
payments for acquisition of properties, and the Group has
made additional cash payment of RMB8,839,000 for the
acquisition of the properties.

At the date these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issuance, the acquisition of the properties has
not been completed.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

17.

18.

19.

M BERRE#

Y% - BERREBERE HABEBRERE
ATERIRENE -

HE T RIEF ¥ 20 G FHHA
HEMERE 3&E5F
RIE - BT e M 2R 3&E5HE
RE 5ZF 104
WM ERNAIR

201512 A31 8 NEBE s Uk B (L
RAEENDERBYDEZREISTAR
#50,504,0007L(2014F : A R
44,000,000 70) %% °

HE2015F12 A1 HILFE - AEEHHE
FAEAEEREFNB I MERRBEI
FoRERFRABLEEMETALEH
NEBERAEBNE S EKFKIE - M
R4S HE®BARY1350007T ° I
201512 A 31 H ' EZERWFIANEREEE
AR 6,665,000 7T B 8 & = R EE
o MAREEERKREBYEELBINRS
N A R 8,839,000 7T °

RERTBEEFEAVBHEHRERER - WK
SR EYE -

REHE DRI AV RS

2015 2014
2015 £ 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREEFIT

Cost of investment, unlisted KEKA - JEET
Share of post-acquisition results,

net of dividends received

DMEW B FE (FIRRE W)

FREAREEERAT
2015 &R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group’s interests in associates are as follows:

190. REEE N TIMEZ &)

AEERBENFOERNT

Proportion
Place of Date of Registered of ownership Principal
Name of entity establishment establishment capital interest held by activity
BERER PR AL 1t B R B HEEZR i E R L b TEXER
RMB 2015 2014
ARBT 20155 20144
% %

Enshi Jikang International PRC 7 June 2013 20,000 - - Provision of
Cultural Tourism and Health ~ # 2013F6 A7H (Note a) tourism
Industry Development Service (KFzEa) service
Company Limited* TR IR AR 7S
(“Enshi Tourism”)

BieE REBR ik 4
EFEEMAEBRAR
([ BHeiEEE])

Enshi Jikang Lianzhu Tower PRC 7 June 2013 10,000 - - Provision of
Scenic Spot Development H 201356 H7H (Note a) tourism
Company Limited* (KFzEa) service
(“Enshi Development”) TR IR AR

BEE RERER SR M
BRAR(TRHERE])

Guangzhou Aoye Sport PRC 6 May 2014 7,000 - - Provision of
Company Limited* H 201455 A6 H (Note b) sport related
(“Guangzhou Aoye”) (BizED) service

BNREBEERAF RHBER
(TEMBEZ]) AR5

*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

In September 2014, both Enshi Tourism and Enshi Development
were deregistered and the Group derecognised the equity interests
in Enshi Tourism and Enshi Development accordingly. No gain or
loss was generated from the deregistration because there is no
difference between proceeds received upon deregistration of interest
in associates and the carrying value of identifiable net asset of both
Enshi Tourism and Enshi Development on deregistration date.

In May 2014, pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, Guangzhou
Zhong Ao Construction Investment Company Limited (“Zhong Ao
Construction”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
40% equity interest in and the rights to cast 40% of the votes of
Guangzhou Aoye at the shareholders’ meeting, the governing body
which direct the relevant activities that significantly affect the returns
of Guangzhou Aoye. Other than the Group, Guangzhou Aoye has a
controlling shareholder which hold the remaining 60% equity
interests and appointed the sole director. The approval of relevant
activities require simple majority votes of shareholders. As the Group
holds no more than half of the voting power in the shareholders’
meetings, Guangzhou Aoye is accounted for as an associate of the
Group at the date of capital injection. In December 2014, the Group
disposed its entire equity interests in Zhong Ao Construction to an
independent third party, and Guangzhou Aoye was also disposed of
during the year ended 31 December 2014 accordingly.

Summarised financial information prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs in respect of the Group’s material associate is set out
below:

19. REAE R RV RER (4)

BaE

(@)

R2014F9 F - BHEkE & B 5 B REH T
i K 7S 5= 8 R bt 4% L B SR A BB e BIR 22 B BB e
FREEROARHE o SN M I SRS YR aR SRS 18 -
B 75 TR S T OB 2 R ) ) 4 i e MR O P
15 5008 B B ik i I B e R B O S R T B
HM AR E EFHENRE(EZ ML\ -

N2014F5 8 - RERRRE - AQF2E
WEBAREMPREREZEERAR([FR
IR EAEIMNEEA0%IEL REKE A
G LHEAIORRERE REASGREEAY
ZEMNBENLROEBEBIELIERNE
EHE - BRAKEIN BMNBERS—BIZER
BEER - EEAHTE0%MER R (EM—EE -
FRAEBACRRBEEEMNE - ARAE
ERREAREFHETBBLEIRNERE E
MEBEREEBBARIEREEMNEE A
A ° R2014F 12 8 - AEER—BBILE=
FHEERFREZNE MR - REMNER
RN IR EE2014512 A31 B IEEEH
& e

REEBMBREENFAREFEBAKE
MEEMENBNMEERERIT

2015 2014

2015 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

Loss for the year FREE - (296)
Group’s share of loss REBEH(LEE - (101)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Enshi Tourism was
deregistered.

REE2014F 1231 B IEFE - B
HEREE R o

FREAREEERAT
2015 &3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

19.

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REEZE A RINRER (&)
Enshi Tourism (Continued) Bz (&)
The financial information of the immaterial associates is set out JEEABE N TN AR T
below:
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
Aggregate information of associate FEE R & KRR B & A R
that is not individually material BERHE 48
The Group’s share of loss AEEDEEE - (569)
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. AEEENER
2015 2014
20154 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Cost of investment, unlisted WEKA - FEET 900 900
Share of post-acquisition results, DR R A (FIBREWARE)
net of dividends received 145 (98)
1,045 802

1 36 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

20. A& LENER &)

Proportion
Place of Date of Registered of ownership Principal
Name of entity establishment establishment capital interest held by activity
BEREE P 3L 3th B =R ERE=EN P e REfE R L O TEXK
RMB 2015 2014
ARBT 20154 20145
% %

Ningbo Disai Hotel Property Services PRC 14 July 2009 1,500 60 60 Inactive
Company Limited*(“Ningbo Disal”) 20097 A148 (Notea) EEZHE

ERTEERE D ERE GETY
ARAR ([ZRBE])

Guangzhou Daojia Information PRC 14 March 2014 1,000 - - Inactive
Technology Company Limited* 20143148 (Note b) Efme%
(“Guangzhou Daojia”) (KF3EDb)

BMBIRERRRARAF
(TEMEIR])

* The English name is for identification purpose only. * EXABIEMHR

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired 60%
equity interest of Ningbo Disai at a consideration of RMB900,000,
which approximates to its fair value as Ningbo Disai holds only bank
balances and cash. According to the Articles of Association of
Ningbo Disai, decisions on relevant activities require unanimous
consent and approval from the equity interest holders. Ningbo Disai
is regarded as a joint venture of the Company.

REZE2014F12 A31 B ILFEE - REFW
B =R E60% AR HE - R EA AR 900,000
T BEQNFERE  BARELRBEERS
BITEBREES - REFRBEENARER -
EREBHARREACESFEAAN—K
RERIE - EFMBEFREALRRNEE
fE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

138

Guangzhou Daojia was established on 14 March 2014, by
Guangdong Zhong Ao, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
@ RAEF(IER) B HEAER A A Jnguo Innovation (Beijing)
Technology Company Limited (“Beijing Jinguo”) and &/ A B 5t 5
#® F F R A 7 Guangzhou Jiusheng Computer Software
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Jiusheng”). The Group and the two
other joint venturers hold equity interests of 60%, 20% and 20%,
respectively. According to the Article of Association of Guangzhou
Daojia, the board of directors is involved in daily operations and
management of Guangzhou Daojia, unanimous consent of the
directors is required on making decisions on relevant activities. Each
of the investors cannot direct the activities without consensus of the
others, and each party cannot individually control Guangzhou Daojia.
Therefore the Group classified interest in Guangzhou Daojia as
interest in a joint venture with a capital injection by the Group of
RMB600,000.

In October 2014, Guangdong Zhong Ao acquired additional 20%
equity interest in Guangzhou Daojia from Beijing Jinguo at a
consideration of RMB300,000. In November 2014, Guangdong
Zhong Ao disposed of 5% equity interest in Guangzhou Daojia to
Guangzhou Jiusheng at a consideration of RMB19,000. Upon
completion of the transfer transactions, Guangzhou Daojia was held
by Guangdong Zhong Ao and Guangzhou Jinsheng of 75% and
25%, respectively.

In November 2014, a revised Article of Association of Guangzhou
Daojia was adopted and became effective and it has stipulated that
the board of directors comprises 5 directors, of which 4 directors
were appointed by Guangdong Zhong Ao and remaining 1 director
was appointed by Guangzhou Jiusheng and simple majority votes of
the directors are required on making decisions on relevant activities.
After considering the fact and circumstances, the management of
the Group concludes that the Group has the power to control over
Guangzhou Daojia, therefore, the Group classified Guangzhou
Daojia as a subsidiary since then.

In November 2014, the Group deemed acquired 75% equity interest
in Guangzhou Daojia and classified as a subsidiary thereafter. Details
are disclosed in note 33.

BMEBRNR2014FE3 A14HBHERP B (K
ARIZEMBAR) - £RAIF GBS
RAR(TERER]) REMA T E R
BRAR(TEMAR )KL - NEB R EA
MfE & & R E D Rl#FH 60% - 20% K 20% A%
e REBMNIRNARERR EEg2H
BMEIROBEEEREE  FHERBER
RERFAES—BRAE - SREETBER
KEMH—BRRAEBRTHEEEL  BEA
TMEERIZEHIEMBIR o Bt AN EBHRE
MEROESHEARAELENER (KE
B & AR%600,0007T) °

2014610 A - BRF BRI RS RKEEMN
B REIN20% B #E - KB A A R 300,000
TCe2014F 11 A BRABRABEMAREE
BEMNEIRH5% 8 - KEAARE19,000
L HERSEME BB RAERFER
REMABD RIFFE 75% K 25% fEw °

2014F 11 A - EMBEIREIESET AR ERRERK
MR - HRTEFEHBREFAN - H
FAZESHERTREMT K M1 ZESH
BMMABREM  (ELAAERARSAES
EERIFR BB  ERINEBRSERE
N AREEEERE  AEEYHEMNIR
BEGE AEAEEBREEMNEIRS L
AHIBAF -

2014611 A » REEGIEWIBEEMFIK 75%
Bt - WREBDEAWMBRR o FBRH
FE33HIHE o

2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT

Aggregate information of joint ventures EERNERHE E
that are not individually material BRHE R - =
The Group’s share of loss AEEDEEHE 243 (98)

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

21. GOODWILL 21. BHE
RMB’000
AREFIT
COST AND CARRYING VALUES BAREREE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 2015 R2014%F1 18  2014F &
2015912 A 31 H 41

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill above has
been allocated to the cash generating unit of Hangzhou Lvdu
Hubin Garden Property Services Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Lvdu”) (“CGU”) which carried out property management
services in Eastern and Central Region.

The management of the Group determined that there is no
impairment of its CGU containing goodwill during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and at a discount rate
of 15% (2014:15%) per annum. The cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%
(2014:2%).

Cash flow projections during the budget period for the CGU
are based on management’s estimate of cash inflows/outflows
including revenue, gross profit, operating expenses and
working capital requirements. The assumptions and estimation
are based on the CGU'’s past performance and management’s
expectation of market development.

ATETRENR  LEBEEOREEN
JN % #S BB TEE ) % IR T B R 2 &) (TN
BB ELEBEN(REELE
f2]) MM EEERET B RETYE
EHEIRTS -

AEEEEEETCHEERNENREEL
BNREZ2015F K 2014F 12 A31 H It
FEWERE -

REeELEVNARESBEREEAER
FTEET - ZTEFERRBECEEEE
MERFHRZ MEBERESF 15% (2014
F:15%) R EER 2B RETEA -
AFEHEEZIBERETIFER2%(20144F ¢
2%) 2R RS -

BEHRRSELEUNERESRERAR T
ENEREHURSRA/ MENMGEET - &
‘s - BN RERXREEESHE K -
BRELGFTERREELFEMBERR
REBREHMISER TAH -

EPE?U%EQ@ZE(??& ~| 39



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Vs bl ot
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

22 B EE

Property
management
contracts
MEEESE
RMB’000
ARETTT
COST R
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 2015 R2014F1A1H 2014 F &
201512 31 H 280
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2015 201541 A1 8 79
Charge for the year FREE 56
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31H 135
Charge for the year FREE 56
At 31 December 2015 R®2015F 12 A31H 191
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F12 431 H 89
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 145

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23.

The following are the major deferred tax asset recognised and
movements thereon during the years ended 31 December

EERIE
REZE2015F N 2014FE12 31 B IEFE

2015 and 2014:
Allowance
on doubtful
debts on trade
receivables
wE 5 EU
RIERR
fEH B e
RMB’000
AREETIT
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1 A1 H 3,819
Credit to profit or loss FFABE 3,463
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 7,282
Credit to profit or loss FFABE 2,612
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F 12 A31 H 9,894

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB6,974,000 (2014: RMB548,000) as at 31
December 2015 available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unrecognised tax losses at the end of the reporting period will
expire in the following years:

RNM|EE R R20155F12 8310 A&
BB R ARIARE ARKG6,974,0007T
(20144 : AR ¥548,0007T ) 7] A 1A K 84
RRF)E o /A AR 2R F) I 2RIR A 1~ °] 78R
M WERREEEERTANEEREE
E o BB BEMABMEERER  |mEHKRD
RERRBEBEBEN THIFEEIE

2015 2014
2015 & 2014 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETTT

2019 20194 548 548
2020 20204 6,426 =
6,974 548
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 23. EAEFIIE ()
At the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has HE2015F12A31RILEE A&EEA
deductible temporary differences of RMB8,308,000 (2014 FAEMEWNZEREEEN TENEREE
RMB8,308,000) in respect of the impairment loss on other A ARMS308,0007T (20144 : AR
receivables. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in 8,308,000 7T ) ° F P FE ZR B A B T~ K AT Ak
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not AU TN e i =58 W B2 S
probable that taxable profit will be available against while the AN =R ERIELERIBEEE -
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. B R HMWERRIE
2015 2014
20154 2014 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo AREFT T ARETIT
Trade receivables H 5 EWGIR 110,789 87,060
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RERZEME (39,576) (29,127)
Total trade receivables B 5 WA RS 71,213 57,933
Other receivables: E b e R -
Deposits Ze @) 3,356 2,841
Advance to staff B TE 9,266 4,908
Prepayments TERTRIE 13,151 7,235
Payment on behalf of residents REEFHZ (b) 10,257 10,323
Consideration receivable on EEE-—HHBARBBEZ
disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) FEYARAE (FH5E34) 3,031 3,031
Other tax recoverable Hfth T Uy Bl F 18 2,186 12
Others Hi 1,982 1,222
43,229 29,572
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RERZEME (8,308) (8,308)
Total other receivables H b B W FRIA 4B 58 34,921 21,264
Total A=t 106,134 79,197
Notes: B st

(a) The balance represented the deposits paid to utilities suppliers for

the community residents.

(b) The balance represented the payment on behalf of community
residents for settlement of the utilities bills from utilities suppliers.

1 42 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
Trade receivables are mainly arisen from property management
services income.

Property management services income from providing property
management services are required to be settled by property
owners and property developers within 45 days upon the
issuance of demand note, the settlement pattern of the
property management services income from property
management services are normally within 30 days to 90 days
after the issuance of demand note to the property owners and
property developers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the date of
demand note at the end of the year, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates:

24,

BESREMEWRIRIE 2

B RUFATEREMEEERBEA -

XX RYEBRREANBAEERE L %45
BAEEREYETIBRGITELENDE
ERRIEBA - REVEETERSOME
EEBRBBA—BRAEETRDEZRY
BHEAHZEIE30HERRNEE -

AT AR ERIEANARE B H (2180 s
MR B HIRE) 25808 5 W E OBl R
BRER) MERIR AT -

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 16,324 12,883
31 to 90 days 31E90H 16,971 13,629
91 to 180 days 91E180H 15,689 12,009
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 H 17,803 15,524
Over 1 year —F LA E 4,426 3,888
71,213 57,933

Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year.
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period and no impairment is considered
necessary for those balances which are neither past due nor
impaired as they have good repayment history with the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of RMB47,623,000
(2014: RMB38,142,000) at 31 December 2015, which are past
due as at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

EEFEREERESFER R - HEXE
B RUREN IO ER - AEEEE
BYFRHEERANEEREHRESE
WHRBENEEEEFLETMES YRS
078 5 5% 3 B AR 28 8 N OR OB (E B B R R (8
B RIFIERRERM SRR ERIE -

R2015F12A31H BEERABEBAARE
47,623,000 7T (2014 4F : ARRH 38,142,000 7T)
MR E T AREEE S EUGIBES -
ZERWIRFNMEHRRGE  MAEEL
Rt HEREBBELEE AEENE
RZEERFETMNEAR -

FREAREEERAT
2015 & 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24.

(Continued)

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables from the
property management services, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the trade receivables in each
communities managed by the Group. Considering the
subsequent settlement for each of trade receivables,
impairment allowance is provided mainly to certain
communities located in Eastern and Central region and
Southern Region of which the property management services
are provided. In the opinion of the management of the Group,
necessary impairment allowance has been made in respect of
the unsettled balances of trade receivables.

BEZREMERIRIE 2

EETMXEERBNE S EWHRIAR A
WE R - REBEGBARASEAEES
EtENE S REFAN A WE S5 - Z
BRI RIEE S REFENERENER -
MEEGBTERURERET R NER
wREREYEERREHNE THRME
B AEEERERR/EURENBESE
WA A B TR AT PR ROBLE 2SS -

2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 9,705 6,721

91 to 180 days 91 %180 H 15,689 12,009

181 to 365 days 181 £ 365H 17,803 15,524

Over 1 year —F 4,426 3,888

47,623 38,142

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Balance at the beginning of the year FHER 37,435 20,976
Impairment losses recognised on B R IE W BREE B

receivables 13,785 16,459

Amount written off as uncollectible it 8 A ESE U B 2 I8 (3,336) -

Balance at the end of the year FREEER 47,884 37,435
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2015, included in the allowance for doubtful
receivables are individually impaired trade and other
receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB47,884,000
(2014: RMB37,435,000). With reference to the historical
collection experience of these receivables, these balances may
not be recoverable. The Group does not held any collateral
over these balances.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS

Particulars of amounts due from directors are as follows:

24, EFREMEWFIE &)

25.

MR2016F12 818 BB ARE
47,884,0007L (2014 F = AR® 37,435,000
70) AR EREE 5 R H A EWGKIEE &
ABUERRRIEREE - 2BZSEKER
RBEUGRESS - RS AR EE AW -
REEVELZEERSEEMERR -

BRESE KR
FEl B EBHRFENT

31 December 31 December 1 January

2015 2014 2014

20154 2014 4F 2014 4

128 31H 12 A31H 1A1H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T AREET T AREFIT

Mr. Liu Jian BzEEHE - 47,347 50,424
Mr. Liang Bing BREEAE - 7,687 2,442
Mr. Long Weimin BEARLAE - 4,486 1,460
Ms. Chen Zhuo PR 2 22 1 - 318 -
- 59,838 54,326

The amounts are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, amounts due from
directors of RMB54,073,000 have been offset upon the
dividends of Guangdong Zhong Ao which are declared and
distributed to the shareholders of the Company.

RENBRESLE  WER 2ERA
BERIEE -

HE2015F12A31BILEE  EREFR
MARARBRREIREDIRE S - EWRE
E A AR 54,073,000 702 5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS 25. EWESRE (&)
(Continued)
Name of director (Continued) EENRFE)

Maximum amount
outstanding during

RTIMERERNTEHE

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 &

RMB’000 RMB’000

Name of director BENS ARET T AREEFIT
Mr. Liu Jian Bk dt 54,460 57,734
Mr. Liang Bing REKE 12,722 8,524
Mr. Long Weimin EARLA 8,721 6,486
Ms. Chen Zhuo PR 2+ 7,639 351

26. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY 26. Y — BB 5 FE

Particulars of amount due from a related party are as follows: FEUs — 2 BB T SRIRFFIBAN T ¢
Name of related party B B8
31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
2015 2014 4 20144
12A31H 12431 H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT ARETTT

Guangzhou Xunhua BNz 178 1,000 1,115

Maximum amount
outstanding during

RTIMERERNTEHE

2015 2014
20156 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Guangzhou Xunhua B R EE 1,000 1,048
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY
(Continued)

The amount due from ENAES F M BR A & Guangzhou
Xunhua Electric Technology Company Limited (“Guangzhou
Xunhua”) is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Up to the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements, the balance has been
settled.

Guangzhou Xunhua is established in the PRC which carrying
out the provision of electric lightening services. It is controlled
by Mr. Liu Jian and therefore classified as a related party of the
Group.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

The bank deposits as at 31 December 2015 amounting to
RMB62,834,000 (2014: nil) were pledged to banks to secure
the short-term banking facilities granted to the Group.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at
prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.1% to 1.5%
(2014: 0.4% to 1.5%) per annum for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash
denominated in original currency are as follows:

26.

27.

FEUW — B REEE S =B (2)

e EMNAEBREMER 2 ([ EMA
FENHFRBADBIFESHME - BEH -2
ENBEREREER BETRUFHEEY
BHRAHY  AREGHREHS -

BN R AP B - IR ERRAART -
ZARABELEEES A2 EALAE
B rRREE TS -

BIEFRITERRBITEARR
R20156F12A31 8 A&BEHFAR
#62,834,000 LAY ER1T1E 7K (2014 4F : &)
FRIT O UNERBTFTAEBHNE R

HZE20156F12A31BILFE - BiRFR
TERRBITEHRBERITMENET S
MENFFE0A% E1.5% (20144 : 0.4%
E1.5%) °

UNRAEEENSBRRITERRIRT
mBgREEWT

2015 2014

2015 2014 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

RMB AREE 165,849 65,618
UsD T 59,517 =
HK$ BT 286,575 =
511,941 65,618

FREAREEERAT
2015 F 7R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EZ R HMENFIA
2015 2014
2015 2014 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥T T AREET T
Trade payables Z 5N FIA 25,139 23,168
Other payables: E M FRIA -
Receipts on behalf of residents REEPUBGK (@) 32,044 37,064
Receipts in advances TE UK IE (b) 36,854 32,123
Deposits received BiIRE (© 29,252 23,773
Accrued staff costs FEFTB IR 15,142 22,837
Accrued listing expenses FERT LR 10,252 =
Other tax payables HAth IR 769 6,942
Others Hih 5,243 3,286
Total other payables Hib et I8 4a%5a 129,556 126,025
Total 4Bt 154,695 149,193
Notes: PE -
(@  The balances represented the receipts on behalf of community @ HHRERRMEBREIPKIFUGLEEREAAR
residents to settle the utilities bills from utilities suppliers. ERERR A FARERE -
()  The balances represented the advance from customers for payment (o) HEHRIEEFPAINERRBEEELOHRANR

of management service fees.

(©)  The balances represented the deposits paid by the community ) HHHREEEMERRYERFPMRHTE
residents during the period when their relevant property is under ERZMARRS -
refurbishment.
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group ranges
from 3 days to 90 days. The following is an aged analysis of
trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end
of each reporting period:

28. ESNREHMENSRIE B
HEFAAEEZENESHNTIEE
0B UTARSREMRIZEZAML
51608 5 FE T E B R BRES S AT -

2015 2014
2015 & 2014 &
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

0 to 60 days 0Z=60H 22,731 18,703
61 to 180 days 612180 H 1,530 3,152
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 416 804
Over 1 year 1FAF 462 509

25,139 23,168

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

Particulars of amounts due to a related party are as follows:

29. FE{S— REAEE R BB
FEf— 2B T BRI T -

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

Name of related party RS 218 ARET T ARMET T
Guangzhou Xunhua EN A EE _ 70

The amount due to Guangzhou Xunhua is trade nature with
credit term of 30 days granted from the issuance of invoices
and is aged within 30 days based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period.

ENEMAERATBESEE BT
ML EZRAANGEES  ANmSE
HIRREZAHEREKRAB0BA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

30. BORROWINGS 30. X
2015 2014
2015 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
Unsecured bank borrowing EIRIRITE K 9,640 12,000
Secured bank borrowings BERRITE K 20,000 =
29,640 12,000
Carrying amount repayable: JEEEIREE :
Within one year —F R 22,361 2,361
More than one year, but not exceeding BE—F  ETHBBMRF
two years 2,361 2,361
More than two year, but not exceeding BEMFE - ETEBRF
five years 4,918 7,278
29,640 12,000
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : JREh& &EIE N5
under current liability —FAEBNEEE (22,361) (2,361)
Amount due after one year —FRIBNERE 7,279 9,639
The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates FIHAS BN E R iB ST TE T E K H 5
set out in the loan agreements. All bank borrowings raised are REE - FIERITIEREIUARKESHE -
denominated in RMB.
The ranges of effective interest rates (equal to contracted REBERNERMNEEE FBERTHF
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows: Z)T
2015 2014
2015 2014 4
Variable-rate borrowings FEER
Benchmark Rate HAER| R +0.23% to +0.86%

per annum +0.86% per annum
BF+0.23% F
+0.86% B +0.86%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 20154 12 31 HIEF[E

31. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AS

AT FVTPL

On 3 February 2015, Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang
Bing, Mr. Long Weimin, the Company and Qichang, the
immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company have,
among others, entered into share purchase agreements and
shareholders’ agreement (“Shareholders’ Agreement”), with two
independent third parties, namely, Central Oscar Holdings Limited
(“Central Oscar’) and _E/G1BEEEEFL(BRER) ( LF
183 ”) which subsequently designated Decision Holdings Limited
(“Decision Holdings”), being a wholly-owned subsidiary of “ - /&
18 #£”), to enter into a novation agreement on 17 April 2015 to
take up all the rights and obligations of “_E /& 18 ¥~ under the
share purchase agreement. Pursuant to these agreements, the
Company agreed to issue and allot to Central Oscar and Decision
Holdings, and Central Oscar and Decision Holdings agreed to
subscribe for 150 and 90 ordinary shares (the “Central Oscar and
Decision Holdings Subscription Shares”), representing 15% and
9% equity interests in the enlarged share capital of the Company
with subscription price of USD20,000,000 and USD12,000,000
respectively and the net proceeds of the above subscription are
equivalent to RMB193,194,000. The shares were issued on 17
April 2015.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement, the Company has
granted an option (the “Put Option”) to each of Central Oscar
and Decision Holdings that in the event that an initial public
offering of the shares of the Company as set out in the
Shareholders’ Agreement (the “Qualified IPO”) does not
complete within five years from the date of 17 April 2015 (i.e.
16 April 2020, the Maturity Date) or the occurrence of an early
put option triggering event as stipulated in the Shareholders’
Agreement, Central Oscar and Decision Holdings will have the
option requiring Qichang to purchase all (but not some) the
Central Oscar and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares then
held by Central Oscar and Decision Holdings at the USD
amount equal to the sum of the subscription amount paid by
Central Oscar and Decision Holdings plus a return calculated
at the rate of 10% per annum minus any dividends or
distribution received by Central Oscar and Decision
Holdings. Such put option will lapse upon the closing of the
Qualified IPO.

31. EERRAVEFABEENTHE

=L

M2015F2 A3H « BlFEsiE  FRELZ T -
RESEHE  EARLEE  ARQRFME (A
RARMEE R &LERAR) BB
% = JjCentral Oscar Holdings Limited
([ Central Oscar]) & _E/&EH#EEEEH L)
(BRA&%) ([ LEE#R )T L (EFaiE)
BhipaEBRERE(RERZR]) - B8
B H 1% 8 & & & & K B A 7] Decision
Holdings Limited ([ Decision Holdings]) 7
2015F 4 A7 AL EB W& - LA LE
HEERNERBZETH—EMNREE-
RIEZZE % + A2 8] [E & R Central Oscar
X Decision Holdings 2517 &2 fid # - ifi Central
Oscar & Decision Holdings [B & 7 Blli% R 8
{820,000,000% 7T % 12,000,000 T * R
fE150 290k X B M%([Central Oscar &
Decision Holdings ZBE& %15 1) (2 BMEAR A
AIEEARAE15% R O% #a) « LR
BEEMNAMSEREFERERARK
193,194,0007C © #% 5 & 17 120154 4 A
17 AE1T -

RIERR R 7955 A2 &) % Bl i\ Central Oscar
¥ Decision Holdings # i #7 # ([ 32 &7 28
) MARRRONEBEAREE (K
HipmAE [ EREXAREE ) WER
B2016F4A17RE RERF A TEK (A
2020F4 A 16 B  ZIHAEHR) - SkRVE EARE
RENREERRIBEANGTBEHSH - A
Central Oscar & Decision Holdings #5745 £ 12
# Z kR & B 8 & B A Central Oscar &
Decision Holdings #5 A #) 2 2 (if1 3E 56 5 )
Central Oscar }z Decision Holdingsi2 8 F%
7+ I LA 8 & 7 Central Oscar K Decision
Holdings B RBBRBMETLBXN - 5
iz & F10%5 & 1 B ) & & Central
Oscar } Decision Holdings 4 EX # F {a] B% &,
ok BARLHESREERERR
FAE E A RIF RN o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

31. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AS

AT FVTPL (Continued)

Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Long Weimin, Mr. Liang Bing,
the directors and shareholders of the Company, and certain
companies incorporated in the BVI which are holding the entire
equity interest of Qichang, certain subsidiaries of the Company
including Zhong Ao Holdings, Zhong Ao HK, Guangdong
Zhong Ao, Guangzhou Baijin Guanjia Hotel Property
Management Company Limited (“Guangzhou Baijin”),
Hangzhou Huachang Property Management Company Limited
(“Hangzhou Huachang”), Hangzhou Lvdu, Guangzhou Daojia
and Guangzhou Maiyue and the joint venture of the Group
including Ningbo Disai are jointly and severally liable with
Qichang for the obligations of the Qichang.

As the Group’s obligation to repay to Central Oscar and
Decision Holdings is contingent on event which is outside
control of the Group and the Group does not have
unconditional right to avoid making payment when they
exercise such right in future, the Company has presented the
Central Oscar and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares with
the Put Option as a whole as financial liabilities designated as
at FVTPL as at initial recognition date.

On 29 June 2015, Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang
Bing, Mr. Long Weimin, the Company and Qichang have,
among others entered into amendment to Shareholders’
Agreement (“Amendment”) with Central Oscar and Decision
Holdings. Pursuant to the Amendment, the Company and
certain subsidiaries and a joint venture of the Group as set out
above were no longer jointly or severally liable for the
obligations of Qichang which were originally required according
to the Shareholders’ Agreement. As a result, the Central Oscar
and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares which initially
classified as financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL of the
Group were then reclassified to the equity of the Company at
the fair value on 29 June 2015 amounting to
RMB198,980,000. The change of the fair value of financial
liabilities designated as at FVTPL between initial recognition
date and 29 June 2015 amounting to RMB6,343,000 was
recognised in profit or loss during the year.
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3. EEARAVEFABENTHE

=NAC )
AATEERREZRELE  BEL+ -
BEARALE  REAE URETRER
ELBETMAEBRAERE  AAFE
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HRRENASEREEDESEAR
ATEMNAS]) MNESYEEESR
RAR(THRMES D) - FMEE - BME
RREMNBH) 2RO AT - URA
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RIABMERERMENEHREEE -
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Holdings & FX 8 & TR T A B H| LASNY
EHmME - MEBEFRFBEITEE@EEMNE
7 [ 3 4 R AR TR - IR A
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Decision Holdings R8I 15 & 5 0d Bt 2 g2
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& e
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RESEE BEBARKE ARFIKRRSH
Central Oscar & Decision Holdings 7] 37 ( &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL
Paid-in capital of the Group at 1 January 2014 and 31
December 2014 comprised the fully paid registered capital of
Guangdong Zhong Ao of RMB10,000,000 and the issued
share capital of Zhong Ao Holdings Limited of USD1.

32. RA&
AREBEN2014F1 A1 B A K2014512 A
STHMEARARIERERTENE AR T
fi B 7R A B2 #510,000,000 7T & A BB A
FRARIKE BE/TRY A1 ETT ©

AKABIR2015F 12 A31 BRI A R AR
A(BE2015F1 A5 HsEMAKIL#E) B 31T

Share capital of the Company at 31 December 2015 and the
movement of the issued share capital of the Company since its

incorporation on 5 January 2015 as follows: REAEEEN AT -
Number Nominal
of shares value
B2 E H{E
Notes HK$’'000
M FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0. 01 each EREEO0.01 BT ERA
Authorised: EIE
On the date of incorporation e B Hf 38,000,000 380
Increase on 5 November 2015 MR2015F 11 A5 H1iE (@ 7,962,000,000 79,620
At 31 December 2015 R2015412 A 31 H 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
On the date of incorporation ReEfakz B 8 (b) 100 -
Issue new shares to Pre-IPO investors @ B /A AR HERTIREE
BATERAD ©) 240 =
Issue new shares to immediate and ME#E R &KER AR
ultimate holding company BITHAR () 660 -
Issue of new shares upon initial public 7&K AR 3 SRS 21T IR
offering ©) 200,000,000 2,000
Capitalisation issue BRI EETT 0] 599,999,000 6,000
800,000,000 8,000
Amount
&4
RMB’000
ARETIT
Shown in the consolidated financial statements REGEEHBHRRES
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 10,000
At 31 December 2015 MR2015F 12 A31H 6,594

FREREEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
AR

VSRR B ot

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

154

On 5 November 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$80,000,000 by the creation of
an additional 7,962,000,000 shares.

At the date of incorporation, 100 shares of HK$0.01 each were
allotted and issued to its immediate holding company at par.

As set out in note 31 above, the Company agreed to issue and allot
to Central Oscar and Decision Holdings, and Central Oscar and
Decision Holdings agreed to subscribe for 150 and 90 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company with a subscription price of
USD20,000,000 and USD12,000,000 respectively on 3 February
2015. Such shares were accounted for as financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL pursuant to the terms of the instruments as
at initial recognition date.

Pursuant to the Amendment mentioned in note 31, Central Oscar
and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares were reclassified from
financial liability designated as at FVTPL to equity of the Company as
at 29 June 2015 and the difference between the par value and fair
value of Central Oscar and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares
were included in the share premium of the Company.

On 17 April 2015, 660 additional shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company were further allotted and issued to its immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company at par.

On 25 November 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.88 each by
way of global offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares
were listed on the SEHK. The proceeds of HK$2,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,649,000) representing the par value of the shares of the
Company, were credited to the Company’s share capital. The
remaining proceeds of HK$374,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB308,251,000), before issuing expenses, were credited to share
premium account.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by all shareholders of the
Company dated 5 November 2015, the directors of the Company
were authorised to capitalise HK$6,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,945,000) standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in full at par of
599,999,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company for
allotment and issue to the shareholders of the Company on the
register of members of the Company as at the close of business in
proportion to their then existing respective shareholdings in the
Company, conditional on the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the issue of shares by the
Company pursuant to the global offering. The Company’s global
offering was completed on 25 November 2015.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

(@)

32. BA& (&)
BYEE -

R2015F 11 A5H - @ B % 4 B X
7,962,000,000 I& A& 15 * #ARQ BEE KA H
380,000 7T H = 80,000,000 7 7T ©

REEf A S B E - 1000% & A% EI{E0.01 78 7T
MG EEEERSERBETTEERERA
7l e

M E P EEST ATEL - 201562 A3R -
A A 7 [ & [ Central Oscar & Decision
Holdings 2 77 K& A # - M Central Oscar }z
Decision Holdings[@ & # Al #& ® & &
20,000,000 3% 7T & 12,000,0003 7T © 2 B& A
A E150 20X BAREI(E0.01 78 7T #) EiBAR
BRERMDERVEER B HRE T ANKRK
SR AIETERRATEFAEBSNEHALE -

B X EE31 Frat f1EET - 201546 A
29 B - Central Oscar } Decision Holdings 32
BRMBEERRATEFABZNE/ME
BEEFDEZAR R AR - Central Oscar
X Decision Holdings 73 & i 15 B B & A
Bz EOEETARR ARG EERR

R2015F 4178 + XA 7F)660 K &R EE
0.01 B ITHBEINR D EE — PR EERE &
BOTHEEREKERAR -

M2015% 11 A25H + 4727 200,000,000 A&
BREEIBITHEBRNEHKEETX
LAY 1.88 B T HIBIRET - RIB » ARQF]
BRMD R LT - HERARRRGOE
{EH) P15 30IA 2,000,000 78 7T (FHES N A R %
1,649,00070) s AKRR RIBE A o BREEITH XX
AT EY 8 T AT 15 308 374,000,000 58 7T (FHE R
AR#308,251,000 7T ) 5T A BN BER o

REARABFARENR2015F 11 A5 BB
MEERBER  ARRZEZEEEREQF
B 17 s ERR A A A AR IR 2 Bk B &S BT
MEER®E  SARERMEEEREZHERR
6,000,000/ 7T (FHE R AR #4,945,0007T)
BRrERN IBHBAZSRBREEHR
599,999,000 fi% & % [ {8 0.01 78 7T 1) A~ 2 &
LA AIRADRIREERREREELS
RAFRELMEORBERSERFRAQR
FRR L Gl A 1 S AC 2 R 39T - R AR 2K
ZEN 2015411 A 25 BHFERK ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

33. ACQUISITIONS/DEEMED ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

33. Wi RAEWIBHE DA

Equity

Place of interest
Name of subsidiary acquired establishment Acquisition date acquired Consideration
B UL B Y B 1 =] BB PR L 3t Bh Wk B A B Wi i KE
RMB’000
ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2014  PRC 29 November 2014 75% —
Guangzhou Daojia A 201411 A29H (Note a)
HE2014F12A31 AIEFE (Ktzxa)

B EIR

For the year ended 31 December 2015  PRC 15 April 2015 75% =
Guangzhou Maiyue s 20154 A15H (Note b)
HZE2015F12A31 AILFE (KEb)

M 3
Notes:
() Before 29 November 2014, the Group held 75% equity interests in

Guangzhou Daojia, and classified Guangzhou Daojia as a joint
venture (details are set out in note 20). On 29 November 2014, a
revised Article of Association of Guangzhou Daojia was adopted and
became effective and it has stipulated that the board of directors of
Guangzhou Daojia comprises 5 directors, of which 4 directors were
appointed by Guangdong Zhong Ao and remaining 1 director was
appointed by Guangzhou Jiusheng and simple majority votes of the
directors are required on making decisions on relevant activities.
After considering the fact and circumstances, the management of
the Group concludes that the Group has the power to control
Guangzhou Daojia, therefore the Group classified Guangzhou Daojia
as a subsidiary since then (“Deemed Acquisition”).

Guangzhou Maiyue was established by Mr. Liu Jian, a shareholder
and a director of the Company with an independent third party on
26 September 2014 which is inactive from its date of establishment.
Mr. Liu Jian and the other shareholders hold 75% and 25% equity
interests in Guangzhou Maiyue respectively. On 15 April 2015,
Guangzhou Suiya, a subsidiary of the Company, Guangzhou Maiyue
and its shareholders entered into a series of structured contracts.
After considering the fact and circumstances, the management of
the Group concludes that the Group has power to control over
Guangzhou Maiyue, therefore the Group classified Guangzhou
Maiyue as a subsidiary since 15 April 2015.

fias -

M201445 11 A29H Al »
RE75% AR AE + WS HE

%HﬂﬁFW&m)K%MEHﬂ%E

BINEIREOEISET R R EE B BN R AR -
EPHEEMBIRNESGRSZESAK
HEA4ZEEHERPREZARBT1EES
HEMAREMT  BEBERESELR
REBRAYHESRERB REEREHBSE
ERBERE AEEERERE AEEE
RS BEMEBIR - B AREE B i EMNE
REDEMB AR ([RIERESIE]) -

K%lﬁﬁ?Mﬂ

MEIRE D BAEDR

BB HAARRRRESRE LR
B E=N2014F9 A26 B AT
BEKVASHRBR—EEEEE  BREER
HMAR 5 B#E BN B 75% K% 25%MAE
R2015F4 4158 » BMNEHE (KD R B
AR - BB RERRET Y — R &R
ER -KEFEERSEER AEEEE
B3 A & e R AN o B S B N S A S 4
- w$%§5mw¢4ﬁwat%ﬁm%
BoOEAMBA

FREAREEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

33. ACQUISITIONS/DEEMED ACQUISITION

OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the dates of

33. Wi RAEWBHE DA

RUEE R ERINEER AR

acquisition
2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Net assets acquired BB EEFE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 16 76
Other receivables H fh fEURGRIR 1 68
Bank balances and cash RITHB LIRS 341 1,000
Other payables H fth A ZRA (100) (144)
258 1,000
Consideration paid or payable BT ERAAE - -
Net assets acquired B EEFE 258 1,000
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (64) (250)
194 750
Net cash inflows arising on acquisitions WHERIBEAMRSRAFE
2015 2014
20154 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Cash consideration paid BENEERE - -
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired A ERBRITESREE S 341 1,000
341 1,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

34. DISPOSAL/DEEMED DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

As disclosed in note 33(b), on 15 April 2015, through the
structured contracts entered into among Guangzhou Suiya,
Guangzhou Maiyue and its shareholders (Mr. Liu Jian and an
independent third party), Mr. Liu Jian, a shareholder and a
director of the Company holds 75% equity interest of
Guangzhou Maiyue, which was then consolidated by
Guangzhou Suiya, a subsidiary of the Company. On 26
October 2015, a termination agreement on these structured
contracts was entered into among Guangzhou Suiya,
Guangzhou Maiyue and its shareholders with nil consideration,
resulting the structured contracts were no longer effective
since then. The management of the Group concludes that the
Group no longer has power to control over Guangzhou Maiyue
and the consolidated financial statements of the Group has
ceased to consolidate the financial statements of Guangzhou
Maiyue after 26 October 2015 accordingly.

Net assets of Guangzhou Maiyue recognised at the
date of disposal

34. HE BRIEHEHB LA

AN EES3(0) AT EE - 1201545158 -
ARRIREFESZELEBBAREIMNGE
- EMNEERERR(BELER—BB
MEZH)RIMNNERIESREEEMNEL
B 75% PIE i - BN BE R G A KR AIKY
BAREMBEH - K2015F108268 -
BME  BEMNBERERRATAER]
VZEREBUHEARAMNKILERE Bt &
BUHEARTHEN AEEEEEH T
ANEETBEAEMNBHAZEHIE - MA
EEFAMBEHREN2015F10826 B %
BRI A BN BRA M ISHE

R E BB NEMNERE EFE

RMB’000
ARET
Net assets disposed EHEEEFE

Property, plant and equipment Yz - B KRB 14
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RS 118
Other payables H At BT 5RIB (19)
113
Consideration received or receivable Bk e R (B -
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 113
Non-controlling interest eI T (28)
Loss on deemed disposal recognised in profit or loss BERERERNRIELEEE 85

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEERSTHFEE
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERITESREE S (118)
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34. DISPOSAL/DEEMED DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
disposed of its 90% equity interest in Guangzhou Zhong Ao
Hotel Investment Company Limited (“Zhong Ao Hotel”) and the
entire 100% equity interest in Zhong Ao Construction to an
independent third party for an aggregate consideration of
RMB19,000,000. On disposal, the Group owed the disposed
subsidiaries amounting to RMB15,969,000. The amounts due
to the disposed subsidiaries of RMB15,969,000 was offset
with, and consideration to be received was reduced by
RMB15,969,000. So the remaining consideration receivable

34, HE RIEHEHMB LT (&)

REZE2014F 12831 HILFE  AEH
HEEBMAPRBEREGRAA(HEE
JE 1) B990% A% 4 K B2 3% &9 2 E5100%
BEF—ZBIE=F BREAARKE
19,000,000 T - M &R - "EBLA K £
i B & Y B A R 3UE A R 515,969,000
T ENEHEWNBARARMNKREARE
15,969,000 7T B K 34 - BB WK ER 2 A
R #15,069,0007T « At + 82 T WK E
A AR#E 3,081,000 7T °

was amounting to RMB3,031,000.

Net assets of Zhong Ao Hotel and Zhong Ao REEHHNPRBERTREREE
Construction at the date of disposal FE
RMB’000
AREFIT
Net assets disposed BEHNEEEFR
Interest in an associate BN R RERE 2,800
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR IR E 65
2,865
Consideration receivable (note 24) FEUAR(E (FI5E24) 3,031
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (2,865)
Non-controlling interest FEIEAR M 1,000
Gain on disposal recognised in profit or loss BRI A B e 1,166
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEERES ML FE
Bank balances and cash disposed BHERITEABRERS (65)

The deferred consideration receivable is unsecured and non-
interest bearing. Up to the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements, the balance has been
settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 3. FEHFBRERS
During the year, the Group has carried out the following major FR - AEBFLETIINETEIERERS :

non-cash transactions:

(@  During the year ended 31 December 2015, amounts due @@ MREZE2015F12A31BILEFE &
from directors amounting to RMB54,073,000 have been W E = FIE AR 54,073,000 L& E
settled by the dividends of Guangdong Zhong Ao UNERFRERMDIKRTFAARES
declared and distributed to Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, RIRRLEZAEE  REXL AR
Mr. Long Weimin and Mr. Liang Bing, the directors and EERBREEERRBLES

shareholders of the Company.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, as detailed in (b) #FHZE2015F12A31HIEFE @ #H
note 18, the carrying amounts of trade receivables MisE18 FrsFil - B 5 EIGIEMRE
amounting to RMB6,665,000 have been transferred to B A R#6,665,00070 B & & = U iE
payments for acquisition of properties. O NE /A

36. OPERATING LEASES 36. K&EHE
2015 2014
20154 2014 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Minimum lease payments paid under RIBEEHELMEA
operating leases in respect of rented HEVHEENRERS
premises during the year 2,483 970

FRAZKEERAE 450
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AR BT R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

36. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36. K&EHE»)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had NEEER » NEFRIENATEARZ E
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- NEBRAZYENE THESH A B
cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises and RETHAEE N AR KBRS EAEDT -

staff dormitories which fall due as follows:

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Within one year —FRN 1,982 828

In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFRFT (BEERWMT) 283 464

2,265 1,292
Operating lease payment represent rentals payable by the KEHENREASERERAEDNER
Group for its office premises and staff dormitories. Leases are ETEEEMNNES HALEREENR

negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of one to five years. MEDS—Z2hFHHEBAMETE °
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXREE

2015 2014

2015 20146

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETTT

Consideration committed in respect of BTN ERRGE T HRER
acquisition of property, plant and RENEEDE BER
equipment contracted for but not R ERE
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 1,661 313
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

38. RIRBEAIFTE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme, subject to a maximum amount of HK$1,250 before 1
June 2014 and HK$1,500 from 1 June 2014 per month for
each employee which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the PRC entities are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
12% to 20% of the total monthly basic salaries of its current
employees to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total costs charged to profit or loss were amounted to
RMB12,849,000 (2014: RMB9,272,000) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,

AEBABBEESARER XA
RNEEETE - AEBIZEBEFH S 5% M
MBS EIHER(R2014F6 51 BATHE
HIEESRESENREA1,208T N
20146 H1 A #E A &1,500%8 7T ) * B #
HIRELE B HREE ©

PHREENEEATEBRFEHNBERE
BIRAREFFTEIKE - AEBAKREE A
BEBRAEARFTCHETEN12%E 20% AR
KEFEEERUBZERIEBE - A%
EEERKREMNASNEEETRIELR

FEHIHER o

HZE2015F12A31BIEFE st AEBH®
BB AN A A R #512,849,000 7T (2014 4F
AE#9,272,0007T) °

39. S INE

#H E20154F K2014%E12 31 8 1F

the Group entered into the following significant FE o NEBBEBE AT VIATEK
transactions with related parties as follows: 5
Related parties Relationship Transactions 2015 2014
o)y 2RES 2015F 2014 %F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®ETT
Guangzhou Xunhua Company controlled by Provision of services 1,012 1,761
EINARE Mr. Liu Jian, a shareholder to the Group
and director of the Company [ 7~ &£ B2 RS
RARNRRERES
Elf= et ik | IO /NG
Purchase of property, - 19
plant and equipment
BEVE  BELRXHE
Ms. Chen Zhuo A shareholder and director Provision of rental 12 4
C=Rogun of the Company services to the Group
AATIRERES A ERHE SRS
Mr. Liu Jian A shareholder and director Provision of rental 50 -
BsEAeE of the Company services to the Group
AATIRERES A ERHEERS

FREAREEERAT
2015 &R
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39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued) 39. S IRE &)

At the end of the reporting period, Ms. Chen Zhuo had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

RBERR  RELLIRBPLEWE
RAAI R EHER THARRRE

162

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office
premises which fall due as follows:

HENFARIERNT

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTFT

Within one year —FR 9 12

The remuneration of key management personnel during

R E 220154 &2014%12 531 H

the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as IEFEETEEBASHMAOT
follows:
2015 2014
2015F 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Short-term employee benefits ZHAE B 1@ F 3,309 1,310
Post-employment benefits BEEL 2R A 146 47
Share-based payments eLENEN 11,022 -
14,477 1,357
The remuneration of key management personnel is FEEBAEHIHIL2EF/ARR
determined by reference to the performance of M5B REEE -

individuals and market trend.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Company on 20 April 2015 for the purposes of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Group, and will expire on 17 April 2021. Under the
Scheme, the board of directors of the Company is
authorised to grant options to the directors and eligible
employees to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Details of the share options granted under Scheme is as

40. R

BR ARSI BT S ([5rE))
ThiRIE AN R R R 201544 F20 H &
BHORBERN - UARNEENES
MEEREERERBAEN 1B
202154 517 BEH - BiETE -
ARPEESERERTESEREE
KEEBRE BREAIRBELAD
AR o

REBFEIR D BRAENOFBHT

Vesting period
% 8 1

Exercisable period

A FATEHE

follows:
Category of Exercise price
Grantees Date of grant per share
ARAER SHEAH BRITEE
Directors 20 April 2015 HK$1.72
% 201554 4208 1.72/7T
Employees 20 April 2015 HK$1.72
== 2015F4 4208 1.72/7T
10 July 2015 HK$1.72
20157 A108 1728t

20/4/2015 — 30/6/2016
20/4/2015 — 30/6/2017
20/4/2015 — 30/6/2018

20/4/2015 — 30/6/2016
20/4/2015 — 30/6/2017
20/4/2015 — 30/6/2018
10/7/2015 — 30/6/2016
10/7/2015 — 30/6/2017
10/7/2015 — 30/6/2018

FREREEERAF

1/7/2016 — 17/4/2021
1/7/2017 — 17/4/2021
1/7/2018 — 17/4/2021

1/7/2016 — 17/4/2021
1/7/2017 — 17/4/2021
1/7/2018 — 17/4/2021
1/7/2016 — 17/4/2021
1/7/2017 — 17/4/2021
1/7/2018 — 17/4/2021

163
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(@ The Company — Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (Continued)
The following table discloses movements of share
options held by directors and employees during the year
ended 31 December 2015:

40. RPN (@)

Category of Grantees Date of grant Vesting period
ERAER R BH BEH

Directors 20 April 2015 20/4/2015 — 1/7/2016
5% 201564208 20/4/2015 — 1/7/2017

20/4/2015 — 1/7/2018

Employees 20 Apri 2015 20/4/2015 — 1/7/2016
EE 2015F4 4208 20/4/2015 — 1/7/2017
20/4/2015 — 1/7/2018

10 July 2015 10/7/2015 — 1/7/2016

201567 A 108 10/7/20156 — 1/7/2017
10/7/2015 — 1/7/2018

Total %8zt

PN E RABBRERE
IR Tl (4
TREER @izowimﬂsm
LtHEEHEEREERANERE
28 :
Outstanding
Granted at
during 31 December
the year 2015
R20156
12A 318
FRERH e RATHE
'000 ‘000
i Ff
15,695 15,695
8,688 8,688
917 917
25,300 25,300
10,211 10,211
9,894 9,894
11,314 11,314
6,841 6,841
7,682 7,682
8,758 8,758
54,700 54,700
80,000 80,000

Exercisable at the end of the year B4R AT F17{5
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Binomial Option Pricing Model had been used to
estimate the fair value of the options at the respective
grant dates. The estimated fair value of the options
granted on 20 April 2015 and 10 July 2015 is
RMB22,502,000 and RMB18,697,000, respectively. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are based on the management
of the Company’s best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. The expected volatility is based on the
historical annualised daily volatilities of comparable
companies in the same sector. The inputs into the model
are as follows:

40. BRI (&)

EREEFEA - EA R EEREN G
FFERASRLEEHNAYE - BERDY
B8 % M 20154 4 A 20 H K& 20154
7A10 BT AFEESIAARE
22,502,000 & A R % 18,697,000
TL o AT EEREN A T ERERE
HRBE - DIRBEAAREEERE
HEETE  BRENEERESE T8
REEME MM E - THEREIER
A—RENA]ELRRARNFLER
IR o BN H B ABURINT ¢

20 April 2015 10 July 2015
20154 20154
4 A20H 7H10H

Underlying share price FERARR (B
Exercise price 1B
Expected volatility TEERR iR
Expected life TEHR B U AP
Risk-free rate f  f F) 2=
Expected dividend yield TEHAR B X

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB14,630,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

HK$1.72 B HK$2.27 BT
HK$1.72 B HKS$1.72 BT

35.60% 42.01%

5 years 5 years F
0.98% 1.21%
1.60% 1.21%

HE2015F12A31BILEE - K&
Bt AR AEIR DN ERERERER S
AR ¥ 14,630,000 7T °
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

On 17 July 2015, Hangzhou Yidao, a subsidiary of the
Company which is principally engaged in the provision of
software and information technology services,
Guangdong Zhong Ao, the immediate holding company
of Hangzhou Yidao, and Mr. Luo Tao, the representative
of the employees of Hangzhou Yidao entered into an
agreement (“Equity incentive — Hangzhou Yidao
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Equity incentive —
Hangzhou Yidao Agreement, up to 33% equity interest of
Hangzhou Yidao will be transferred to the employees of
Hangzhou Yidao (“Yidao Employees”) who are
responsible for the development and operation of
Hangzhou Yidao at nil consideration by 30 April 2018
upon satisfaction of certain performance targets of
Hangzhou Yidao. On or before 30 April 2019, the Yidao
Employees have the right to require Guangdong Zhong
Ao to repurchase all of the equity interests in Hangzhou
Yidao that they received pursuant to the Equity incentive
— Hangzhou Yidao Agreement at a total cash

consideration of RMB22,000,000.

This share-based payment transaction with cash
alternative at the option of grantees is a compound
financial instrument, that included a cash-settled

component and an equity-settled component.

Details of the share-based payment arrangement under
Equity incentive — Hangzhou Yidao Agreement are as

40. BRI #)

R2015%€7 A17 8 » fNZ B (KA
AIHNBAR  EBHBRESRGR
BB RTE) - BERABEGUNEER
MEZERAR) REBLEMME
H B A R) T ([ RSB
— MMER HE]D - BIERERE
— MMNZE B - MEKMMNEEE
THEBBEZ - MMNEEEE33% K
A5 R 2018F 4 A 0B AT A Z KRB
HEEEEMNSINERERLEN
mMMNEREE ([EEMEE ) - K 2019
F4H30H% A SEHIEEEHEE
KERPBERHBIZRESE —
LN = 2 197 23 U ER O A )N = B A 2 38
B BeRELEAARK
22,000,000 7T °

ARAEBRSEENRN M
REAETRIA BRERSHE

MEDRERED

Hh Ac
AR5
B

2
#B

RIESE — MMNERHER T
B LB BT

follows:

Category of Grantees Date of grant Vesting period

AR AR & B B

Yidao Employees 17 July 2015 17/7/2015 — 30/4/2018
=IES 20157178
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Vesting conditions to be satisfied before 30 April 2018
are as follow:

(i) the online to offline (“O20”) applications developed
by Hangzhou Yidao shall cover at least 300
residential communities, with over 200 activated
users of each of such residential communities;

(i)  total subscribers of the O20 applications
developed by Hangzhou Yidao shall be more than
800,000, with not less than 250,000 monthly
residential active user (“MAU”) that log in the
account at least once a month; and

@iy ~ the quarterly gross merchandise volume (“GMV”)
paid through the O20 applications developed by
Hangzhou Yidao shall be not less than
RMB3,500,000.

Binomial Option Pricing Model had been used to
estimate the fair value of the compound financial
instrument. The estimated fair value of the compound
financial instrument is RMB22,535,000 which
represented the goods or services received from the
Employees. The fair value of the cash-settled compound
financial instrument is RMB19,327,000, and the
remaining amount is fair value of equity-settled
component of the compound financial instrument
amounting to RMB3,208,000. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
compound financial instrument are based on the
management of the Company’s best estimate. The value
of compound financial instrument varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. The inputs
into the model are as follows:

40. BRI (&)

1% 20184 4 A 30 B Al & 5k 1) 57 &
&AM :

() BEMNEINFEENREEIET
(oo ERIEREBERD
300 k=@ @ BEF=ELER
BBB200 2B BERE

iy HBIMNZERRBEHO20EARE
N AR RS & 72 % 12 800,000 4
FARLEBEARE—XRNEA
E=EEF8BA PR 250,000
4

iy FBBRBEMMEZEFENHO20E
ARAMIINESEFEREEDT
B AR 3,500,000 7T ©

EecemITAE KA -EAPETE
BAGBFHEAFE - EEEHITEN
HETRAFEA AR 22,535,0007T °
ThiEE B A S Mk RS - IR &
YTRNEEERTIAZAFEAEAR
#19,327,0007C - B N2 AR
3,208,000t RE A SR T EEm i
BEROMAFE - TEELAEMTA
NAFERFEANEHRBR TR
BARREREREMEE - £E
SRTANEARES T ETEREMNE
HMmkE - ZEAMEABEOT

FREAREEERAT
2015 & 3R
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

168

17 July 2015

R2015 4

7H17H

Underlying share price of 33% equity TINZ 5 33% IR ER A8 B AR (D B 1% RMB7,359,000
interest of Hangzhou Yidao AR# 7,359,000 7T

Repurchase price of 33% equity interest of
Hangzhou Yidao

MM Z 3 33% At Hy [ B (E

RMB22,000,000
AR ¥ 22 000,0007T

Expected volatility TEHR 1@ 59.40%
Expected life T8 HR 5 2 4F B 3.8 years £
Risk-free rate 48 Jo5 iga 1) =R 0.90%
Expected dividend yield TEHAfR B % 0.00%

The Group recognised the share-based payment
expense of RMB5,298,000 and imputed interest of
RMB122,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 in
relation to the share-based payment arrangement of
Hangzhou Yidao in which RMB5,276,000 was
recognised as the liabilities for the cash-settled portion
and the remaining of RMB144,000 was charged to the
equity for equity-settled portion.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M RaR I RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

41. SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 41. AAFMEAF
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has direct and RMEHR - ARaRIHEBRARIRSA
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: BEEREERER

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ registered Equity interest
Name of company establishment capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities  Legal Form
EBTR
KL/ PRk
GRS FR L 3 B aEE FEEEGRAER E £ EEFR
2015 2014
20155 20145
% %
Directly held:
EERE:
Zhong Ao Holdings Limited BVI usD1 100 100 Investment holding Limited liability
RRZERERAR ABREUEE E3 RA R company
BREEATF
Indirectly held:
R
Zhong Ao HK Hong Kong HKD1 100 - Investment holding Limited liability
REEE & 1787T &R company
BREAATF
Guangzhou Xuji* PRC HKD77,500,000 100 - Investment holding Limited liability
EMEE i 77,500,000 ¢ REER company
BEREAATF
Guangzhou Suiya PRC HKD1,000,000 100 - Investment holding ~ Limited liability
MR i 1,000,00077C REER company
BREAAT
Guangdong Zhong Ao PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Provision of property  Limited liability
ERHR i AR% management company
10,000,000 services AREERA

REMEEERY
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41. SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continved)  41. AT B AT (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has direct and RMEEAKR - AR aRIHMBRARIRA
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: (Continued) BERBEREZS  (8)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ registered Equity interest
Name of company establishment capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities  Legal Form
BERTR
SR BERE/
ARAR Lt 2 HfEx rEBELRAER TEXK EEFR
2015 2014
20155 20145
% %
Guangzhou Baijin PRC RMB5,000,000 100 100 Provision of property  Limited liability
BMNES H AR% management company
5,000,000 7 consulting services  EREEAR
RUMEERLARE
Hangzhou Lvdu PRC RMB2,500,000 100 100 Provision of property  Limited liability
TR i ARE management company
2,500,000 70 services BBRRARH
RUMFERRYE
Hangzhou Huachang PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of property  Limited liability
MMES H AR management company
1,000,0007C services BREARH
RENEZERRY
Zhong Ao Construction PRC RMB10,000,000 - - Inactive Limited liability
REER i AR (notea) EELE company
10,000,000 7 (Mizta) BREARATF
Zhong Ao Hotel PRC RMB10,000,000 - - Inactive Limited liability
HRBE i AR (notea) EEEE company
10,000,000 7 (Mizta) BREARATF
Guangzhou Dacjia PRC RMB10,000,000 75 75 Inactive Limited liability
BMEIR H AR (noteb) EEL% company
10,000,000 7 (MizEb) BREAATF
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41. SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)  41. A TIHI B A T (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has direct and NFEER  RAF R TIHBARIES
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: (Continued) BEREEREZS - (8)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ registered Equity interest
Name of company establishment capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities  Legal Form
BRTR
Rt BERBRE/
NGE Rk TfEx rEBELRAER TEXK EERR
2015 2014
20155 20145
% %
Hangzhou Yidao PRC RMB1,000,000 100 -~ Provision of software  Limited liability
RAEE] H ARE and information company
1,000,0007¢ technology services BRET AR
RERMREARE
AR
Guangzhou Maiyue PRC RMB2,000,000 - - Inactive Limited liability
BIES # ARE (note c) TEaY company
2,000,0007T (Kizte) BREARH
Hangzhou Zhuoao Asset PRC RMB1,000,000 100 - Inactive Limited liability
Management Company Limited* ARE Tme company
MNEREEERERLA 1,000,0007 BREARAT
. The English name is for identification purpose only. - R ETBEMFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

41. SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

172

Zhong Ao Construction and Zhong Ao Hotel were disposed in 2014.
Details are set out in note 34.

Guangzhou Daojia was a joint venture of the Group upon
establishment, which was held by Guangdong Zhong Ao, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group then obtained control
over Guangzhou Daojia in November 2014 and it is regarded as a
subsidiary of the Company since then. Details are set out in note 20.

Guangzhou Maiyue, was consolidated by Guangzhou Suiya, a
subsidiary of the Company on 15 April 2015 through the structured
contracts entered into among Guangzhou Suiya, Guangzhou Maiyue
and its shareholders (Mr. Liu Jian and an independent third party).
Details are set out in note 33.

On 26 October 2015, a termination agreement on these structured
contracts was entered into among Guangzhou Suiya, Guangzhou
Maiyue and its shareholders with nil consideration, the structured
contracts were no longer effective since then. The management of
the Group concludes that the Group no longer has power to control
over Guangzhou Maiyue and the consolidated financial statements
of the Group has ceased to consolidate the financial statements of
Guangzhou Maiyue after 26 October 2015 accordingly. Details are
set out in note 34.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

4. AR BB AT (&)

P

(@)

HEZERRPEEEN2014FHE - FEH
PABEES4 -

BEMNBRRIFEAAEENEG 2R Wh
ARRIZEMBARERTRIEE - A&H
HER20145F 11 AEGH EM B R Z 5|
- BMNBRAMBERRBNMBEAR -
FHBEIRE20 ©

RAFMB AT EMEHEEBEMNE - E
NBHRERR(BReER—RBIE=FH)
AIHEBEARR2015%F4 A15 BAHE
MBS o FEBEFNMIEESS -

MR2015F 108268 - BMIEH - EMNBH
REBRUTRETLEBEEERMNRKIED
AL £BESRTBEN - AEEE
BEHT  ARETBEEEMNBHRAIEG
- A AERRE BRIV 2015F 10 A
26 BB MR IEHE A BN BB BERE - 715
BAKIFES4 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z 2015912 A31 BILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. RN BB R R #EERE
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
At
31 December
2015
A 20155
12A31H
RMB’000
AREFIT
Non-current Asset kREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REMBRRMNEE 28,391
Amount due from a subsidiary (note) e — BB A R 5B (M aE) 105,068
133,459
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H UGB 461
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS 339,276
339,737
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAth e RIR 7,451
Amount due to a subsidiary FER —RM B R A FUE 18,532
25,983
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 313,754
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERARBARS 447,213
Capital and Reserves BEARR#E
Share capital R AR 6,594
Reserves e 440,619
Total Equity AR 447,213
Note: The amounts are unsecured, interest free and expected to be MisE - WERIAAEIER - Tt B RFEHNRREH
realised within 5 years from the end of the reporting period, and REBFTSFANEE - WEAILRBEHKAUAE
therefore measured at amortised cost at an effective interest rate of BREFIR49%:TE ©

4.9% per annum.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &= 2015412 A31 HILF[E

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

42, AR T BARR R FEEREK 2

Movement in the Company’s reserves PIN/NEIL A
Share
Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
N BEE BRERE REER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
At the date of incorporation on 72201541 51
5 January 2015 i avAS| = - - - -
Loss and total comprehensive  FNEE k2 HER X
expense for the year FEkE] = = = (44,490) (44,490)
Capitalisation issue of shares ~ E At B 475 4,945 (4,945) - - -
Issue of new shares i YNGR o)
pursuant to the public bl
offering 1,649 308,251 - - 309,900
Expenses incurred in P BT T EE A Y
connection with issue 53
of shares - (31,807) - - (31,807)
Reclassification of T BIEATE
financial liabilities AABRENEREE
designated as at FVTPL EFinp] - 198,980 - = 198,980
Recognition of equity- BRAUEREER
settled shared-based B 14 3%
payments - - 14,630 - 14,630
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31 H 6,594 470,479 14,630 (44,490) 447,213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= 2015412 A31 BILFE

43. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE 43. MEHREEIE

REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 February 2015, the Group announced for the acquisition R2015F2A5H + REB S M AR
of a target company and its subsidiary (collectively referred to 12,066,000 7T HY IR & RE R B FE = 7 I
as the “Target Group”) with certain indebtedness (the BEEARKEMNBAR (LB BIZEE])
“Acquisition”) at a cash consideration of RMB12,066,000 from UEREFEHK(TWE]D  BEEBEFEZ
an independent third party. The Target Group are primarily BARREMESERE 285 11@u
engaged in the provision of property management services to REREDMEAOLE - RNIFETELE
manage over 11 communities in the Eastern and Central GEMBHRERMOBEE  WEE K mA
Region of the PRC. At the date of these consolidated financial ARIEEEEN G EESENWEB B
statements were authorised for issue, the Acquisition has B FS s 2L o

been completed and the management of the Company is in
the process for the assessment of financial effect of the Target
Group at the date of acquisition.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M E

Results 2012 2013 2014 2015
E 4 20124 20134 20144 20155
(RVB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB’000)

(NRETT) (ARETRT) (ARETR) (AR®TR)

Revenue W zs 197,449 290,276 361,202 420,155
Cost of sales and services HE RARTS A AR (159,877) (212,352) (240,491) (280,067)
Gross profit EF 37,572 77,924 120,711 140,088
Other income HA 4,494 1,481 3,155 1,467
Other gains and losses Hfth as I B8 6.172) (9,381) (16,328) (4,019)

Change in fair value of financial liabilities 1§ Az A FEzH A
designated as at fair value through BarerRBED

profit or loss NEEEE) (6,343)
Administrative expenses TR L (14,344) (19,852) (21,472) (51,002)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAY (2,438) (3,413) (3,765) (7,615)
Listing expenses EmAx - - (3,980) (35,881)
Share of results of associates il NS E = (424) (670) -
Share of results of joint ventures BIEAERERE = = (98) 243
Finance costs B RS AS = = ) (1,572)
Profit before tax S TAINE 19,112 46,335 77,548 35,366
Income tax expenses FrEfim Y (6,316) (13,265) (21,650) (24,753)
Profit for the year FEERE 12,796 33,070 55,898 10,613
Assets and liabilities 2012 2013 2014 2015
BEERER 20124 20134 2014 4 20155
(RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB’000)

(ANRETT) (ARETRT) (ARBTR) (AR®TR)

Non-current assets IEREEE 14,347 29,830 73,391 92,580
Current assets TRENVEE 99,585 167,788 205,653 618,253
Total assets WAE 113,932 197,618 279,044 710,833
Current liabilities mEAE 95,011 144,627 173,766 196,541
Non-current liabilities FERBBE - - 9,639 12,555
Total liabilities FE=Er= 95,011 144,627 188,405 209,096
Net assets BESE 18,921 52,991 95,639 501,737
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